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China XLX Culture
F /O E AL

We adhere to the culture of integrity and the corporate spirit of "working
hard to fulfil the needs of our customers" and we are committed to creating
the greatest value for the society with the least resources.

RABFHEEM TBCREEF MR AT K] NBE 2R - &
WRAZRPNE RS ERIERANEE -

Focus on ourselves over the others
Prioritize subjective over objectivity
Value the end result over the process
BEECTHERA
HIETEEE
ERRTEAIE

Dedicated to hard work
Satisfy the needs of others
BEeHREEM
BRI AT K

Integrity
EAE
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Company Profile
NG

CHINA XLX DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
AR B /O 0 B R B

Adhere to the enhanced development direction of cleaner chemical process
of coal, and maintain the privileges and leading status in the chemical fertiliser
industry. Meanwhile appropriately develop new energy and new chemical
material, establishing the ‘Fertiliser as foundation, fertiliser and chemical side by
side’development plan.

Our strategic development direction will be: To maximize the value of syngas; to
reinforce our industry leading advantages in the chemical fertiliser industry.

Our core missions: First, strengthen and improve our major production bases so
as to continuously increase profitability; Second, strengthen our brand; Third,
consolidate basic management so as to improve R&D capabilities.
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China XLX was incorporated with limited liability on 17 July 2006 in
Singapore under the Companies Act, with the Group’s registered office at
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898. China XLX has been listed on
the Main Board of the SEHK since 8 December 2009 with stock code “1866"

The Group's headquarters and principal place of business is located in
Xinxiang Economic Development Zone, Henan Province, Taxihe Industrial
Park, Baojiadian Town, Manas County, Changji Prefecture, Xinjiang
Province, and Jishan Industrial Zone, Jiujiang City, Jiangxi Province in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). The Group is principally engaged in
developing, manufacturing, and selling related differentiated products such
as urea, compound fertiliser, methanol, dimethyl ether, melamine, furfuryl
alcohol, furfural, 2-methylfuran, pharmaceutical intermediates and gas.

The Group took the lead in proposing our brand as the "Chinese high-
efficiency fertilizer advocator" in the industry and cooperated with the
Chinese Academy of Sciences and other scientific research institutes to
develop and promote a series of products, including the control release
series, the humic acid series, the trace element series, the special fertilizer
series, the nitro fertilizer series, and the water-soluble fertilizer series, thereby
to achieve a differentiated and refined high-efficiency fertilizer product
layout.

Xinxiang Economic Development Zone, Henan Province
R AT AR B =

Jishan Indusrtial Zone, Jiujiang City, Jiangxi Province
TR TR R
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Taxihe Industrial Park, Baojiadian Town, Manas County,
Changji Prefecture, Xinjiang Province
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Jishan Wharf, Pengze Port Area, Jiujiang Port, Jiangxi Province
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Chinese high-efficiency fertilizer advocator

DELPEEMIEEEE

- Nitrogen fertilizer efficient

utilization innovation center and
National Enterprise Technology
Centre

- RBE S R A BT O A BT R

R L

- Awarded “Standard Enterprise

for Synthetic Ammonia
Efficiency Leaders” by the China
Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Federation for ten consecutive
years

- BETFESHEAMMEES

ITEHEERHE
[EREREREAR
ERAT R

Q

)

- Water manure integration

engineering technology research
center

- JKRE— B AR A T 0
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- Postdoctoral Research Station

- BLRBTIE

Jo

- New/High Tech Enterprise in the
PRC (enjoying preferential income
tax rate of 15%)

- PEISHEMER(EX15%8
BEMEHRE)

- First producer mastering the
controlled release urea production
patented technology in the PRC

- PEHE-REEEXRRELE
BRIy A EE R

O

- State-level green factory

- BIRAZETIR

- First state-level nitrogen fertiliser
research center and national
efficient agriculture service center
in the PRC

- BEBRRKAEHER LR
B = RUR AR TS L

- All our production facilities adopt
new coal gasification technology

- AERESBERAFEERL
A
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Corporate Information
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HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
PRC

Xinxiang Economic Development Zone
Henan Province
PRC 453731

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Code: 1866

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.chinaxlx.com.hk
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Financial Highlights

MBEHE
RESULTS PERFORMANCE EERR
2020 Change (%)
(RMB million) (AREBRET) —ECTEET “EFE 5] L 4 48 (%)
Revenue WA 10,445 16,815 61
Cost of sales SHERK AN 8,230 12,426 51
Gross profit EF 2,215 4,389 98
Profit before tax M Fi BT &R 631 2,175 245
Income tax expense FrigBim = 107 406 279
Net profit el 524 1,769 238
Owners of the parent S e IbE 348 1,294 272
Basic and diluted earnings per share AR EEAR K #5E 2 7| 2967 110.46 272
(RMB cents) (ARES)
Dividend per share (RMB cents) FRE (ARES) 10 19 90
I
REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY SEGMENT TEEmBA

FY2021
“EZ-HMHREE
@ Urea @ Compound Fertiliser
KE wae
® AdBlue ® Melamine
BERKRZAR =EER

FY2020
“E-TUREE

@ DME and Methanol
— BRI g

® Other
Hith

@ Furfuryl Alcohol
iz

HEOELN =T

—FFR
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Major Events in 2021
“E-FERER

- 1 H JANUARY

N
Xinjiang XLX, the second main production base of
the XLX Group, was awarded as “National Safety
Culture Building Pilot Corporate”
DEOEEE - RFEM - B LED - KET2E
s aN e IR LN | |
. J
- 2 B FEBRUARY —
The 60.52.40 project of Jiujiang XLX,
the third main production base of the
XLX Group, was successfully put into
operation, demonstrates the successful
implementation of the Group's nation
wide production bases layout
DELREE=RFEEM - UTOEL
605240 B BT - 1255 £ BIEF|7E
MEEEHR
.

- 3 H MARCH

~
Henan Shenleng Energy CO., LTD,, the strategic gas segment of the
XLX Group, was accredited as the “Specialized and New” SMEs in
Henan Province and was honored as “Xinxiang Three-Star Industrial
Enterprise in 2020"
DR BB REEIRE - R ELREEIR - NS [ R
R M 20200 FE=2RTHEM]
J

China XLX 2021 Annual Report




- 4ﬁ APRIL N

Jiangxi Shenleng was successfully put into
production and reached the standard,
and the three major production bases for
Shenleng Energy were initially formed
TRRRIERIREER  RRBER=KEE
E=s: kb 5ing

4.2
Xinjiang XLX won the “Autonomous
Region Science and Technology Progress
Award - Second Prize”
MBLELESERRRRESF R _FH
42
. J
- 558 mar —
Xinjiang XLX's fully-automated metering
system “Wisdom” was launched,
demonstrates the intelligence standard of
the XLX Group has reached new level
MEBLOELDEABTHERGISE]
R EREE KB LA
\\ J
— 67 June N
Xinjiang XLX participates in the “I Help Farmers
Change Saline-Alkali” campaign organized by
the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs of the
People’s Republic of China
MEOBEOSEBRRERMNT [REER N ER
18
. J

-

RELED —T - FER 11



Major Events in 2021
“E-FERER
o 7ﬁ JULY N
XLX Group held the dykes and dams and
immediately dispatched personnel to rescue
upon receiving the news of “flood”
SEOEBERFAR H DR B
7]
. J
(" 85 AUGUST \
XLX Group handed out “caring fertilisers” as gifts
to the flood-stricken area to solve the problem of
50,000 mu of crops
DELEBBOEETHKENR BATENE
TEEERT S
. J
e 9ﬁ SEPTEMBER N
XLX Group signed a special cooperation agreement
with Xinhua News Agency regarding a national brand
project
DE LS E B EM RikmiE TIRBIEAERY
o J

12 China XLX 20271 Annual Report



— 105 ocToser N

Henan XLX was awarded the accolade of “2021
National Quality Benchmark” in praise of its
innovative digital agricultural service model

AR E SR E 2021 2B E S1F4T - BB T LR
FERBEN

The XLX Group was recognised as the “Ammonia
Energy Consumption Leader” for ten consecutive
years

SEOEERE [ERAENERS ] TE

g J
4 1 1 A NOVEMBER \
XLX Group plans to set up a new compound
fertiliser production base in Jinchang, Gransu
DECERBNE RS EMBESIEMEM
- The flotation circuit of the raw coal washing
project of Xinjiang XLX was successfully put into
operation
FriE O E O REERIE BB R BN IIRE
\\ J
—1 2 B DECEMBER N
The first distributed photovoltaic power generation project of
Henan XLX reached full-capacity and grid-connected
AELECEEIMAXREEEE 2R EUREE |
Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy and Henan Jindadi Chemical 121

Co, Ltd. entered into the “Comprehensive Utilization Project of Coal
Chemical Exhaust Gas”
AELELRZ LRI E S Kt TEREFRATEN [FEET
ERiFaMAER ]

RELED —T - —FEHR 13
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

| would like to express my gratitude to you for supporting and having confidence in
China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. ("China XLX" or “the Company’, together with its subsidiaries, is
collectively referred to as “the Group”). On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report
to the shareholders of the Company the audited financial statements of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2021, while introducing the vision and planning
of the Group for the following year.

BFIRR

R AR — B ARA R B EMEEBR AR ([FEOEL] 8 [AAR]] - H
MEBFAREH [ AEE])NXFMETL  RAZRRARFTESRSE - MAM
AARBMNRRBEAKREEE T - —F+ A=+ —H UL BRFENLE
P HRE - RNTAARBETN—FENBSMRE -

China XLX 2021 Annual Report



In 2021, the Group continued to follow the strategic guiding idea of
"low-cost and differentiation’, implemented the concept of high-quality
development, and implemented group-oriented development. Based on
the three major bases in Henan, Xinjiang and Jiangxi, the Group has further
promoted transformation and upgrading, seized opportunities, actively
sought changes, stabilized our operations, adjusted our structure, and
improved our efficiency, therefore our operating performance has reached
a new record high.

The Group has modified its development strategy from “Fertiliser as primary,
fertiliser and chemical side by side” to “Fertiliser as the foundation, fertiliser
and chemical side by side’, which emphasised the fundamental status of
the rigid demand of chemical fertilizers and its role as the cornerstone of
our business. By organically combining the "stableness" of fertilizers with
the "liveness" of chemical, the Group has formed an industrial system with a
solid foundation, thus able to respond to the market flexibly.

RESULT HIGHLIGHTS

Realized revenue of approximately RMB16,815 million, an increase of
61% year-on-year.

Net profit of the Group was approximately RMB1,769 million,
representing an increase of 238% year-on-year.

Overall gross profit margin increased by 5 percentage point year-
on-year to approximately 26%, mainly due to the raising prices of
products such as urea, methanol, melamine and DME.

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of RMB19
cents per share and a total dividend of RMB19 cents per share for
the year.

T —F AEBEERRERAN =
R IOEBEERE  RESEEER
B BsBLER - ONE - #E
T AREMAER  RAEEZLT
Ao BYHEE - TBRE - BEL - B
B RME - REXEBAELHS -

AREBE K HRERE S [ARSE AL E |
AES [ARSE LA E | - FR TEAE
MIMER SRV EREM AL AN [ A ] 1B © 7%
ez [ BTz [VE] BRES -
RERISE - BERYTISHNERER

EERE
BEIRWADARKE 16815187 A
LR 4961% ©

AREBHAFNHOARE 1769187
LE 3B R 49 238% ©

el

BEETANERL FASEEGLHSE
#926%  EFEHRRKE - Al =
DERNMN _—_HFREEREE P
ﬁ o

EECERRERYPREBRAR

¥B19n  2EERREREERA
K195 o

mELED T FFR
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group fully implements the concept of "customer-oriented" and
consolidated the foundation of safety management, thereby realizing the
comprehensive upgrade of the new coal chemical technology. Fertilizers
maintained its dominant position and took downstream fine chemicals to
a new level. Therefore, our product structure has been optimized, and the
industrial structure has become more reasonable. Driven by the two-wheel
strategy of "fertiliser and chemical side by side’, the development path of
the three major bases has become clearer, and is more resilient to risks.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

With its mission to serve the best interests of the Shareholders, the Board
has consistently strived to enhance the standard of corporate governance
and to develop a standardised, highly effective and scientific corporate
governance mechanism.

The Group held 6 Board meetings in the year 2021 to review and approve
matters including the quarterly results, interim report, annual report,
dividend payout ratio, connected transactions and development strategies
of the Group. The AC, the RC and the NC have exercised and performed
the rights and duties conferred on them by the Board with a view of raising
the standards of the Company’s risk management and internal control and
perfecting the Company’s governance structure. For internal audit, internal
audit was mainly conducted by the internal audit team of the Company
in 2021, focusing on enhancing internal risk control over procurement
management, capital management and other key processes, and thereby
enhancing operational efficiency.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group highly values its relationship with its investors and
communicates with them through a number of channels. It aims to provide
the latest information on the Group’s operations and business development
to its investors, so that they can obtain all necessary information on a timely
manner to make informed investment decisions. Please refer to the section
headed “Investor relations” of this annual report for more details.

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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PROSPECTS

With the adjustment on the national energy policy and the rise in food
prices, the development of the modern agriculture have created a favorable
environment for our development. The Group has leveraged our advantages
in terms of scale, cost, technology, differentiated products, sales network,
etc. to consolidate the foundation of safety and environmental protection,
enhance our technology and product research and development, and
formed an industrial development chain with comprehensive advantages
through extending, supplementing and strengthening the chain, which
continuously improves our core competitiveness, ensuring the Group to be
able to stand out in the transformation and upgrading of the industry.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

In the future, we will continue to implement group-orientated high-quality
development strategy that based on technological innovation, in order to
maintain the leading position in energy efficiency in the industry, achieving
leadership in safety and environmental protection and establishing
a product system with complete categories and outstanding cost
performance in the fertilizer field. We have established a marketing service
system that adapts to modern agriculture, and we have continuously
enhanced our brand influence; regarding the chemical industry, we are
dedicated to create our advantage with low cost and high quality in
the direction of high-end and specialization, and target to elevate the
comprehensive strength of the Company to reach a new level and become
the most respected fertilizer enterprise in China.

AsRE

BIZREERBRAE  BREMB LK &%
BREBRGARMAET REFNERR
B oo REBABKERR - A - &Kl =
RbEm  HEBEEED FERER
REHE - AWM E @RI BBT
9 g Rl WKAEBRAEENE
FERREG  HERTROBRSE - 1T
EHERTRPHAME -

BB =

AR RPEEEREBRLLSEEER
AR BT B ER - REFITRBEMR LM
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

APPRECIATION

The Group is devoted to achieve greatness by dedication and commitment.
According to the success we achieved in the past and our outstanding track
record, we are positioned to embrace our promising future. We will adhere
to the corporate spirit of "working hard to fulfil the needs of our customers"
and continue to explore, innovate and breakthrough on the path of
transformation and upgrading. While we are developing steadily, we are
also poised to create greater value for our shareholders, customers, society,
employees, and stakeholders and becoming the pioneer and the leader of
industry development.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my heartfelt gratitude to all Shareholders, the Company’s management
team, all the staff, customers and friends who have been caring for and
supporting us. In 2022, the Group’s management and staff will continue
working cohesively and work together under the leadership of the Board to
endeavour to achieve better performance and investment returns for the
Shareholders, and the future of XLX will be more brilliant!

LIU Xingxu
Chairman of the Board
25 March 2022

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD T
() BUSINESS REVIEW

Along with the resurgence of the pandemic, stoked by global
supply chain disruption, surging energy prices and food prices,
demand and prices for domestic fertilisers and petrol chemical
related products increased in 2021.

With the addition of the Third Production Base in Jiangxi Jiujiang
successfully commissioned in February 2021,the fixed-bed
renovation and upgrading project of the Group’s second and third
plant in Henan Xinxiang completed and put into production in
the fourth quarter of 2021,the Group's production capacity and
efficiency reached a new milestone and achieved record revenue
and profitability.

REVENUE

Revenue increased by RMB6,370 million or approximately 61% from
RMB10,445 million in the financial year ended 31 December 2020
("FY2020") to RMB16,815 million in the financial year ended 31
December 2021 (‘FY2021").

UREA

Finished urea products

Revenue derived from the sales of urea increased by approximately
RMB1,879 million or 61% from RMB3,080 million for FY2020 to
approximately RMB4,959 million for FY2021. This was mainly due
to the increase in sales volume and the average selling price of
urea products of the Group by approximately 16% and 39% year
on year ("YoY”), respectively. Sales volume of urea for FY2021 was
approximately 2,264,000 tons.

(m

£ E) ]

BEERBHARE  ME2RMERE
@ E AR BER Rk R an BT
BEAERE N ARt THBERR =
T —FHFLNERLRE -

AANIFEF=EEEMRN T = —
FZRIBFIEE - REBER AR
BBEYE — I 5 = R B E R ek s T AR
HEMR S —FFNZFEET
WE  AEBNEEEREIUERE
AFTHERE - BRAILEHKRA
KBNS

LYON

WABRBBEZZE_ZEF+ A4
—t—HIFE( =220 EKE
E 1) B9 A R #510,445,000,000 7T & AN
49 A R #6,370,000,000 7T 3k 4961%
Z2HE T -+ -_A=+—H
FFE(ZEZ—MREFE]) MWL
AR#516,815,000,000 7T °

FR&
B da R

FRERSEEWR AR -ZE - HF
€ 89 %) A KR ¥ 3,080,000,000 7T & AN
#3 A B #1,879,000,000 7T 3k 4961%
ECE - —UHBRFENNDAREK
4,959,000,000 7T ° ItEThE BERAASE
BIREERNEENFHEESF
B (A ) R4 16% K& 39% °
TEC-MBEENREEENR
2,264,000 18 ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD T

Urea solution for vehicle

Revenue derived from the sales of urea solution for vehicle
decreased by approximately RMB18 million or 3% from
approximately RMB574 million for FY2020 to approximately RMB556
million for FY2021. This was mainly due to a decrease in sales
volume by 4% YoY to 399,000 tons for FY2021. Due to a strong
rebound in urea price, the Group has actively adjusted its product
structure to allocate more production capacity in response to
the increasing demands of urea. The production volume for urea
solution for vehicle decreased slightly.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Revenue derived from the sales of compound fertilisers increased by
approximately RMB596 million or 19% from approximately RMB3,158
million for FY2020 to approximately RMB3,754 million for FY2021,
mainly due to the increase in average selling price by approximately
22% YoY. This was partially offset by a decrease in sales volume by 3%
YoY to 1,569,000 tons for FY2021.

METHANOL

Revenue derived from the sales of methanol increased by
approximately RMB1,245 million or 242% from approximately
RMB514 million for FY2020 to approximately RMB1,759 million
for FY2021. The increased sales of methanol were a result of the
increase in average selling price and sales volume of the Group by
53% and 124% YoY, respectively. The increased sales of methanol
mainly derived from the new capacity from the Third Production
Base in Jiujiang.

DIMETHYL ETHER (DME)

Revenue derived from the sales of DME increased by approximately
RMB691 million or 92% from RMB748 million for FY2020 to
approximately RMB1,439 million for FY2021. The increase was mainly
due to the strong international energy prices, causing the average
selling price and sales volume of DME to increase by 39% and 38%
YoY, respectively.
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MELAMINE

Revenue derived from the sales of melamine increased by
approximately RMB585 million or 94% from RMB621 million for
FY2020 to approximately RMB1,206 million for FY2021. The increase
was mainly due to an increase in the average selling price of
melamine by 105% YoY which was largely the result of the strong
rebound in demand and prices in the domestic chemical products.
The increase was partially offset by the reduction in the sales
volume by 5% YoY. The decline in sales was mainly attributable
to a scheduled shutdown carried out for maintenance in mid-
September, to ensure the safety of our production.

FURFURY ALCOHOL

Revenue derived from the sales of furfuryl alcohol products
increased by approximately RMB311 million or 59% from
approximately RMB524 million for FY2020 to approximately RMB835
million for FY2021. The increase in sales revenue was mainly due to
the increase of average selling price of approximately 71% YoY. Since
2019, furfuryl alcohol has obvious advantages in the industrial chain
by virtue of its own raw materials such as furfural and hydrogen
resources. The Group has become a leading enterprise in the
industry by continuously improving product quality and reducing
production costs by using the only patented technology in the
industry.

MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE

Revenue derived from the sales of medical intermediate increased
by approximately RMB276 million or 119% from approximately
RMB232 million for FY2020 to approximately RMB508 million for
FY2021.This was due mainly to the continuous release of production
capacity, which led to a YoY increase of approximately 159% in sales.

—BREERNEHERARS T8
BF E B 49 A R 621,000,000 7T
HI#9 A R #5 585,000,000 7T 8% #9 94%
EZE - —HHREENHARE
1,206,000,000 7 ° Z3BIIEZE AR
= BRERNFIEE RN 105%
el mMEaxXrZEmRBENIEE
o K M B AERE [O] 58 o FZIL AN ER
DWHER L TRES%FTE Y - 88
EETREIEEANABREER
2 RALAFE#ETTEEIR

LA
R ©

g

BEEMNEERABR_ZTZ
B B 6F S A9 49 A R 5 524,000,000 7T
#2049 A R ¥ 311,000,000 7T 5k 59%
EZT—UBFENHARE
835,000,0007C ° $HEW AL MNEE
EHERFHEERL EAL71% -
BZZE—NFENUKR BEEREEE
REEENEREER  EFXEHEE
DEARE  WRANATEE—ME
Flig - TEREREREE @ BE
HEEKA - ERRTTEBLEE -

BEEE

BabEEOHEERABRZZE-Z
B B TE /Y 49 A R4 232,000,000 7T
# 41 #) A R ¥ 276,000,000 7T =% 49
NIBZE—ZE-—FHRFENHAR
% 508,000,000 7T ° FZIE M E B R
ReERMFEEN  £HEER
bt EFH#9159% FTER »

mELED T FFR

21



22

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD T

PROFITABILITY
UREA

Gross profit margin of urea of the Group increased by approximately
6.2 percentage points to approximately 33.5% for FY2021 from
approximately 27.3% for FY2020. The increase was due mainly to
a higher increase in the average selling price of 39% of urea, as
compared to a 27% increase in the cost of goods sold.

UREA SOLUTION FOR VEHICLE

Gross profit margin of sales of urea solution for vehicle decreased
by approximately 1.4 percentage points from approximately 32.8%
for FY2020 to 31.4% for FY2021. The average selling price for urea
solution for vehicle increased by approximately 1% in FY2021, while
the cost of goods sold increased by 3%.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Gross profit margin of compound fertilisers of the Group decreased
to approximately 4 percentage point to approximately 13.1% in
FY2021 from approximately 17.1% in FY2020. The decrease was
mainly due to a higher increase in average cost of raw material, such
as phosphate and potash fertilisers, by approximately 20% and 11%,
respectively.

METHANOL

Gross profit margin of methanol of the Group increased by 9.9
percentage points to approximately 12.4% for FY2021 from
approximately 2.5% for FY2020. This was mainly due to the rebound
in international energy prices, which in turn caused the increase in
the average selling price of methanol by approximately 53% YoY.

DIMETHYL ETHER (DME)

Gross profit margin of DME of the Group increased by approximately
6.5 percentage points to approximately 12.4% for FY2021 from
approximately 5.8% for FY2020 as a result of the increase in the
average selling price of DME of 39% YoY.
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MELAMINE

Gross profit margin of melamine of the Group increased by
approximately 32.3 percentage points to approximately 64.7% for
FY2021 from approximately 32.4% for FY2020 due mainly a surge in
the average selling price of melamine of 105% YoY.

FURFURYL ALCOHOL

Gross profit margin of furfuryl alcohol products of the Group
increased by approximately 1.4 percentage point from
approximately 13.9% for FY2020 to 15.2% for FY2021 due mainly to
an increase of average selling price of furfuryl alcohol by 71% YoY.

MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE

Gross profit margin of medical intermediate of the Group increased
by approximately 4.5 percentage point from approximately 17% for
FY2020 to 21.5% for FY2021 due mainly to an approximately 20%
decrease in the average cost of medical intermediate.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains decreased by approximately RMB30 million
from approximately RMB199 million in FY2020 to approximately
RMB169 million in FY2021. The decrease was mainly due to (1) a
decrease in gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment of
RMB27 million in FY2021; (2) a decrease in exchange gains of RMB15
million in FY2021; and (3) a decrease in subsidy income by RMB8
million in FY2021. The decrease was partially offset by a write-off of
account payables that cannot be paid amounting RMB10 million
which was recognized as other income in FY2021.

— V=d]
=BaER

AEE=BEENENER-_ZT =
T BUF E R #324%38 hn %9323
EENHE T - —BEENLD
64.7% » WY AR =B ERNTFHE
BRI ZFHI105% °

il

AEBBEEFNENEHR-Z
“EHERFE AL 139%E N4 1.4
ARANHEE_E-—HEREEN
152% ° W EZRMNEENFHEE
BRI EF71% -

B

$¢l SR ENER
%ﬂiﬁm%7%%m%ﬁ
ME‘%i_E:—%ﬁﬁﬁm%
215% + W EZRNE R EET
RS T B# 49 20% ©

HAbW AR W zs

HRARKZHA TS TP HRE
JE 849 A R B 199,000,000 7T A 4
AR#30,000000TE —F ~—BfK
EE%%AE%m%mmeﬁi
BAOFTERHRN) - —BHF
Eﬁ%%% R 55 2 5% 15 9 Ui 2 L
LA AR 270000007T 2 = F
B BRFEME LKA AA
R #150000007C ¢ B3 =& = —
R FERNmE e RAR D AR
8,000,000 T FTEN © 7ML D B 5
T -URFEFHRGEEES
8 AR5 10,000,000 7T FERR A E A
WA R P FRIBFTHESH ©

REOED T —FFR

23



24

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD T

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB142 million from RMB621 million in FY2020 to RMB763 million
in FY2021. The increase was mainly due to: (1) the business volume
increased as the Group expanded; in order to meet the needs of
development, the Group employed more staff and implemented
staff incentive policies, contributing to an expense of RMB67 million;
(2) the transportation expenses increased by RMB48 million as
sales increased; (3) the social insurance increased by RMB8 million;
and (4) the information technology (“IT") service fees increased by
RMB4 million, in order to expand sales channels, keep abreast of the
market demand and improve the application of big data.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB311 million from approximately RMB624 million in FY2020
to approximately RMB935 million in FY2021. The increase was
mainly due to: (1) the increase of expenses in product R&D
and technological upgrade, and the increase in training and
remuneration benefits for the core technical personnel and
management personnel, with a total increase of RMB149 million; (2)
the increase of expenses in intelligent and digitalized parks as well as
information technology consultation services, with a total increase
of RMB21 million; (3) the increase of expenses by RMB21 million
for further improving the safety and environmental protection
level of the park; (4) the increase of expenses by RMB29 million for
improving management skills of middle-to-senior management
in each production base and increasing training expenses, as well
as developing talent pools for new production base; and (5) the
increase of expenses by RMB90 million for putting into operation
of new projects and new bases such as the Jiujiang base, the green
transformation project, and the hydrogen peroxide project.
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FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB182 million from
approximately RMB401 million in FY2020 to approximately RMB583
million in FY2021 because the amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings and loans increased as the Jiujiang base was put into
operation.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense increased by approximately RMB299 million
from approximately RMB107 million in FY2020 to approximately
RMB406 million in FY2021.

PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

The profit for the year increased by RMB1,245 million or
approximately 238% from RMB524 million in FY2020 to RMB1,769
million in FY2021.
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GEARING

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the aggregate of total capital and net debt. The Group’s
policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 90%.

(1)

St 53R 5 (2] R

BEERE
rEBEREEABLR(AES
BB ARER B EFFRAM) K
ERER - AEBHNBREKEE
BAELLRERFTE 0% AT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETFT

Trade payables E SN FIE 774,423 508978
Bills payable EANES 850,474 1110814
Contract liabilities EBHAaGE 1,079,227 818,149
Accruals and other payables JEETE A I HL A e 308 2,365,180 1,936,405
Other liabilities HibBE 117,867 -
Due to related companies JERTRAE R RIFUIA 81,166 12,353
Loans from non-controlling interests HERERE R 47,800 24,870
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5T 8R1T M H M E 11,368,775 9,347,719
Bonds payable [ERHES 494,704 489,892
Lease liabilities HEBE 23,258 72,541
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A BERIBReEEY (893,116) (682,041)
Pledged time deposits EHIREAER (753,545) (707,435)

Net debt AaEFsE 15,556,213 12,932,245
Equity attributable to owners of the parent B} A A1#EA AFE(LHERE 5,693,550 4,530,433
Less: Statutory reserve fund B OEERES (510,920) (200,307)
Adjusted capital KRR A 5,182,630 4,330,126
Capital and net debt BARRAEFE 20,738,843 17,262,371
Gearing ratio BEABHEE 75.01% 74.92%
N

Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
bonds payable, trade and bills payables, contract liabilities, amounts
due to related companies, accruals and other payables, and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and pledged time deposits.
Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent less
the above-mentioned restricted statutory reserve fund.
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LOANS = &N
Group
rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETFT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: AEBERITER
Within one year or on demand —FRFIREK 5,834,004 3,810,227
In the second year E_F 2,080,704 2,101,962
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZRF(E) 2,241,039 2,298,963
Beyond five years hFE 170,000 255,000
10,325,747 8,466,152
Loans from leasing company ENHEEARER ME
finance lease payables: HE -
Within one year or on demand —FEREITERK 568,209 327433
In the second year B4 332,883 385,306
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ERF(EF) 141,936 168,328
1,043,028 881,567
11,368,775 9,347,719
N
PROSPECTS mn AR

International oil prices have been rising alongside raw material
commodity prices since 2022; in particular, the increase in the prices
of raw materials, potash fertilizer and phosphate fertilizer, have
provided strong support for fertilizer prices in the PRC. Moreover, the
global food prices have risen due to the ongoing pandemic, leading
to growing concerns on food security and agricultural development
in the PRC. The increasing demand for fertilizers in agriculture will
continue to drive the price of fertilizers. At the same time, various
government domestic policies will support efficient operations of
the market and prices of high quality agricultural products, thereby
boosting the use of high-end fertilizers. As an advocate of high
efficiency fertilizers, the Group foresees further sales growth. For the
chemical products market, PRC domestic environmental protection
policies have become stricter under the influence of the “dual
carbon” policy, and the chemical products market has accelerated
consolidation. The Group will take advantage of its geographical
reach, adhere to the environmental protection principles, vigorously
develop and expand fine chemical industry chain, thereby achieving
high-quality and comprehensive development of the Group.
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With the introduction of the “dual-carbon”and energy consumption
dual control policies, the advantages of resource-based leading
enterprises have continuously been accentuated. The national
policies have strongly supported leading enterprises to grow and
expand, thereby further improving the industry concentration level,
and promoting the high-quality and healthy development of the
industry. As one of the leading enterprises in the industry, the Group
will take advantage of its base-characteristic layout to strengthen
the flexibility on products adjustment and optimize products
portfolio, as well as further increase R&D of high-efficiency fertilizers
and based on the unique characteristics of each of the Group's three
production bases, actively expand and strengthen its chemical
industry chain. At the same time, with the upgrading projects of the
second and third plants successfully commissioned, the Group has
fully adopted advanced production technology, accentuating its
technological and low-cost advantages.

Going forward, the Group will leverage new government policies,
seize the opportunity of high-quality development, and accelerate
transformation and upgrading under the new development
landscape, thereby further enhancing the Group's profitability and
market competitiveness, and achieving stable and sustainable
development in the long term.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB19 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend") (2020: RMB10 cents per share), subject
to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company will further announce
details of the Proposed Final Dividend, the annual general meeting
and the period of closure of the Company’s register of members for
determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend in due
course.

Amount in RMB will be converted into HKD and the payment of
the Proposed Final Dividend will be made in HKD, at the rate of
approximately RMB1 = HKD1.2274, which is the official exchange
rate of RMB against HKD as quoted on 25 March 2022 by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. Therefore,
based on the above conversion of the exchange rate, the Final
Dividend to be paid in HKD will be HKD0.2332 per ordinary share.
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(V)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL RISKS

0]

(1

MARKET RISK

The major market risks of the Group include changes
in the average selling prices of key products, changes
in the costs of raw materials (mainly coal) and
fluctuations in interest and exchange rates.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Group is also exposed to commaodity price risk
arising from fluctuations in product sale prices and
costs of raw materials.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The major market interest rate risk that the Group
is exposed to includes the Group's long-term debt
obligations which are subject to floating interest
rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s revenue and costs are primarily
denominated in RMB. Some costs may be
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars or Singapore dollars.
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INFLATION AND CURRENCY RISK

According to the data released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the consumer price
index of the PRC increased by approximately 0.9%
in the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared
with an increase of approximately 2.5% in 2020. Such
inflation in the PRC did not have a significant effect
on the Group's operating results.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk exposure to shortage
of funds. The Group regularly reviews the maturity
of both its financial investments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables and other financial
assets) and projects cash flows from operations. The
Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31
December 2021, approximately RMB6,402 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB4,138 million), or
approximately 56.31% (31 December 2020: 44.26%)
of the Group’s debts will mature in less than one
year based on the carrying value of the borrowings
reflected in the financial statements.
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(Vin)

GEARING RISK

The Group monitors its capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders
value. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may raise new debt or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as net
debt divided by the aggregate of total capital and
net debt) increased from approximately 74.92% as at
31 December 2020 to approximately 75.01% as at 31
December 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation or arbitration (2020: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD T

SCOPE OF WORK OF ERNST & YOUNG

The figures in respect of preliminary announcement of
Group results for the year ended 31 December 2021 have
been agreed by the Group’s auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, to
the amount set out in the Group'’s consolidated financial
statements for the year. The work performed by Ernst &
Young LLP in this respect did not constitute an assurance
engagement in accordance with International standards on
Auditing, International Standards on Review Engagements
or International Standards on Assurance Engagements
issued by International Accounting Standards Board and
consequently no assurance has been expressed by Ernst &
Young LLP on the preliminary announcement.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the accounting principles and
standards adopted by the Group, and has discussed and
reviewed the internal control and reporting matters. The
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company devotes to best practice on corporate
governance, and has complied with all the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK
(the "Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December
2021,

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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10.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUER

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code’) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and its
amendments from time to time as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Board confirms that, having made specific
enquiries with all directors of the Company, all directors have
complied with the required standards of the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the securities of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, there were 8,698 (2020: 8,257)
employees in the Group. Staff remuneration packages are
determined in consideration of market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, and are subject
to review from time to time. The Group also provides other
staff benefits including medical and life insurance, and
grants discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff based
on their performance and contributions to the Group.

DISCLOSURE ON THE WEBSITES OF THE SEHK AND
THE COMPANY

This report is published on the website of the SEHK
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and on the website of the
Company (http://www.chinaxlx.com.hk).
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Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretaries

5 sAAEEERRAAME

BOARD
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LIU XINGXU CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Aged 67, is principally in charge of overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive Director
on 26 July 2006. He is also a member of the NC and the sole shareholder
and a director of Pioneer Top Holdings Limited, a controlling Shareholder.
Mr. Liu graduated from Xinxiang Broadcasting and Television University in
July 1986 with a Diploma in Arts. In 2006, he completed EDP (Executive
Development Program) from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University. In 2010, Mr. Liu was awarded the qualification of “Senior
Economist” by the People’s Government of Henan Province and the EMBA
degree from Tsinghua University. Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience
in the chemical fertiliser industry. He is currently the senior vice chairman
of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association. Mr. Liu was appointed
the factory head of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, a state-owned enterprise, in
charge of factory operations in 1994 and then became the chairman and
the general manager of XLX Chem from July 2003 to July 2006. He was the
general manager of Henan XLX from July 2006 to April 2016, and has also
been the chairman of Henan XLX since July 2006. In 2004, he was awarded
the “Henan Province Labour Model (Advanced Worker)” and in 2005, he was
awarded the Henan Province Outstanding Private Enterprise Entrepreneur”
by the People’'s Government of Henan Province. He was also the winner of
“National Labour Day Medal"in 2009 issued by All China Federation of Trade
Unions, and was awarded the “China Petroleum & Chemical Outstanding
Private Enterprises Entrepreneurs Innovation Award”in 2014. He was
awarded the "Henan Economic Celebrity of the year 2014” and “Model
Worker of China"in 2015, and also the "Most Excellent Citizen in Xinxiang”in
2017. He was awarded the 2nd session of Henan Province’s “"Most Beautiful
Environmentalist” in 2018, and also the "Outstanding Member of the
Communist Party in Henan Province”in 2021.

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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MR. ZHANG QINGJIN

Aged 55, is principally in charge of the decision making with respect to
overall management and day-to-day business operations of the Group.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director on 27 March 2015.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently
known as “Zhengzhou University”) in July 1987 with a diploma in chemical
equipment, and obtained the EMBA degree from Tsinghua University in
2009. He has over 20 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry.
He is currently the senior advisory of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry
Association and the vice president of China Phosphate and Compound
Fertilizer Industry Association. Mr. Zhang joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory
in July 1987 and held various positions, including unit head of equipment
and facility department, unit head of production and technical department,
section head of equipment and facility upgrade and department head of
technical upgrade in Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory. Mr. Zhang was appointed as
the manager of the technical centre of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July
2006. He was also the manager of the technical centre of Henan XLX from
July 2006 to November 2006. Mr. Zhang was the deputy general manager
of Henan XLX from November 2006 to July 2011, and was the executive
deputy general manager of Henan XLX from July 2011 to April 2016, and
then he has become the general manager of Henan XLX since April 2016.
In June 2016, he was awarded the "Outstanding Member of the Communist
Party in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region” by the Party Committee
of the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. In September 2018, he was
awarded the “Outstanding Individual” by China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry
Association and the “Labour Day Medal of Henan Province”in May 2021.
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Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretaries
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MS. YAN YUNHUA

Aged 51, is principally in charge of the decision making with respect to all
financial matters within the Group. Ms. Yan was appointed as an executive
Director on 10 November 2006. Ms. Yan is the sole shareholder and a
director of Go Power Investments Limited, a substantial Shareholder. She
graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in July 2003 with a degree in
accountancy. Ms. Yan obtained the EMBA (Executive Master of Business
Administration) degree from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University in July 2009. Ms. Yan has 20 years of accounting and finance
experience. Ms. Yan is currently the executive chairman of the Finance
Research Committee of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association
and the vice chairman of Henan Provincial Association of CFO. She joined
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in December 1997 and held various positions in
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, including the deputy head of finance division
and the deputy chief accountant. She was also the chief accountant in
charge of finance of XLX Chem from 2003 to July 2006. She was the deputy
general manager of Henan XLX from July 2006 to April 2016, and has
become the vice chairman of Henan XLX since April 2016. Ms. Yan obtained
the "Accountant” certification from the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in
May 1997 and obtained the “Senior Accountant” certification from Henan
Province Accountant Series Senior Assessment Committee in December
2005. Ms. Yan was awarded the “Accountants Contribution Award” and
“Excellent Leaders in the Enterprise Information construction of the China
Petroleum and Chemical Industry”in the PRC in 2008, “Advanced Worker
in Accounting of Henan Province” in 2009, “Labour Day Medal of Henan
Province”in 2015, and “National Labour Day Medal"in 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. ONG KIAN GUAN

Aged 54, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the AC and a member of
both the RC and the NC. He graduated from the Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore with a Bachelor of Accountancy degree in May
1992. He has more than 20 years of professional experience in financial
audits of multinational corporations and public listed companies from
diverse industries. He is a practising member and a fellow of the Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants, and also a partner of Baker Tilly TFW LLP.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Omnibridge Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of SEHK) since 15 December
2020. Mr. Ong resigned as an independent director of Alliance Mineral
Assets Limited (a company listed on SGXST) with effect from 17 December
2019. He has ceased to be an independent non-executive director of IAG
Holdings Limited and RMH Holdings Limited (both companies are listed on
the GEM of SEHK) on 30 April 2020 and 24 September 2021 respectively.
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MR. LI SHENGXIAO

Aged 59, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the NC and a member
of both the AC and the RC. Mr. Li graduated from Hangzhou University
(currently known as Zhejiang University) in July 1987 with a graduation
certificate in politics. He then obtained a master's degree in law from
Hangzhou University in July 1990. Mr. Li has been working in Shaoxing
University since September 1995, and successively served as secretary of
the Party Committee of the Department of Economics and Trade, director
of the Department of Economics and Management, and executive vice
president of the College of Economics and Management. From June 2004
to November 2013, he served as the dean of the School of Economics
and Management and the deputy secretary of the Party Committee. He
is currently the dean of the Yueshang Research Institute (B %EFT) of
Shaoxing University and the director of the Regional Development Research
Center of Shaoxing University. He has been the instructor of establishment
of small and medium enterprises in Zhejiang Province since 2006. Mr. Li has
been appointed as an independent director of Bank of Shaoxing Co,, Ltd.
from November 2013 to June 2020. Mr. Li is also an independent director
of Zhejiang China Light & Textile Industrial City Group Co,, Ltd (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from 2014 to 2020. He was as an
independent director of Anhui Jiangnan Chemical Industry Co, Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) between 2012 and 2018.
Mr. Li is also an independent director of Zhejiang Furun Digital Technology
Co,, Itd (since June 2020) and Kuaijishan Shaoxing Rice Wine Co., Ltd. (since
May 2021) (both companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).
He was awarded the “high school outstanding youth teacher of Zhejiang
Province”in September 1991.
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MR. ONG WEI JIN

Aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the RC and a member
of both the AC and the NC. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree
from the National University of Singapore in 1990, a Master of Business
Administration degree from University of Hull in 1993, and a Master of Laws
degree from the National University of Singapore in 1995. He is a partner in
Harry Elias Partnership LLP (a Singapore law firm). He was an independent
director of Luzhou Bio-chem Technology Limited (ceased on 8 December
2020), CFM Holdings Limited (ceased on 26 June 2020), and Camsing
Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Jacks International Limited) (ceased
on 20 March 2019), all these companies are listed on the SGX-ST.

MR. LI HONGXING

Aged 46, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 16 May 2018. Mr. Li received a Master of Business Administration
from Australian Graduate School of Management in 2011 and a Bachelor
of Arts in International Business from the Guangdong University of Foreign
Studies in 1997. Mr. Li has been the Managing Director of CDG International
Company Limited since 2016. Mr. Li served as the supervisor in Farasis
Energy (GanZhou) Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) from July 2020 to November 2020; and the head of energy,
mining and equipment (corporate finance) in CITIC CLSA Securities from
2010 to 2016; and an equity analyst of HSBC with a focus on Asian oil and
chemicals from 2007 to 2010. Before that, Mr. Li had worked in BP Group,
Dongguan Nokia Mobile Phones Co., Ltd. and PricewaterhouseCoopers
China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. MATONGSHENG

Aged 52, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 18 March
2019. Mr. Ma graduated from Zhengzhou University with an EMBA
degree and Nanjing University of Science and Technology with a degree
in Computer Technology. Mr. Ma has over 26 years of experience in the
fertiliser industry in China. Mr. Ma was the supervisor and assistant manager
of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory* (FT4B{LAE4ER), a state-owned enterprise,
from July 1992 to July 2000. He was the production manager of compound
fertiliser of Henan XLX from August 2000 to October 2005; the deputy
head of Production Plant Il from November 2005 to January 2010; the head
of Production Plant Ill from February 2010 to July 2012; the manager of
production management from August 2012 to December 2016; the director
of Production Management Centre from January 2017 to July 2017; and the
general manager of the Compound Fertiliser Company* (# & B2 &)) from
August 2017 to October 2018. He is currently the head of Fine Chemicals
and Biomass Power Generation Development and Research Team of the
Company.

MR. PAUL WONG WING WANG

Aged 51, is the Chief Financial Officer of China XLX since 18 March 2019
Mr. Wong is a member of CPA Australia, and holds a Bachelor degree of
Commerce from Newcastle University in Australia. Mr. Wang has over 20
years of experience in the corporate finance industry in Singapore. Prior to
joining the Group, he has been the managing director of Crowe Howarth
Capital (Singapore) (“Crowe Singapore”) since April 2017, and was the
chief executive officer of Partners Capital (Singapore) Pte Ltd. (a boutique
corporate finance firm with a CMS license from the Monetary Authority of
Singapore, which was acquired by Crowe Singapore in April 2017) from
January 2008 to April 2017. He was a partner of SAC Capital Pte Ltd., a
corporate finance advisor in Singapore, from December 2006 to December
2007.
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MR. WANG PINGBIAO

Aged 51, is the deputy general manager in charge of the safety,
environmental protection, procurement, chemical sales, railway
transportation and engineering management department of
Henan XLX since 29 April 2016. Mr. Wang has more than 20 years of
experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. Mr. Wang graduated
from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently known as Zhengzhou
University) with a tertiary certificate in June 1992, and obtained a
master degree in Executive Master of Business Administration from
Tsinghua University in 2008. He joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in
July 1992 and held various positions, including the deputy director of
technical transformation of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory and the deputy
head of nitrogen fertiliser plant. He was the head of Branch II, Henan
XLX Fertilizer Co, Ltd. (A] @ /> 2 L L BE B R A 7] = 2 & 7)) from
January 2005 to September 2008, the head of Factory Ill, Henan XLX
Fertilizer Co., Ltd. CAIF/VELMEIEBR A B =9 H) from September
2008 to January 2010 and the head of Branch IV, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co.,
Ltd. AT 3@ OB BB A BR A &) P4 9 A &]) from October 2010 to April
2016.

MR. REN RONGKUI

Aged 53, he was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of Henan XLX
on 18 March 2019 and in charge of products research and development and
agricultural development. Mr. Ren graduated from Henan Normal University
in June 1992 and obtained a master's degree in business administration
from Xi'an Jiaotong University in January 2017. He was qualified as a safety
engineer. From June 1992 to January 1997, he served as a workshop staff
member of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory. From January 1997 to July 2000, he
served as director of the Instrument Workshop of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory.
From July 2000 to July 2005, he served as manager of the agrochemical
center of Henan Xinxin Fertilizer Co., Ltd., and served as deputy director
of Factory |, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from January to July 2007. He
served as director of Factory I, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from July 2007
to August 2008, and manager of Branch II, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd.
from August 2008 to October 2010, and served as the assistant of general
manager of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from October 2010 to July 2017.
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MS. SUN HONG

Aged 53, she was appointed as the deputy general manager of Henan
XLX on 18 March 2019 and in charge of human resources and group
informatization. Ms. Sun graduated from Henan Normal University in July
1991 with major in chemistry, and obtained a master’s degree in applied
chemistry from Dalian University of Technology in July 1994. She obtained
a Ph.D. in Business Administration from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology in June 2011. From August 1994 to February 2004, she
worked in Henan Xinfei Electric Appliance Co,, Ltd., as a technician, the
deputy director of the manufacturing department, director, manager
of the advertising department, and deputy manager of the marketing
department, etc. From March 2004 to October 2012, she served as the head
of quality department, deputy general manager of quality department and
general manager of quality department in Henan Xinfei Electric Appliance
Co,, Ltd. In November 2012, she served as assistant to general manager of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd.

MR. JIA XINCHAO

Aged 48, is the deputy general manager in charge of the operation of
black technology of Henan XLX since 2 November 2020. Mr. Jia obtained
a EMBA Master from Zhengzhou University in April 2013; and obtained
a EMBA Master from Tsinghua University School of Economics and
Management in June 2016. Mr. Jia held various positions in the Group: the
corporate management officer of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory from August
1996 to August 2003; the director of supply of Henan XLX Chemicals Co,,
Ltd. from August 2003 to October 2005; the manager of the purchasing
department of from October 2005 to July 2011 Henan XLX Fertilizer Co.,
Ltd,; the executive deputy general manager of Compound Fertilizer Branch,
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from July 2011 to August 2012; the general
manager of Compound Fertilizer Branch, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from
August 2012 to September 2015; the general manager of marketing centre
of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from September 2015 to April 2016; the
assistant of general manager and general manager of marketing centre of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from April 2016 to July 2017; and the assistant
of general manager of Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd. from July
2017 to October 2020.

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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MR. GUO ZHENG

Aged 48, is the deputy general manager in charge of the operation
and production of the Xinxiang Ammonia department of Henan XLX
since November 2020. Mr. Guo graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering
College in July 1994 with a major in chemical technology. Mr. Guo held
various positions in the Group: participated in the preparation of building
the first urea device of China XLX on 1 July 1994; the director of the
thermoelectricity workshop and deputy head of Factory I, Henan XLX
Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from 1999 to September 2008; the head of Factory |,
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from September 2008 to August 2012; the
head of Factory Ill, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from September 2012 to
March 2014; the deputy general manager of the production department of
Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy Chemical Co., Ltd. from April 2014 to September
2015, participated in the preparation of constructing Xinjiang 2848 Project;
the executive deputy general manager of Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy
Chemical Co., Ltd. from October 2015 to March 2016; the assistant of
general manager of Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy Chemical Co,, Ltd. and the
executive deputy general manager of Xinjiang company from April 2016 to
June 2017; and the assistant of general manager of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,,
Ltd. and general manager of Xinjiang company from July 2017 to October
2020.

MR. CHAN ENXING

Aged 51, is the deputy general manager in charge of the corporate
administration of Henan XLX since November 2020. Mr. Chan held various
positions in the Group: the office staff member of sealing plant of Xinxiang
Fertiliser Factory from March 1995 to July 1995; the assistant to head and
deputy head of nitrogen fertiliser plant of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory from
March 1996 to August 1997; the deputy office head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory from July 1995 to March 1996; the deputy office head of corporate
management department of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory from August 1997
to September 1998; the office head of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory from
September 1998 to August 2001; the general manager and chairman of
Henan Shenzhou Heavy Sealing Co., Ltd. from August 2001 to November
2014; the general manager and office head of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd.
from December 2014 to June 2017; board secretary of Henan XLX Fertilizer
Co,, Ltd. from July 2017 to June 2019; the assistant of general manager of
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. from June 2019 to October
2020.
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MR. YANG HAITAO

Aged 44, is principally in charge of the decision making of overall
management and day-to-day business operations of Qingli Energy, and
he has been appointed as the general manager of Qingli Energy since
December 2018. Mr. Yang graduated from School of Chemical Engineering
and Energy of Zhengzhou University, majoring in chemical machinery, in
2011. He has more than 25 years of experience in the chemical industry.
Mr. Yang has joined Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. since 1996
and successively served the following positions in the Group: the leader of
the gas supply workshop of Factory | from August 1996 to April 2006; the
deputy director of the gas supply workshop of Branch Il from May 2006 to
October 2007; the director of the gas supply workshop of Branch Il from
November 2007 to July 2014; and the manager of furfuryl alcohol division
from August 2014 to November 2018.

MR. ZHU YINGHONG

Aged 52, is principally in charge of project development, research and
construction, and has been appointed as the chief engineer and manager
of technical department of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. since November 2020.
Mr. Zhu has more than 20 years of experience in the field of engineering
project construction. From April 2005 to June 2014, Mr. Zhu served as
section head of automatic control for 18.30 Project, 24.40 Project and
45.80 Project in Xinxiang base. In July 2014, he served as chief engineer
of automatic control for 30.52 Project in Xinjiang base. He was awarded
Technology Model, XLX Figure of the year, Model Worker, etc. during his
tenure as the manager of Engineering Project Department in October 2016.
The engineering projects he mainly participated in include 18.30 Project,
24.40 Project, 45.80 Project, Xinjiang 30.52 Project, Xinjiang Melamine
Project, Sulfur-based Fertilizer Project, 300,000-ton of Methanol Project,
Dimethyl Ether Projects (Phase | and Phase II), Industrial Upgrading Project,
Green Manufacturing Project, and Formaldehyde-amino resin Projects.

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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MS. FENG JIAOXIA

Aged 38, is principally in charge of organisation and development of areas
such as corporate management, human resources and procurement
management, and has been appointed as the deputy general manager
of Henan Xinxing Chemical Materials Co., Ltd.* (/0B LR
BFR/A7]) since March 2020. Ms. Feng graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University, majoring in public administration, and obtained
bachelor’s degree in management in 2006. Ms. Feng has more than 15
years of experience in the chemical industry. She has jointed Henan
Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. since 2006 and successively served
the following positions in the Group: the training supervisor in the Human
Resource Department from November 2007 to April 2012, the director of
Outstanding Performance Office from May 2012 to September 2012; and
the deputy manager of Corporate Management Center from October 2012
to April 2018.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
MS. LEUNG KWAN WAI

Ms. Leung Kwan Wai was appointed as a joint company secretary of
the Company since 4 July 2019. Ms. Leung is a manager of Corporate
Services of Tricor Services Limited (a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business, corporate and investor services). She has
over 15 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been
providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies
as well as multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Leung is a
Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an Associate
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.

MS. CHEOK HUI YEE

Ms. Cheok Hui Yee was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 6 March 2018. Ms. Cheok is a senior manager of Tricor
Evatthouse Corporate Services, a division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (a
leading provider of integrated business, corporate and investor services
in Singapore). She has over 10 years of experience in corporate secretarial
practice in Singapore. Her area of exposure includes advisory and
assistance in compliance matters of public and private limited companies
in Singapore, foreign companies registered in Singapore as well as offshore
incorporated companies. She is currently the appointed company secretary
of several public companies listed on the SGX-ST. Ms. Cheok is a Practising
Chartered Secretary and an Associate of The Chartered Secretaries Institute
of Singapore.
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Investor Relations
BREEBZ

In 2021, the Company continued to consistently conduct investor relations
activities, aiming to demonstrate the highlights of the Company to the
capital market, so as to improve the valuation of the listed company,
thus elevating the Group to a new level. The Company is able to tie
closely with the capital market through our timely, impartial, fair and
accurate information disclosure and our multi-channel and all-round
investor relations activities. The Company also listens attentively to various
suggestions and proposals from the capital market with regard to the
Company's operations and management in a proactive, sincere and humble
manner, so as to improve the Company’s operational management quality,
enhance the Company’s profitability and Shareholders' value and maximise
their interests.

TIMELY, RIGHTEOUS, FAIR AND ACCURATE INFORMATION
DISCLOSURE

The Company has been in strict compliance with the information disclosure
principles for listed companies by making timely, righteous, fair and
accurate information disclosure, which improve the transparency of the
Company, moreover, establish a smooth communication channel and
enhance its interaction and communication with the capital market. In
2021, the Company published 38 documents on SEHK's website. Such
publications have objectively and comprehensively disclosed information
regarding the results, operating performance, financial information,
dividend payment, poll results of shareholder meetings and certain other
voluntary disclosures. The Company’s website (www.chinaxlx.com.hk) is also
an important channel for its information disclosure and important platform
for investors to obtain information on the Company.

MULTIPLE-CHANNEL, COMPREHENSIVE INVESTOR
RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

In 2021, the Company planned a series of investor relationship activities
on the basis of sorting out and formulating the relevant procedures for
investor relationship maintenance as well as establishing relevant data
banks and databases. The Company continued to conduct comprehensive
communication with capital market through various communication
channels including results announcement conference, roadshow
promotion activities, reverse roadshows, one-on-one investor meetings,
press releases and WeChat groups. The Company were able to timely
convey the strategic planning, development philosophy, growth story, and
the latest developments and performance of operation and management
of the Company to the capital market, as well as sharing our understanding
and outlook on the industry and market. In addition to organizing regular
results announcement meetings, we also innovated the form of roadshows
to eliminate the impact of the pandemic. The Group has organized nearly a
hundred roadshow promotions through a combination of online and offline
channels to proactively announce and push notification of favourable
news and shared in real time the highlights of the Company in various
communication channels (including official accounts and WeChat groups),
which attracted the attention of a large number of investors, industry
analysts and securities companies.

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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In 2021, due to the frequent occurrence of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the number of on-site visits by investors was correspondingly reduced.
However, according to the needs and styles of analysts and different
investors, the Group flexibly and proactively arranged corporate senior
management to participate in numerous online investor relations activities.
During 2021, the Company’s senior management including the Chairman
of the Board and the management participated in plenty of investor
activities to fully communicate with the capital market, which realised
multi-channelled communications. The Company attended various investor
forums organised by a number of investment banks and funds, conducted
one-on-one meetings and conference calls regularly, and made interactive
communication with around 200 investors and analysts throughout the
year, so as to further give investors and analysts a better idea of the business
and operations of the Group.

STEADY AND CONTINUOUS SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The Company attaches great importance to the Shareholders’ views on its
dividend payout. The Company determines its dividend payout every year
with reference to the Company’s financial status, long-term development
needs and potential investment opportunities. In 2021, the Group proposed
dividend of RMBO0.19 per Share and a dividend payout ratio of 17.2% net
profit attributable to owners of the parent.
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The situation of the Company’s dividend payment since listing
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Corporate Governance Report
EERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance principles and processes in managing the
business and affairs, so as to improve the performance, accountability,
and transparency of the Group. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct
and growth of the Group's business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed its
corporate governance practices and considers that the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised below.

A THE BOARD
A1.  RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The primary role of the Board is taking leadership and
control of the Company to protect and enhance long-term
Shareholders’ value. It sets the corporate strategies of the
Group, and sets directions and goals for the management.
The Board also supervises the management and monitors

performance of these goals to enhance Shareholders’

value. The Board is responsible for the overall corporate
governance of the Group.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and
the management. Each executive Director has accumulated
sufficient and valuable experience to hold his/her position
in order to ensure that his/her fiduciary duties can be carried
out in an effective and efficient manner.

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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The Board has established an internal framework to ensure
that the type of material transactions which required Board's
approval is consistently applied throughout the Group.
Matters requiring Board's approval include:

Overall Group business and budget strategy
ii. Capital expenditures, investments or divestments
exceeding certain material limits

iii. All capital-related matters including capital issuance
and redemption

iv. Significant policies governing the operations of the
Company

V. Corporate strategic development and restructuring

Vi Risk management strategy

Vii. Any major corporate activities involving changes in

Shareholders'rights and risk profile

Regular meetings of the Board are held to deliberate the
strategic policies of the Company including significant
acquisitions and disposals, review and approve annual
budgets, review the performance of the business and
approve the publicly issued periodic financial results.

All Directors from time to time obtain information concerning
the Company to enable them to be fully cognizant of the
decisions and actions of the Company’s management. The
Board has unrestricted access to the Company’s records
and information. Any Director may request for independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expense, upon reasonable request made to the
Board.
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TEERBSE
Senior management members are available to provide SREREGAGREN M
explanatory information in the form of briefings to the EERENEETEERE
Directors or formal presentations at Board meetings, or by EIEZVER - UIRHEFHRAE
external consultants engaged in specific projects. B XSmRS EERIEE®
SNEPRER R A E RS
The Board has formed specialised committees namely the ExgCEANEZEERERE
AC, the RC and the NC (collectively the “Committees”) @ IEZEES - HFWE
to assist in carrying out and discharging its duties and BgfREZEE(MB (£
responsibilities efficiently and effectively. The Committees B8] UBBMEESUE
function within clearly defined terms of references and B e NETA B
operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular THEBENET ZEER
basis. The effectiveness of each of the Committees is also EREBREATYEESRT
constantly reviewed by the Board. DA & A B 4 46 E A E 4R
BETIE -EFENTEE
Higi L EGHRRK
The company secretary(ies) of the Company (the “Company RARH R RIME ([ AR
Secretary(ies)”) and/or his/her representative(s) attend(s) EDR/IERERSEFER
all Board meetings and meetings of the Committees to FEFEERNELEGH
ensure that Board procedures are followed and applicable 2% BRZSRERE
rules and regulations are complied with. Draft minutes of EGRFMESTEMRA
meetings of the Board and the Committees are circulated to MER -EFGRETLZEE
Directors and the Committees members, as the case may be, FENERLHEIREAMR
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting BEERREZEEZE(R
and the final version of minutes are available for Directors’ FiERME) ER - AHEE
inspection. EET - REREBENEER
MRREER MRS
RIEERAHSESTEHN -
A2.  BOARD COMPOSITION A2. EEBHEK
As at 31 December 2021, the composition of the Board is as (2 —F+ A8
follows: =t—HIEFE BFEW
AR
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr. Liu Xingxu (Chairman of the Board and BB L E (EERFEL
Member of the NC) EEZEE
HE)
Mr. Zhang Qingjin RESLAE
Ms. Yan Yunhua BaEZELt+
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ong Kian Guan (Chairman of the AC, Member
of the RC and the NC)

(Chairman of the NC, Member
ofthe AC and the RC)

Mr. Li Shengxiao

Mr. Ong Wei Jin (Chairman of the RC, Member

ofthe ACand the NC)

(Member of the AC, the RC
and the NC)

Mr. Li Hongxing

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has
met the requirements of Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having at least three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors
bring different business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Committees. Through participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on
the Committees, the independent non-executive Directors
have made contributions to the effective direction of the
Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
Shareholders.

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
between Board members, if any, are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretaries” of this annual report.
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A3.

A4.

W&

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in light of the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in order to ensure a balance of
power and authority and preserve a balanced judgement
of views. During the year under review, Mr. Liu Xingxu is
the Chairman of the Board, focusing on the overall strategic
planning and business development of the Group; whereas
Mr. Ma Tongsheng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, taking care of the overall management and day-
to-day business operations of the Group. Such separation of
the roles and duties of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
would enable timely management of the Group’s affairs and
further reinforce the Group's development.

In addition, the Directors are of the view that the balanced
composition of executive Directors and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
on the Board and the existence of AC, RC and NC (comprising
all or a majority of independent non-executive Directors) in
overseeing different aspects of the Company’s affairs would
help to maintain the balance of power and authority.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and processes of appointment and removal
of Directors are laid out in the Constitution.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, whereas the Company has
issued a letter of appointment to each of the independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors. All
Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years.
They are also subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Constitution at least once every three
years at an AGM.
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A5.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to refresh their knowledge and to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings
and professional development to Directors are arranged
whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group are provided to Directors from time to time for their
studying and reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors
have participated training as follows:

- All Directors (being Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao,
Mr. Ong Wei Jin and Mr. Li Hongxing) received regular
briefings and updates from the Company Secretaries/
Company’s management on the Group's business,
operations and corporate governance matters.

- Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Zhang Qingjin, Ms. Yan Yunhua,
Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei
Jin and Mr. Li Hongxing attended relevant seminars
organised by professional firms/institutions.
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TEERRE
- All Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals - PREFEHEAEEFH
and other publications on subjects relevant to the HESHEBEUR LW
Group and on their responsibilities and obligations HAIRABEEERT
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory BTRENBERE
requirements. AR DM
HAI) R EoAtb AR T
A6.  DIRECTORS' ATTENDANCE RECORDS A6. EBHFECHE
The attendance records of each Director at the meetings BEERBE_T-_—F
of the Board and the Committees and the annual general TZA=tT—BILEFEARR
meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31 ARITNESEE%  £8
December 2021 are set out below: FEBLABRRREHLERL
BRI -
Attendance of Meetings
SEEEAY
Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Exe EWZEE FMZEE REZEE RRBEFAE
No. of Meetings held 6 5 1 1 1
SERY
Name of Director
EEf?
Bxecutive Directors: HITEE :
M. Liu Xingxu 2@t s 6 - - 0 !
Mr. Zhang Qingjin RESEE 6 - - - 1
Ms. Yan Yunhua BEFELt+ 6 - - - 1
Independent non-executive Directors: B VM TEE -
Mr. Ong Kian Guan TERE 6 5 1 1 1
Mr.Li Shengxiao FEREAE 6 5 1 1 I
Mr. Ong Wei Jin TACRE 6 5 1 1 1
Mr. Li Hongxing MIERE 6 5 1 ! !
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A7.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of executive Directors during the year under
review.

While the Board considers Directors’ attendance at the
meetings of the Board and the Committees to be important,
it should not be the only criterion to measure the Directors'
contributions. The Board also takes into account the
contributions by Board members in other forms including
periodical reviews, and provision of guidance and advice on
various matters relating to the Group.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules) as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’dealings in the Company’s securities. The Company
has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”), governing securities transactions
by the relevant employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period
for dealings in the Company'’s securities, the Company will
notify the Directors and relevant employees in advance.

A7.
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A8.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board has reviewed and
monitored the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
AC, the RC and the NC, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All the Committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which are available on the
websites of the SEHK (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.
chinaxlx.com.hk). All the Committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

B1.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The AC currently comprises a total of four members, being
the four existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei
Jin -and Mr. Li Hongxing. The chairman of the AC is Mr. Ong
Kian Guan, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
None of the members of the AC is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.
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The main duties of the AC are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any
significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers
of the Group or the external auditor before submission to
the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms
of appointment of the external auditor and making the
relevant recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function.

The Company has in place a whistle-blowing policy for
employees of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The AC constantly receives updates from
the external auditor pertaining to the latest changes to the
accounting standards and issues which have a direct impact
on financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the AC has held 5
meetings. Details of individual attendance of each member
at the meetings are set out in section A6 above. The AC has
performed the following major works during the year ended
31 December 2021:

- Review and discussion of the annual financial
statements, results announcement and report for
the year ended 31 December 2020 together with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;

- Review and discussion of the interim financial
statements, results announcement and report for
the six months ended 30 June 2021, and the related
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;
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- Review and discussion of the financial results for
the first quarter ended 31 March 2021 and the third
quarter ended 30 September 2021 respectively;

- Consideration and discussion of the major audit
findings (including Key Audit Matters) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from the external auditor;

- Consideration and discussion of the major internal
audit issues for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the six months ended 30 June 2021 respectively;

- Review of the independence of the external auditor
and recommendation of its re-appointment for the
year ended 31 December 2021;

- Review and discussion of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021;

- Review and discussion of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting system, the risk management
and internal control systems and the internal audit

function;

- Review of the arrangement of whistle-blowing

policy; and

- Review and discussion of Ernst & Young LLP’s audit
plan for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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B2.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the external
auditor has met the AC twice and discussed with the AC on
issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.

The AC, having reviewed all non-audit services provided
by the external auditor of the Company, was satisfied that
the nature and extent of such services would not affect the
independence and objectivity of the external auditor. The
AC recommended that Ernst & Young LLP be nominated for
re-appointment as the Company’s external auditor at the
2022 AGM. There is no disagreement between the Board and
the AC regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The RC currently comprises a total of four members, being
the four existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei Jin
and Mr. Li Hongxing. The chairman of the RC is Mr. Ong Wei
Jin. All aspects of remuneration, including but not limited
to Directors' fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses and benefits
in kind, will be covered by the RC. Each RC member will
abstain from voting on any resolution in respect of his own
remuneration package.
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PRELRE
The principal responsibilities of the RC include reviewing and YFMEESNETERARE
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s MESERARAFHMEE
remuneration policy and structure and the remuneration MRBANEERSRERE
packages of Directors and senior management (i.e. the EBHHMAEE ELEMNRIE
model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG BEE(ARMATEERST
Code is adopted). The RC is also responsible for establishing BIJ 9 =F B 3T 8 B.1.2() i) 15
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration FriltmiE=) - HrNZ B & 75
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of BENGERBHMEE &
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own RBFTLEBRAENRET -
remuneration, and the remuneration will be determined VA e (R 1 A 25 5 ot L {m) it
by the Board with reference to the performance of the EAB2ERTEHAH B
individual and the Company as well as the market practice B MFBMiSHESTSLE
and conditions. BRI A+ RA A TR FRIE A
im0 RIRIRMERE
In setting remuneration packages, the RC will take into EHIESMASR - FE
consideration the pay and employment conditions in BERERITEANNLERA
comparable companies within the industry. The RC will A HY 37 B A0 BS R 615 o S A
also review the remuneration packages of the independent ZE g B IEFTT
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director to BEERIFEMTESNEH A
ensure that they are commensurate with the contributions A DWERRENFHINEE
and responsibilities of the Directors. Each of the executive ENERIME AR - &3
Directors entered into a service contract with the Company, TEECLHEARFRILZBEE
which covers each of their terms of employment. The HERKHHORBEER - K
Company will submit the quantum of Directors' fees of each NEFRERRBFARE L
year to the Shareholders for approval at each AGM. RRXEFNESHRETE
VABERR R Bt/ o
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the RC has RBE-_ZT=-—F+=A
held 1 meeting. Details of individual attendance of each =t—HILFEE  FMHEE
member at the meeting are set out in section A6 above. At BEBTIREH - BEEW
the said meetings, the RC: (i) reviewed the remuneration R FeZFEHINN L
framework for the Directors, key executive staff, top five MA6HT e PR Lt gE E - &
highest paid employees and employees who are immediate MZEEg : (K2 EREE
family members of the Directors for the year ended XERE BAEHARE
31 December 2020 and the remuneration proposal for the ANE T EHA B8 & Bk
year ended 31 December 2021, by reference to the Group's FomeEE—_ZTTF T
performance and profitability as well as the remuneration A=1T—RILFEXEE F
level of certain listed corporations within the industry; ETHRAER - AAGEHEES
(i) reviewed the letters of appointment, including the REENERZLBHH NGRS
remuneration packages, of the Directors appointed during UWEkBE—T-_—F+_A
the year under review, with recommendations to the Board =T —HIEFEOEERE
for approval; and (iii) reviewed, confirmed and ratified the (VR EEEEANERT
renewal of service contracts and/or letters of appointment BEENEER - BEHFNAE
of the Directors with recommendations to the Board for G WMESSEBIMAE:
approval and ratification K (i) i 57 ~ HERR KB RI (A

EEgEsEitE ERES
HERITIZRBEAOR,
SR -
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Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

RIEDEEASTRISFRNES
FEBISE  HEZZT-_—F
+-A=+—HIEFESH
ERENKENFE T WL
BB HEHIET -

Number of individuals

FNEE (AR®T) AE
700,000-900,000 5
900,001-1,000,000 2

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The NC currently comprises a total of five members, being
the Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Liu Xingxu, and the
four existing independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei Jin and
Mr. Li Hongxing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the
NC is Mr. Li Shengxiao.

The principal responsibilities of the NC include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on an annual basis
and recommending any changes to the Board; identifying
qualified and suitable individuals to become Board
members and selecting and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

B3.

BHE-_Z-_—%+=H
=+ —HIEFESREENFE
(A ANEE E =
WRMIFEOA ©

REZES

REZEghaXABKE
MR BEESTFIEE
SEERINBIR GBI IFATT
EETRRALE  FTERSL
£ IRERERTHAESL
e Hit - REDKEE S
BIUFNTES - ZRZEREB
SEREATERSLL -

REZBENTIERE LR
FERFNEFENRE - A
SN AR (BIEREE - FE
K f&SgJTmE ) - WL E
AE=ESRLER WER
BREERAETESSN
BMAL  UWERLAH
ATHEEERRERES
SRMER  SPEELIEN
TEENELE: RIEF
ZEREHZENHEBERE
UREZHIATINESTS
RhES -

mELED T FFR

61



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE
The NC has established and implemented processes REZBGENIZILHITIE
including taking into consideration the attendance records F(EEZEREEFEREEER
at the meetings of the Board and the Committees for EEMNLFELE) - UER
monitoring and evaluating the performance of the Board KifhES BB RE -
as a whole and effectiveness and contribution of individual BRI RERESDERL ©
Directors.
The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of BEFAMARTIREEHE
other significant offices held by them. Where a Director has 18 5 P& (£ H fth 88 KBRS Y
multiple directorships, the NC will evaluate whether or not HE - MR—BREZRKD
the Director is able to carry out and has been adequately FERARNES  BEZE
carrying out his/her duties as a Director. For the year ended BTtz EETREE
31 December 2021, the Board is satisfied that each Director HWNRERDBITHIERE
has allocated sufficient time and resources to the affairs of ENBE BmEE_T_—
the Company. FTZA=1+—RHILFEMm
T OEEREMBRESHY
Fc 7 /& SR e B ] A1 B R 2R B
BARRAINERS
The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination RAFERMEFTRERE
Policy. Such policy, devising the criteria and process of 5o BRI TE AR R NETT
selection and performance evaluation, provides guidance to BT 2 RERERF
the Board on nomination and appointment of directors of MESERHREALZAER
the Company. The Board believes that the defined selection NRIEBZES - EEHER
process is good for corporate governance in ensuring the R REEBREBMEE
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level, ER UBERESSRHEN
and enhancing better Board effectiveness and diversity NEFEEEANEERE
as well as in compliance with the applicable rules and RRESFSNERZHEMNA
regulations. KBTEARRROER -
The NC and/or the Board may select candidates for REZEER HEEFGT
directorship from various channels, including but not limited BETREBRRESR(RE
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other A BEEBRSERARLE
member of the management and external recruitment - BE - BEE RN
agents. In selecting and evaluating candidates for SREBEMKENSE - X
directorship, the NC may make reference to certain criteria, BELFEEEHERRAR
such as the Company's needs, the integrity, experience, REZEGAUZ2EETE
skills and professional knowledge of the candidate, and the £ WARRFZHER - RE
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to ABHIE - &5 RERE
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities. Each candidate MBI RNRIB A RARE
shall be ranked by order of preference based on the needs THERE RBEENRE LS
of and check by the Company. The NC shall report and 7o HBIREABIERARAFR
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment of ERREEETIEFBES -
appropriate candidate for directorship for decision. REZEESBENATEEE
EEEREARAESSR
EWIEHHEBRE ©
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The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity
at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage. The Company
believes that greater diversity of directors is good for
corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for the Board with a combination of
competencies from the widest possible pool of available
talents, and assesses regularly the diversity profile of the
Board and the senior management prepared for the Board
positions under the succession planning of the Company
and the progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any.
A Board diversity policy was adopted by the Company,
pursuant to which the Board and the NC is responsible
for reviewing and assessing the Board composition under
diversified perspectives (including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience) and for ensuring that changes to the Board's
composition can be managed without undue disruption.
The NC shall report its findings and make recommendation
to the Board, if any. Such policy and objectives, if any, will be
reviewed from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
in determining the optimum composition of the Board that
are aligning with the Company’s strategy and objectives.

The NC considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any
measurable objective for implementing the Board diversity

policy.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the NC has
held 1 meeting. Details of individual attendance of each
member at the meeting are set out in section A6 above.
At the said meetings, the NC: (i) reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements for the business of the Group; (i) assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors; (iii) recommended the re-election of the retiring
Directors at the 2021 AGM; (iv) reviewed, confirmed and
ratified the renewal of service contracts and/or letters of
appointment of the Directors with recommendations to the
Board for approval and ratification.

DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and is mindful of
its obligations to furnish timely information and to ensure full
disclosure of material information to the Shareholders in compliance
with statutory requirements and the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Group
and put forward to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems have
a key role in the identification and management of risks that are
significant to the achievement of the Group's business objectives.
The process of business risk management has been integrated
throughout the Group into business planning and monitoring
processes. The Company’s management continuously assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, monitors
the risk management progress, and reports to the AC and the Board
on all findings. The management would also report to the AC and
the Board on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The AC ensures that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems covering all material
internal controls (including financial, operational, compliance
and information technology controls), with respect to the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, is conducted
annually and put forward to the Board for consideration. In this
regard, the AC reviews the audit plans and the findings of the
external and internal auditors, and ensures that the Company will
follow up on the auditors' recommendations raised, if any, during
the audit process.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board, with the assistance of
the management and the AC, has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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Based on the reports submitted by the external and internal
auditors and the various management controls put in place, the
Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended
31 December 2021. With the concurrence of the AC, the Board
considered that the Group's risk management and internal control
systems maintained by the management are sufficiently effective
and adequate to address the financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management of the Group throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has also
received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company that (i) the financial records have
been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the Company/Group’s operation and finances; (ii)
the Company/Group have put in place and will continue to maintain
reliable, comprehensive and sound systems of risk management,
internal control and corporate governance that will withstand the
scrutiny of any audit and review by the external auditor.

The Company has implemented control procedures throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021 to ensure that unauthorised access
and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The primary functions of the Company'’s internal audit include
assessing if adequate internal control system is in place to protect
the funds and assets of the Group and to ensure compliance
with the internal control procedures; assessing if operation of
the business processes under review is conducted efficiently and
effectively; and identifying and recommending improvements to
the internal control procedures, where required.

The Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is satisfied with
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes budgeting and effectiveness of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Leung Kwan Wai of
Tricor Services Limited and Ms. Cheok Hui Yee of Tricor Singapore
Pte. Ltd,, both of which companies being external service providers,
have been engaged as the Company’s Joint Company Secretaries.

The Company Secretaries' primary contact persons at the Company
are Ms. Yan Yunhua, an executive Director, and Ms. Gui Lin, the Head
of Securities Department of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company Secretaries
have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor's Report”of this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s external
auditor, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are analysed below:

REWE

BHE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIt
FE 2EEXEBKERAFNZR
E 2 224 N Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.
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Fees paid/payable
Bt EAEA
Type of services provided by the external auditor (RMBS'000)
SN E AR MRS RE (AREEFIT)
Audit services
BEIR
- Audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2021 7,300
BHE T F+-A=+"HIFENSEZER
Non-audit services
BRI 98
- Tax compliance service
RIS RRHS
TOTAL:
HEt 7,398
|
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Group recognises the importance of transparent and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables Shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision. Price sensitive
information will be publicly released before the Company’s
disclosure of any of such information to any investors or analysts.
Financial results and reports will be announced or issued within the
prescribed periods under the statutory or regulatory requirements.

In line with continuous obligations of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules, the Board's policy is that all Shareholders be informed
of all major developments that impact the Group. Information is
disseminated to the Shareholders and investors on a timely basis
through:

i. Announcements, financial reports, circulars and news
releases published on the website of the SEHK;

ii. Financial reports prepared and issued to all Shareholders;

iii. Press releases on major developments of the Group;

iv. Notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGM and EGM;
and
V. the Company’s website at www.chinaxIx.com.hk at which

the Shareholders can access information of the Group,
roadshows and plant visits.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings to ensure
high level of accountability and to stay apprised of the Group's
strategy and goals. Notices of general meetings will be published
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company. The chairmen of the
Committees are normally available at general meetings to answer
any question relating to the work of the Committees. The external
auditor shall also be present at AGM to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Besides, for putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
and investors may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders and investors may send their written
enquiries to the following:

Address:  Room 1903-04, 19/F, Hong Kong Trade Centre, 161 Des
Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2435 3724
Email: ir@chinaxix.com.hk
Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS'RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution shall be proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors, for Shareholders’' consideration and voting.

1. CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 47 of the Constitution, the Directors
may whenever they think fit, and shall on requisition in
accordance with the statute, proceed with proper expedition
to convene an EGM.

Pursuant to the Companies Act:

(a) Shareholders holding 10% or more of the paid-
up capital of the Company which carries the right
to vote at general meetings as at the date of the
deposit of the requisition, may request the Board
to convene an EGM. The written requisition must
specify the objects of the meeting, be signed by
the Shareholders concerned and deposited at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of
the Board or the Company Secretaries;
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The Board shall proceed to convene an EGM within
21 days of the deposit of such written requisition.
Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such written requisition; and

If the Directors do not within 21 days after the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed to convene an
EGM, the Shareholders who deposited requisition, or
any of them representing more than 50% of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves, in the
same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Directors, convene
an EGM, but any EGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from that date.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

In general, subject to the paragraph below, no resolution
may be proposed at a general meeting (whether it is an EGM
or an AGM) if such resolution is not included in the notice
convening the general meeting. However, if the proposal
is to amend an existing resolution set out in the notice
convening the general meeting and such amendment
is within the scope of the notice, such amendment may
be made if approved by the Shareholders by ordinary
resolution.
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On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting to which
the requisition related; or (i) not less than 100 Shareholders
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
Shareholder, of not less than S$500, the Company shall be
under a duty to:

(a) Give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and

(b) Circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and
any such statement shall be circulated, to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each such
Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice of
the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given
to any other Shareholder by giving notice of the general
effect of the resolution in any manner permitted for giving
him/her notice of meetings of the Company. The requisition
shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
least 6 weeks before the meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder must provide his/her
full name, contact details and identification, in the originally signed
written requisition, notice or statement (as the case may be), in
order to give effect thereto. Information of the Shareholder may be
disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any changes to the Constitution. An up-to-date version of the
Constitution is available on the websites of the SEHK and the
Company. Shareholders may refer to the Constitution for further
details of the rights of Shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings shall be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company after each general
meeting.
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Directors’ Statement
BEERE

The directors (the “Directors”) of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their statement to the Shareholders together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the statement
of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

In the opinion of the Directors,

(i) the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group
and the statement of financial position and statement of changes
in equity of the Company are drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2021 and the financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021; and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to
believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 45 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion on
the Group's future business development, and the description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Group are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Financial Highlights of this
annual report. Discussions on the Group's compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with its key stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group are included in the Chairman’s Statement,
Investor Relations and Corporate Governance Report of this annual report
and in this Directors' Statement.

The Group places much importance on environmental protection, energy-
saving and emission reduction, continuously processes environmental
transformation of production systems, promotes the implementation of
clean production, and continuously formulates and improves a series of
regulation policies to improve our environmental management, laying a
solid foundation for future development. Please refer to the separate 2021
Environmental, Social and Governance ('ESG’) Report of the Group, for
further details of the Group’s ESG-related risks, environmental policies and
performance and other ESG information.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company is committed to sharing its development and achievements
with shareholders through stable and sustainable dividend payment whilst
maintaining an optimal capital structure which allows the Company to take
advantage of any investment and expansion opportunities that may arise
from time to time.

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends, including without limitation to: (i) financial
results; (i) cash flow situation; (iii) availability of distributable profits; (iv)
business conditions and strategies; (v) future operations and earnings; (vi)
capital requirements and expenditure plans.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with the
Constitution and the applicable laws and regulations. The Board will review
the said dividend policy as appropriate from time to time and there can be
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 85 to 222 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of RMB19 cents (2020: RMB10 cents) per
ordinary share in respect of the year to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members on 5 July 2022. Subject to the approval
of Shareholders at the 2022 AGM, the final dividend will be paid in HKD on
29 July 2022.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Company’s
shares.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 222 of this annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital is set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Constitution or
the laws of Singapore, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
amounted to approximately RMB544,660,000 of which RMB222,608,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 8% (2020: less than 8%) of the total sales for the
year. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 28%
(2020: 26.7%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 12% (2020: 9%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB11,867,099 (2020: RMB5,585,960).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Liu Xingxu
Zhang Qingjin
Yan Yunhua

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ong Kian Guan
Li Shengxiao
Ong Wei Jin
Li Hongxing

Pursuant to Articles 89 and 90 of the Constitution, Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Ong
Wei Jin and Mr. Li Shengxiao shall retire by rotation at the 2022 AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARIES

Biographical details of the Directors, the senior management of the Group
and the Company Secretaries are set out on this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the year was the Company a
party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is,
to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28 March 2020,
unless terminated in accordance with the provisions of the service contract
by either party giving to the other not less than six months’ prior notice in
writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director for
a term of three years, unless terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three months' prior notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors' remuneration is subject to approval by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and

performance and the results of the Group. Details of the Directors’

remuneration are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the
Group are all Directors and senior management of the Company. Details
of the highest paid individuals are set out in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

As set out in Article 147 of the Constitution, a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year.
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DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Continuing Connected
Transactions” and in Note 40 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the
Companies Act and Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions
e

BEERNXS - ZYRSRENER

BIHERERS | — 8RB BHRERME
40 PTIRERSN - WA EAEE A FAME
IS EERESNMEERHEENAK
NEIREAEFME QBRI L AN EE X
BMEBERNTMRS - KHFRERF
HERAEERREEEAMER °

EERFETRAERKROVES

R-ZE-—F+=-_A=+—H BFBFEIhAK
NAIEZITHAERRRARRGFEART
BRIE R REE 16416 R FEH M E KA
F3HERAARBFERE LM RER
SR I T AR BIRT &% 1 P E IR 2E ST RIIZA
MEARAR) MR FTRI RSO T

Number of ordinary shares interested

RERENZEREAR
Approximate
percentage’ of
the Company’s
issued share
Personal Corporate capital
Name of Directors interests interests Total interests {H R DB ST
EEHR AR NGIL: £ wiER RAMNHOEIL
Mr. Liu Xingxu 600,000 41 3,0Q7,999 413,607,999 35.30%
RELRSLE (Note Bi7E @)
Ms. Yan Yunhua 300,000 276,465,000 276,765,000 23.62%
BEREL T+ (Note (b))
Mr. Ong Kian Guan 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%
FRREE
Chief Executive Officer
HEHITE
Mr. Ma Tongsheng 8,000 - 8,000 0.01%
BimAE LA

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December
2021.
i ZADIEEA RN ERREBRARR AR E—F+ A=+ —HHNEBTROHAE -
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Notes:

(@) These shares were held by Pioneer Top Holdings Limited (“Pioneer Top”), an
investment holding company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").
Mr. Liu Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top,
and held the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7
beneficiaries (including Mr. Zhang Qingjin) under a trust agreement dated 26
July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Mr. Liu Xingxu is irrevocably granted
the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights and the rights to the day-to-
day management of Pioneer Top.

(b) These shares were held by Go Power Investments Limited ("Go Power”), an
investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan Yunhua beneficially
owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held the remaining 87.26%
of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for a total of 1,463 beneficiaries under
a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Ms. Yan
Yunhua is irrevocably granted the absolute discretion to exercise the voting
rights and the rights to the day-to-day management of Go Power.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act
and Section 352 of the SFO, or which has been notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors has any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has no equity-linked agreements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the following parties had interests of 5% or more
in the issued shares and underlying shares of the Company according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO:

LONG POSITIONS

ap)

FERRARS - HERORERE
& AR

R-ZEBE-_—F+-A=+—H " &EARQF

RIFRREF 881G ME 7 MG IERHIH

3361

FAFEMERERT  T&TR

RRREBEITIRINIER 5% A Lo

Number of issued
ordinary shares

Approximate percentage*
of the Company’s issued

interested share capital

BERERN EARAT S 8T

Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity BT BRAS R A

FTERRER 4 BR#E Bo#

Pioneer Top (Note Ffi 5t (a)) Beneficial owner 413,007,999 35.25%
E=AA

Go Power (Note Ki7E (b)) Beneficial owner 276,465,000 23.60%
EmEAA

The percentage represents the number of issued ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31

December 2021.

ZADLEEERANEETEBREARUARRR BT —F+ - A=+—HNBEBTRHEE -

Pioneer Top is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Mr. Liu
Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top, and held
the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7 beneficiaries
under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016, including 7% for Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
an executive Director; 7% for Mr. Ru Zhengtao and 7% for Mr. Shang Dewei, the
Company’s employees; 7% for Mr. Zhu Xingye (retired), 16% for Mr. Li Buwen
(retired), 7% for Mr. Li Yunshun (retired) and 7% for Mr. Wang Nairen (retired).
Mr. Liu Xingxu has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights held
by Pioneer Top in the Company in accordance with the trust agreement. Such
interest held by Pioneer Top has also been disclosed as the interest of Mr. Liu
Xingxu in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares”.
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(b) Go Power is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan
Yunhua beneficially owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held
the remaining 87.26% of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for a total of
1,463 beneficiaries under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Ms. Yan Yunhua
has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights held by Go Power in
the Company in accordance with the trust agreement. Such interest held by Go
Power has also been disclosed as the interest of Ms. Yan Yunhua in the above
section headed “Directors’and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares"

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person, other than
the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which are the related party transactions set out in Note
40 to the financial statements that constituted continuing connected
transactions, and has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua and Mr. Zhang
Qingjin (being executive Directors) collectively held an aggregate of
approximately 10.6% interest in XLX Chem, and together are the largest
shareholder of XLX Chem and have the largest influence through their
shareholders’ rights on the major decisions in XLX Chem. Therefore, XLX
Chem, its subsidiaries and associates (collectively “XLX Chem Group”) are
deemed as the Company’s connected persons under Rule 14A.07 of the
Listing Rules.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the Equipment Purchase Agreement on 5 February
2021 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which XLX Chem Group agreed
to supply and provide the relevant installation services for equipment,
including pipes, vessels and pressure vessels, to Henan XLX. Accordingly,
the Group benefits from reliable and timely delivery of equipment and
cost effectiveness. Pursuant to the agreement, the prices for equipment
purchases are determined by the Group’s internal qualification and
tendering procedures with potential suppliers of equipment, which vary
depending on the product type, quantity and quality specifications as
required by Henan XLX.

The Equipment Purchase Agreement has an original term commencing
from 5 February 2021 up to and including 31 December 2023. The
Group has set the annual cap for the amount paid by the Group to XLX
Chem Group for the purchases of equipment under the agreement at
RMB40,000,000 for FY2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount paid by
the Group for the purchases of equipment from XLX Chem Group was
approximately RMB 38,230,000. The amount of RMB 30,777,000 has been
included in spare parts inventories in the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position. Besides, the Group paid RMB 7,453,000 as anti-corrosion
service fees which has been accounted for as general and administrative
expenses in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above

continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing

connected transactions have been entered into:

) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available from independent suppliers; and

(3) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s auditor, were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with International
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young LLP have issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the SEHK.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 45 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public at the date of this report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Act requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. These financial statements should give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period of a particular year and on the financial performance of the Group
for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
should:

(a) select and apply consistently appropriate accounting policies, and
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgement and estimation;

(b) report the reasons for any serious deviation from accounting
practice; and

(© prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless
it is inappropriate to assume that the Group could continue to
operate.
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BEERE

The Directors are responsible for the proper keeping of accounting records
in order to secure the assets of the Company and the Group. The Directors
are also responsible for adopting reasonable measures to prevent and
check any fraudulences and irregularities.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept
re-appointment as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
Director Director

25 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBETRE

P>
EY:

To the members of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd
(Incorporated in Singapore with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”), which comprise
the statements of financial position of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2021, the statements of changes in equity of the Group and
the Company and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Group, the statement of financial position and the statement of changes
in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the "Act”), Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS (I)s”) and International Financial
Reporting Standards in Singapore (“IFRSs”) so as to give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and of the consolidated
financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
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B B E

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority ("ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public
Accountants and Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF CASH-GENERATING UNITS (“CGUS")

The management has performed the mandatory annual impairment
assessments of the following CGUs with material allocated goodwill as at
31 December 2021:

Coal mining operations (“Coal mining CGU") with property, plant
and equipment, coal mining rights, and goodwill amounting to
RMB757,736,000, RMB236,961,000 and RMB25,361,000, respectively;
and

Medical intermediate CGU with property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and goodwill amounting to RMB223,675,000,
RMB21,537,000, and RMB34,021,000 respectively.

Management has determined the recoverable amount of the CGUs based
on value in use calculations using discounted cash flows projected for the
CGUs. As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the
key assumptions included budgeted sales, growth rates, gross margins,
operating costs, commodity prices and the discount rates that consider
the specific risks relating to the respective CGUs. Based on the impairment
assessments, management has concluded that the CGUs are not impaired.
We determined this to be a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments were complex and involved significant management
judgements and estimates in making assumptions about the future
market and economic conditions, revenue growth, margin and efficiency
improvements.

As part of our audit, we obtained an understanding of management’s
bases and processes to determine the carrying amounts and recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs. We checked that the CGUs cash flow
projections were based on approved management budgets that reflected
business plans and the estimates of coal outputs and mining reserves of
the Coal mining CGU. We engaged our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing management’s valuation methodologies and the key
assumptions used in the respective discounted cash flow computations.
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We evaluated the key cash flows assumptions used by considering our
findings on past budget variances, comparing management’s budgeted
sales and operating costs to historical data and information on expected
efficiency improvements; corroborating these budgets against economic
and industry forecasts from external sources; and additionally in the case
of the Coal mining CGU, comparing the mineable reserves inputs that
budgeted sales are based on to the mines' proven and probable reserves
estimates provided by the relevant authority; and comparing commodity
prices used to external observable data.

We assessed the discount rates used by the management by comparing
to external data of comparable companies with support from our internal
valuation specialists. We performed sensitivity analyses of the impairment
assessments to reasonable changes in key assumptions. We also assessed
the adequacy of the Group's disclosures made on the impairment
assessments and related sensitivity analyses that are included in Notes
17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements and those disclosures
related to significant accounting judgements and estimates that are
included in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS
FORTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SFRS (I)s and IFRSs, and
for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit
the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’'s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks,and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to
be kept by the Group have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Lai Hiang.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

%5: 5 E ﬁﬁ & /H\ {'H_J, 2 E l‘l& ﬁé 13—% For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (&

=—5F——

r_=__

FFrZA=1—HUIHBFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® TR ARETIT
Revenue A 6 16,815,321 10,444,722
Cost of sales SHE AR (12,426,464) (8,230,163)
Gross profit EF 4,388,857 2,214,559
Other income and gains HABYIA Kz 6 169,368 198,730
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RO HEMAEZ (762,708) (620,599)
General and administrative expenses —RITHAY (934,618) (624,260)
Other expenses Efs (88,589) (129,755)
Finance costs B TR AR 8 (583,370) (401,379)
Impairment losses on financial assets SREERRESE 7 (14,570) (5,640)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates FE(REEE A T] 1,232 (582)
swmAl (E1E)
Profit before tax BRBL AT R 7 2,175,602 631,074
Income tax expense FTiSEFsZ 11 (406,232) (106,926)
Profit for the year FREF 1,769,370 524,148
Profit attributable to: FEAEEF) -
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEPE PN 1,294,139 347,662
Non-controlling interests eI = 475,231 176,486
Total comprehensive income for theyear & R2HEURAZEE 1,769,370 524,148
T
Earnings per share attributable to BARZERER
ordinary equity holders of the parent BEAEMERER
Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share) HARE#E 13 110.46 2967
(BRARES)
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Statements of Financial Position
Eji%;lﬁiﬂai As at 31 December 2021 R=ZE=-—#+=-H=+—H

Group Company
rEE ¥

2021 2020 2021 2020
—T 5 Eeecisl — T £ Eecaeoics

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
bFsa ARETT NS ARMETT BN
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment #1% « S K& 14 18,056,011 15,000,465 - -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 980,046 1,140,330 - -
Intangible assets M EE 16 65,965 63,385 - -
Goodwill e 17 63,022 63,022 - -
Coal mining rights Ry 18 236,961 84,643 - -
Equity investments at fair value £ {EFT AtBi
through profit or loss BRI & 19 6,708 6,708 - -
Prepayments for purchases  BEE Y% - HE M
of property, plant and BN
equipment KIE 20 81,892 120,060 - -
Pledged time deposits EIEIRTE BT K 25 9,700 1,400 - -
Deferred tax assets IRIETRIBE B 34 102,523 100,430 - -
Other assets Eiﬂﬂﬁ? 14 36,883 101,115 - -
Investments in associates REEZNFIRE 38 95,643 94411 - -
Investments in subsidiaries mW%Lﬁﬁﬁ 45 - - 1,717,275 1,672,275
Total non-current assets FREEELEE 19,735,354 16,775,969 1,717,275 1,672,275
Current assets mMENEE
Equity investments at fair value & A F{EET A
through profit or loss KRR & 19 13,076 16,092 13,076 16,092
Prepayments AR FIE 20 1,027,737 514,181 - -
Deposits and other receivables #724 & E b ELURL
IR 20 472,664 509,988 - -
Inventories eSS 21 1,607,385 992,149 - -
Other assets Hib&E 14 - 13,441 - -
Derivative financial instruments  $74 & # T & 22 28 - - -
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EMGRIE K
e IR 23 1,004,578 743,392 - -
Due from related companies/  FEUREFE AR,
subsidiaries B8~ RIFRIE 24 8,890 1,804 18,836 139,398
Pledged time deposits B EEER 25 743,845 706,035 - -
Cash and cash equivalents Re kBESEED 25 893,116 682,041 7,634 18976
Total current assets REEEHE 5,771,319 4,179,123 39,546 174,466
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Group
rEE

Compan

E N

y

2021 2020 2021 2020
- Sbeb T OTF bt T T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
liEss ARETT NGRS ARWETT NS
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade payables & SN FIE 26 774,423 508,978 - -
Bills payable JERRE 27 850,474 1110814 - -
Contract liabilities aHaE 28 1,079,227 818,149 - -
Accruals and other payables — fEETE A&
Hith T RRIR 28 1,815,284 1,847,288 15,589 16,462
Due to related companies/ FEfRRIE N R],

a subsidiary [ D)EEYNEIEeEE] 24 81,166 12,239 1,886 16,850
Income tax payable FERTER1S TR 167,055 42,709 - -
Deferred grants PEAEFHAL 29 9,619 9317 - -
Lease liabilities fﬂf‘f’é\ﬁ\ 15 2,541 45,343 - -
Loans from non-controlling  FEIEAREZR E K

interests 30 = 24,870 = -
Interest-bearing bank and FHEIRITR

other borrowings HAMhfER 31 6,402,213 4,137,660 - 137,450
Other liabilities HEmeE 5,983 - = -
Bonds payable JERHES 33 198,222 - = -
Total current liabilities BB EAHE 11,386,207 8,557,367 17,475 170,762
Net current (liabilities)/ RE(AE) BE

assets R (5,614,888) (4,378,244) 22,071 3,704
Total assets less current BEERRBAE

liabilities 14,120,466 12,397,725 1,739,346 1,675979

| D
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Due to a related company FET R A RIFRIA 24 - 114 - -
Loans from non-controlling JE R B R

interests 30 47,800 - - -
Interest-bearing bank and SHESRITR

other borrowings HAbER 31 4,966,562 5,210,059 - -
Deferred grants EXERERL 29 71,881 82,105 - -
Lease liabilities HeEaE 15 20,717 27,198 - -
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIERE 34 68,520 50,143 - -
Provision for rehabilitation URREL] 32 25,342 24,723 - -
Accruals and other payables  FE&tE K&

H b e 508 28 549,896 89,117 - -
Other liabilities HEtmaE 111,884 - - -
Bonds payable JERHES 33 296,482 489,892 - -
Total non-current liabilities  JERBI & E4%E 6,159,084 5973351 - -
Net assets FEE 7,961,382 6,424,374 1,739,346 1,675,979

T
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Statements of Financial Position
Eji%;lﬁiﬂa%% As at 31 December 2021 R=ZE=-—#+=-H=+—H

Group Company
rEE ¥

2021 2020 2021 2020

TECF EEsbmbeiial T el eed
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
liEss ARETT NGRS ARWETT NS
Equity FEm
Equity attributable to BATEE AEN
owners of the parent e
Share capital &N 35 1,194,686 1,194,686 1,194,686 1,194,686
Special reserve R 36 4,127 4,599 - -
Statutory reserve fund EEMER 36 510,920 200,307 - -
Other reserve HAth 36 2,202,942 2,217,760 - -
Retained profits RE R 1,780,875 913,081 544,660 481,293
5,693,550 4,530,433 1,739,346 1,675,979
Non-controlling interests FEIERRAER 2,267,832 1,893,041 - -
Total equity HRER 7,961,382 6,424,374 1,739,346 1675979
| I
Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
215: /8 EAEE
Director Director
EF EFE
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Statements of Changes in Equity

*gﬁ ﬁ E ‘lEE For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 — & —

Attributable to owners of the Company
ADARBAEL
Special
reserve

—Ft+ A=t —HIHEFE

Non-

Share  Statutory safetyfund  Retained controlling
capital reservefund Otherreserve KT profits interests  Total equity
Bx  iEfEe  HtRE REe  REER FEhEs s
(Note35)  (Note36) (Note36) ~ (Note36)
(W) (WaEse)  (Mdse)  (RaE3e)
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
GEEl ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTr ARMTR ARMTz ARET:R
Group r&E
At1 January 2021 RZE=-%-A-A 1,194,686 200307 2217760 4,599 913081 4530433 1893941 6424374
Proftfor the year RERGEH - - - - 1294139 1,294,139 47581 1,769,370
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ ERZARALE - - - - 1294139 1204139 475231 1,769,370
Acquisition of non-controling interests ~ JEEMTBA A
of subsidiaries FERER - - (o) - - (e 6217 (96333)
Capital contribution from non-controlling R BIFEERTRAR R
shareholders of subsidiaries HE - - 12,79 - - 12,794 42,206 55,000
Share-based payment expense DY - - 11419 - - 11419 - 11419
Waiverof the nterests generated from G FEARERET
borrowing to non-controlling interests MRS - - 1,085 - - 1,085 79 1877
Transfer o statutory reserve fund BRETITRES 3 - 30613 - - (310613) - = =
Safety product costfund REERNAES - - - (472) 4n - - -
Dividends paid to TN EHERER
non-controling shareholders KRS > = > = - - (88121)  (88,121)
Final 2021 dividends paid THZE-EXERE 0 - - - - (116204 (116.204) - (116204)
At31 December 2021 RZB=-%
tZB=1-H 1,194,686 510920 2,202,942 4127 1780875 5693550 2267832 7961382
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Statements of Changes in Equity

EEBEHR ore financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =1+—HIFHHKF/E
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARE AR
Specil
feserve Non-
Share Statutory safety fund Retained controlling
aptal  resenefund  Otherresene  HTEEE profts Total interests ~ Total equity
R EEEEE  Eibkk fES  RBER B HiRER BiEs
(Note 39) (Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36)
(Wi3s)  (akse)  (Wirse)  (WsEs6)
Notes RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RVB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMBO00
i ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Group 158
At1January 2020 RZB-5F-A-A 1194686 145518 2176500 2433 716,104 423541 1486439 5721680
Profitfor the year TERET - - - - 347662 34766 17648 524148
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ ERZARALE - - - - 347662 34766 176486 524148
Disposal of partial nterests HEMBATR R
in subsidiaries without osing control MARKEEHE - - 41260 - - 41260 192220 23480
Acquisition of subsiciaries WEEhBEAd - - - - - - 152822 15282
Transfer o statutory reserve fund EREETEES % - 54789 - - (54789) - - -
Safety procluct cost fund REERNAES - - - 2166 2,166 - - -
Dividends paid to IREZE T
non-controlling shareholders gl - - - - - - (114026) (114026)
Final 2020 dividends paid INZFIEERERE 1 - - - - ©3730) (93730) - (93730)
At31 December 2020 RZ8-%%
tZh=1-H 1194680 200307 217760 459 913,081 4530433 1893941 6424374
Share capital Retained profits Total equity
(L& R R
(Note 35)
(Bf3E35)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Company VNN
At 1 January 2021 N-—E—-_—%—HF—H 1,194,686 481,293 1,675,979
Profit for the year IREERR - 179,571 179,571
Final 2021 dividends paid (Note 12) TNZEZ—FRERE
(M5t 12) - (116,204) (116,204)
At 31 December 2021 N_TB—-—F
+=A=+—H 1,194,686 544,660 1,739,346
|
At 1 January 2020 R=ZB=ZF—-A—H 1,194,686 264,836 1,459,522
Profit for the year AEERR - 310,187 310,187
Final 2020 dividends paid (Note 12) SR ZEZTFRARE
(BzE12) - (93,730) (93,730)
At 31 December 2020 R-B_EHF
+=-HA=+—H 1,194,686 481,293 1,675979
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #,

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERESRER

FFC

—F A=t —HIHEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® TR ARETIT
Profit before tax BRI A 2,175,602 631,074
Adjustments for: KR
Finance costs BATE AR 8 583,370 401,379
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 7 7,824 7,409
Amortisation of coal mining rights R BRSO 5 7 3,486 1,537
Depreciation of property, Y - BB NRiE 7 1,013,436 723,266
plant and equipment e
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEK& 6,7 46,610 (27,280)
plant and equipment HEBEE R
&8 (W)
Bank interest income RITFEMA 6 (21,859) (18,711)
Gain on other investments HhigE e 6 (204) (2,706)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of derivative HETESRITA 6 (550) 2,194
financial instruments (Mz=) /BB
Loss on fair value change of SR TEMNAFE 7 2,988 4811
financial instruments SHEE
Exchange gain from bank loans IRITEFNE H e (460) (32,076)
Impairment losses on financial assets S REEMNREEIE 7 14,570 5,640
Impairment of property, Y - B R 7 5,856 113,109
plant and equipment A
Impairment of inventories FERE 7 10,650 1,727
Amortisation of deferred grants IR AL 8 6 (10,152) (12,670)
Amortisation of other assets HAfth & FE 8,960 1073
Interest accretion on bonds payable FEREZFAIBIE N 4,812 4,195
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 7 43,759 53618
Share of (profits)/losses of associates JEAGE A T (1,232) 582
(&) BB
Share-based payment expense ERRD TR 7 11,419 -
hELED — B



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MEBRERER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #2 — & —

—Ft A=t —HIHEFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® TR ARETIT
Operating cash flows before changesin  &E & A% B A 8 & 3,898,885 1,858,171
working capital HERE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERAL,/(38h0) (625,886) 44,774
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 W TE & R (278,966)) (296,738)
ESiEsl
Decrease in other receivables HAb EMGRIER L 147,063 387,431
Increase in deposits and prepayments TR IERTERIBLE N (513,556) (111,617)
Movement in balances with related BB N RSB 61,716 3,740
companies
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 BRI K& R 5,105 160,487
SHBIEM
Decrease in pledged time deposits BT BTN (46,110) (301,959)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and other FEstE R R EMER 344,583 1617
payables HIEORA) BN
Cash flows generated from operations RETHEENRS 2,992,834 1,745,906
activities e
Government grants received 2 HER AT #E A 29 230 26,363
Interest received EHAE 17,996 19,768
Tax paid [EANEEE (265,602) (88,508)
Net cash flows generated from operating R&ZBHELNES 2,745,458 1,704,029
activities TREFE
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHERS
TE
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HE K& 127,884 118,706
plant and equipment FriSsIA
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB ¥1% « 5 MR (3,787,231) (3,920,760)
Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries BENBARENRE - (62,525)
Purchases of intangible assets BERLEE 16 (10,404) (9,253)
Purchases of right-of-use assets BECAREEE (18,014) -
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets 4 &1 FAEEE TS 2,719 -
KIA
Purchase of investment in associates BERBEARIRE = (24,000)
Gain on other investments received EUE MR E W ES 204 512
Purchase of derivative financial instruments  BEESTA S RIT A (5,264) (6,100)
Disposal of derivative financial instruments ~ HEPTE SR T A 5,814 6,610
Purchases of coal mining rights fB B R SRR (41,400) -
Cash paid for purchase of business BEEXBENES - (5,004)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REFEFTABRERE (3,725,692) (3,901,814)
e
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2021 2020

—EC--F —TTHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® TR ARETIT
Cash flows from financing activities METHMERERE
Dividends paid on ordinary shares BT B B 12 (116,204) (93,730)
Dividends paid on non-controlling shares A IESE Hxﬂxfﬁﬂi 8 (88,121) (114,026)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WS FEIE IR A o (96,333) -
Injection of non-controlling interests IR X B 48,962 233,480
Payments of lease liabilities XNHEEAE 15 (48,672) (111112)
Proceeds from issue of a long-term bond BITREESMERIE 33 - 97,000
Repayment of a long-term bond BERBRES 33 - (500,000)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings B R A& TSR 31 7,836,434 7,843,231
Increase in pledged time deposits EHIRE AE g N - 93,870
Interest paid EAFLE (561,565) (352,235)
Repayments of loans and borrowings (K \TQ\&Fi/?E);\ 31 (5,783,192) (5,101,100)
Net cash flows from financing activities ~ & EEFFBESRE 1,191,309 1,995,378
R
Net increase/(decrease) incashand cash RERRLZEY 211,075 (202,407)
equivalents #m ORd) FE8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FReRBAEZEY 25 682,041 884,448
of year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRAERBEEEY 25 893,116 682,041
of year
T
Analysis of balance of cash and cash ReRkReEEYEH
equivalents Saxis
Cash at banks and on hand and cash RERE AR 2R Pt 25 893,116 682,041
and cash equivalents as stated in the ZETFEREBEE R
consolidated statement of financial ReRREEED
position
T

During the financial year, there were acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment with a total cost of RMB3,928,467,000 (2020: RMB5,478,488,000)
of which RMB619,000 (2020: RMB447,000) pertains to the provision
for rehabilitation. In addition, accruals and other payables decreased
by RMB308,691,000 was unpaid (2020: RMB825,357,000). Bills payable
for property, plant and equipment increased by RMB Nil (2020:
RMB241,659,000) was unpaid. Prepayments for purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment decreased by RMB38,168,000 (2020:
RMB758,441,000). The VAT input was paid to gain the property, plant and
equipment with a total cost of RMB206,242,000 (2020: RMB268,176,000).
The net cash outflow for the purchase of property, plant and equipment
was RMB3,787,231,000 (2020: RMB3,920,760,000).

RATHRFE - WEME - BELERED
RN B AR 3928467000 T ( ZEZF
F: AR#54784880007T) @ Hf AR
619000 L(ZE=FF : AR¥E447,0007T)
BREBEER - o Bt ERREM
JE A<t FRIE R > A R 5308691000 ( Z &
— T AR¥S53570007T) ¢ MR X
e W% BE NRENEMNZEEINA
REZT(ZFE-FF : AR 241,659,000
TC) ARSI - BBEWME - BB MEREERE
B R TR FRIER D A R 38,168,000 7T (=
T-FF : ARK758441,0007T) ° ?dﬁﬁl?%
Y - BB MERED R - B
2%'.!;/\5%206,242,0007E(f§f7¢ A
R 268,176,0007T) - BEWZ - HE K&
BRWIR LR F5E A AR 3787231000
T(ZE-FF : AREE3920,760,0007T) °

REOED T —FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Singapore on 17 July 2006 under the Singapore Companies
Act and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The registered office of the Company is located at 80 Robinson Road, #02-00,
Singapore 068898. The principal place of business of the Group is located at
Xinxiang Economic Development Zone (Xiaoji Town), Henan Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal activity of the Company
is investment holding. Particulars of the Group's subsidiaries and associates
are disclosed in Note 45 and 38(a) respectively.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are mainly the development, manufacturing, and trading of related
differentiated products such as urea, compound fertiliser, methanol,
dimethyl ether (DME), melamine, furfuryl alcohol, furfural, 2-methylfuran
and medical intermediate.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of
financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(International) (“SFRS (1)) and International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs").

For the purpose of SFRS (l)s, financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance and complied with IFRS are deemed to have also complied with
SFRS (I)s. SFRS (I) comprise standards and interpretations that are equivalent
to IFRS. All references to SFRS (I) and IFRS are referred to collectively as “IFRS”
in these financial statements, unless specified otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi ("/RMB”) and all values in the tables
are rounded to the nearest thousand ("RMB’000") except when otherwise
indicated.

The Group had net current liabilities of RMB5,615 million (2020: RMB4,378
million) as at 31 December 2021.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

After taking into account the cash flows projection for the following twelve
months from the reporting date, the available unutilised banking facilities
and exclusion of contract liabilities (non-financial liabilities) of RMB1,079
million as at 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group will have sufficient funds to finance its operations and financial
obligations as and when they fall due, and accordingly, are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to restate the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(@] the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1 HmEEE(E)

REBB RS AHESRRT —EANR
EREFRD - IBRBARITEELR=
T+ -_A=+—HANFKREHNEE
GEzmBE) ARK 10798 AR F
EERR/AEERRABIHRRARR
BEeRNELELRNBBRHRNMEE
£ Bt BERBELERERUME
Hx -

AN SR B R BE AR A AR i R A& 1
FBELABRBINEEEEZEATROS
BB 2 A A EELRE
ARSIERBDEERBEDRIEHDER
RBEENBE - IR EMNZEHE
M EWARNZFEE M mR T R -

e R

RAVBBRRBEARARENEBERQ
ARBEIAEEDRBE_T-—F
TZA=t—BMMBHRK - HEL T
BEANRERIREEN Z2ER(21
REMEER) EAKEEE2HEREY
R A8 B E By A AT 2 B o AL B Bk
ERZFEAEM% WEBRINERY
BREHRzEN(AREAEEBAA
EENTEREHR MRS 2 IREFER)

2/

YBH SRR - BGHHIE -
EARFEERERA SRR EHRA
LY BELELRF] - EFEE LT
BUREHR 2 NG - AEEREEH
EHMEERER B -

(@) HERBEHSHMKRERSEEZA
2z HF

(b) EHtaRTHELZERN: &

©  AKBZREESECRERE -

REOED —B FEH

103

-



104

Notes to Financial Statements

MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Consolidation of the subsidiaries in the PRC is based on the subsidiaries’
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. Profits reflected in
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs may differ from
those reflected in the PRC statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries,
prepared for PRC financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations, profits available for distribution by the PRC
subsidiaries are based on the amounts stated in the PRC statutory financial
statements.
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2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year except that in the current financial year, the Group has
adopted all the new and amended standards which are relevant to the
Company and are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021. The adoption of these standards did not have any
material effect on the financial performance or position of the Group and
the Company.

2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretation
applicable to the Group that have been issued but not yet effective:

Description

22 EFERENSBRKE

FIERAE St BOR B E— M F E RN E
— 0 ERAMBEE  AEEEHRAR
—E - —F-A-HRHERENFEY
AR A R AR R R B B Z PR #R] &

zgﬂku AR o FRMZFERHARE .&$
NAEMPABRESAAR L BEEATE

23 CEEMERERERER
REBWREA N IEARARRINEE
1B R R AR R Rl e iR

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after
RT3 B #s 2%
FRIR FERREX

Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework PREA TS 3R 22 R 3 3 SRASET A 1 January 2022
B2 AEZRAY 5/ T _F—H—H
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

The directors expect that the adoption of the other standards and
interpretation above will have no material impact on the financial
statements in the period of initial application.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December 2021. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the parent, and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the
parent.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such
circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not
have control or joint control of those policies.

The Group account for its investments in associates using the equity
method from the date on which it becomes an associate.

On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable
assets and liabilities represents goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment is included as income in the determination of the entity’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Under the equity method, the investment in associates are carried in the
balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of net assets of the associates. The profit or loss reflects the share of results
of the operations of the associates. Distributions received from associates
reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Where there has been a
change recognised in other comprehensive income by the associates,
the Group recognises its share of such changes in other comprehensive
income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associates.

Where the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in associate. The Group determines at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared as the same

reporting date as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments are mad to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The Group’s principal operations are conducted in the PRC. The directors
have determined the currency other primary economic environment in
which each entity in the Group operates, i.e., functional currency, to be
RMB. Sales prices and major costs of providing goods and services including
major operating expenses are primarily influenced by fluctuations in RMB.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial
recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or
on translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period are
recognised in profit or loss.

For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated into RMB at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or
loss.

China XLX 2021 Annual Report

3. TESTBEREE(E)

DFERE (&)

IR B EREN AV BHRABRANEE
IEEMNS  AREZBNSHEHRE
HAEoR(ERE AT EFEEREMS
BEANKEBERABB EEREEL
TRFRER -

WEEE

AEBZETEXRBRTEET EFETE
AEERERKENHEHMTIELEREE
B(AIREEE) BARE - =M m &R
BRHEBERMEIEXRA(BREELE
FX) TBEXARBKBTE AEEY
EERBETHIGEEY  MitASER

PG ERR 2B TIATIRE EHETE -

INER S

SNERZ ZTIAR R B R EWERRE R
M B2 WERFERE - XA
MR EBIRENR 5 B e ERE XS
MERARR - MINBEHENEREERE
BIRAERE RO EBEXRBE - REF
SERRAAINE T EREERIAR LIFR
5 AHIMERGE - RN FENINEFTE
HBFERIAR UEE A THEE AMERK

= o
>t

ARHmEHRSEEHRB RBEEER
B mELSREN ZRHERERAFER -

RETHEEAR  BIRBHEENEE
DRBERRNEXBERARE - M
HERRX5AHNRTERRE - BE
LM E H RN M 2 e R R
R HEBINRBE - BREZEESINE
B HEMbEEEZ BO RN BEwERDE

=7
e



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family is and
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset
and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives and residual values used for
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

COAL MINING RIGHTS

Coal mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. A coal mining right is amortised over its
useful life using a unit-of-production method once production commences.
The coal mining right is written off to profit or loss if the coal mining
property is abandoned.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are measure on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is
consistent with the function of intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but
are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group recognises prepaid land lease payments as right-of-use assets
at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Refer to the accounting policies on Leases for more
details.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as
disclosed in the section Revenue recognition.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through OCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)" on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed
at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCl are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no
recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables,
and loan to an associate and loan to a director included under other non-
current financial assets.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCl, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognized in OCl. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in OCl is recycled to profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)
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© Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity © EBEEAFEFAEMEEKRER
instruments) SEVEE (g E)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCl
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCl. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments, bills receivable, listed and
non-listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through OCl. Dividends on listed equity investments
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-
financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate
derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

DERECOGNITION

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset When the Group
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
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MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 B8E = E = —#+=H=1+—HIFHHFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
DERECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial
guarantee contracts. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCl, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates
whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal
credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when the contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bill payables, certain
accruals and other payables, loans from a non-controlling interest, amounts
due to related companies, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
bonds payable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

(b) Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position, net
of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long term liability on
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction
costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments
are first recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds payable are classified under loans and borrowings and recognised
initially at fair value. After initial recognition, bonds payable are
subsequently measured at cost because the effect of discounting would be
immaterial as their terms are relatively short.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred

income account and is released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are recognised as an expense, unless the cost qualifies
to be capitalised as an asset.

(A) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund Scheme in
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to the
defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related service is performed.

(B) EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Group’s subsidiary operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan and grants restricted stock unit awards to the Group's
employees. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of restricted stock unit awards is recognised as an expense with a
corresponding increase in the capital reserve over the vesting period.

The total amount of restricted stock unit awards to be recognised over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value which is the
market price of the stocks of the subsidiary on the date of the grant.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
(B) EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

At each state of financial position date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of restricted stock unit awards that are expected to vest and
recognises the impact of the revision of the estimates in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve over the remaining vesting
period.

LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Rights-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land 210 20 years
Plant and machinery 5to 15 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,

depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the
accounting policies in section Impairment of non-financial assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)
GROUP AS A LESSEE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease
liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(ii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of machinery and equipment (i.e, those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)
GROUP AS A LESSOR

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service to the customer, which is
when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A performance
obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of
revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance
obligation.

SALE OF GOODS

The Group is in the business of manufacture and trading of urea, compound
fertilizer, dimenthyl ether I, methanol, melamine, urea solution for vehicle,
furfuryl alcohol, medical intermediate and related products. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer and all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

The amount of revenue recognised is based on the estimated transaction
price, which comprises the contractual price, net of the estimated volume
rebates. Based on the Group's experience with similar types of contracts,
variable consideration is typically constrained and is included in the
transaction only to the extent that it is a highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)
SALE OF GOODS (CONTINUED)

At the end of each reporting date, the Group updates its assessment
of the estimated transaction price, including its assessment of whether
an estimate of variable consideration is constrained. The corresponding
amounts are adjusted against revenue in the period in which the
transaction price changes.

INCOME TAXES

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferredtax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating
segments based on their products and the segment results are reported
directly to the management of the Company who regularly reviews the
segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these
segments are shown in Note 5, including the factors used to identify the
reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information.

CONTINGENCIES

A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group;

or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognised because:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
or

(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group, except for contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which
the fair values can be reliably determined.

3. TESTBEREE(E)

7B

AEEMS  AREREBEEERDBELE
DB WHEERARREEREHRD G
R MARFIEEES TP nabx
B UNEEREND B RFHED BRI -
ZENR B BNBEINNBEENMES B
AR B BE R LD ER
BETEEAE o

HAREIR
SRBIEE

@ ABEAEMMUREEENES - U
EEHERE —THAETFTTIEER
REHSREATEER  MAE
BT eemEEs ERREHS
BEAE

%

by FABAETEHMEENREERLE
WIERHRA

() ATRAEREALENDME
R AR ERRIET X

(i) TEZROHASZMHAEEES
B o

IREERABESFHMALELENE
B MEERR -—FTRERTEERARSE
HERBEESEER  MAREALTEET
PRGN ERREHELESE

SRABEREEEARENGS BN
KPP TR BEREBEHFPAE A
RIEER - ARAIARSEEE A AT
ERARERID

REOED —B FEH

131



132

Notes to Financial Statements

MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

INCOME TAXES

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore and the PRC.
Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s income tax payable, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2021 were RMB167,055,000,
RMB102,523,000 and RMB68,519,000 respectively and no income tax
recoverable (2020: RMB42,709,000, RMB100,430,000 and RMB50,143,000
respectively).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

IMPAIRMENT OF COAL MINING RIGHTS AND GOODWILL

The carrying values of coal mining rights and goodwill included in coal
mining CGU are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy for the impairment of non-financial
assets in the section of summary of significant accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of the coal mining rights and goodwill, or, where
appropriate, the cash-generating units to which they belong, are calculated
as the value-in-use. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to
estimate the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit
and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. At 31 December 2021, no impairment loss has
been recognised for the coal mining rights and goodwill. The carrying
amount of the coal mining rights and goodwill at 31 December 2021
were RMB236,961,000 (2020: RMB84,643,000) and RMB63,022,000 (2020:
RMB63,022,000) respectively. Further details are given in Note 17 and Note
18.

COAL MINE RESERVE

The estimation of the Group’s coal mine reserve is inherently imprecise and
represent only approximate amounts because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information. There are authoritative guidelines
regarding the engineering criteria that have to be met before an estimated
coal mine reserve can be designated as “proved” and “probable”. Proved
and probable coal mine reserve estimates are updated on regular intervals
taking into recent production and technical information about each mine.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate
of the proved and probable coal mine reserve also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected
on a prospective basis in related amortisation rates.

The capitalised cost of the coal mining right is amortised over the estimated
useful life of the related coal mine reserve. The useful life is reviewed
annually in accordance with the production of the plants of the Group and
the proven and probable reserves of the coal mines. The carrying amount
of the coal mining rights at 31 December 2021 was RMB236,961,000 (2020:
RMBB84,643,000).
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on its products, and has eight reportable operating segments (2020:
eight) as follows:

(i) Manufacturing and sale of urea

(if) Manufacturing and sale of compound fertiliser

(ii) Manufacturing and sale of dimethyl ether (DME)

(iv) Manufacturing and sale of methanol

(v) Manufacturing and sale of melamine

(Vi) Manufacturing and sale of urea solution for vehicle

(vii)  Manufacturing and sale of furfuryl alcohol

(vii)  Manufacturing and sale of medical intermediate

In the opinion of the directors, there were only limited operations in the
subsidiaries that are engaged in coal mining and the sale of coal and
the assets and liabilities were not material for the purpose of segment
reporting. Accordingly, a separate operating segment for the coal mining

business carried out by these subsidiaries has not been presented.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated
to form the above reportable operating segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of gross profit. Group
financing (including finance costs), income taxes and other unallocated
items, as explained below, are managed on a group basis and are not
allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling

prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
ALLOCATION BASIS

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise other income and gains, other expenses, selling and distribution
expenses, general and administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense.

Group assets and liabilities cannot be directly attributable to individual
segments as it is impracticable to allocate them to the segments. Assets of
the Group are utilised interchangeably between different segments and
there is no reasonable basis to allocate liabilities of the Group between
different segments. Accordingly, it is not meaningful to disclose assets,
liabilities and capital expenditure by operating segments.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. RK&o5H&ER (&)

SEGMENT PROFIT INFORMATION D ER R E R

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the segment resultis ~ ARAIEERBHOEHEEREF -
the gross profit.

Compound Urea Solution Furfuryl Medical
Urea fertiliser DME  Methanol  Melamine forvehicle alcohol  Intermediate Others ~ Elimination Total
Year ended 31 December 2021 & gaR ZFR FE Bk ERRENR BE BEMER i 45 it
Hz-8--F RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TZR=t-RLEE MEBTn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTn ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARETR  ARETR
REVENUE WA
Saes o externelustomes BELHER  A9MIM 37BE6 14893 178534 1205808 S5 886 SU78M 1801105 - 1681531
Interseqment sales AiEEE 809,226 654,642 2261 196,620 13713 153,198 17 1,584 53123 (2592,560) -
Total revenue g\ 5,767,997 4408328 1441199 1,955,154 1,449,521 708946 834913 509,425 2332398 (2592560) 16815321
Segment esdt Pk 1663055 478 Mg 2806 M2 AT 12 19015 64T4s6 - 43
Recongiton HE
Ineretincome LN 21859
Unalocated oherincomeand gans - RAREAHA
B 147509
Unglocated expenses net AOERR5E (1,799253)
Fiance costs i (583370)
Prfit beforetx (i 2175602
Income taxexperse HEET (406232
Proftforthe year TEER 1769370
Other segment information: EhauEs .
Losson isposal propery plartand ~ HEYE « i
equipment Note ) TEENEE
i) 4610
Deprecaionofpoperty plntand. 9% + BT
equipment Note ) REAE
(it7) 1013436
Amorisafon ofinangbleasets BT/ EEES
Note) (Ht7) 784
Depectioncirghtofuseasets  FHEAENE
(Note?) (Ht7) 3759
Amorisafonofcod minngrights SRR RS
(Note?) (Hit7) 3486
Capte expendiue’ ERER 416710
||
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * BERRTBEANEYE  WEREH - £
right-of-use assets and intangible assets. AEEERBLAE -

136  China XLX 2021 Annual Report



5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. RK&o5H&ER (&)

Compound Urea Soluton Furfury Medical
Uea feriiser DVE Methanol Melamne ~ forvehicle deohol  Intermedfate Others ~ Elmination Tol
Yearendedt 31 December 2020 & et il BE  CEER ERREME BE EEiEE i i et
4330 WEOD  RBID  MBNO RGN0 RGO RBOD  RVBOD  RBID MBIO  RBI0 RUBOD
TIASTRLEE MRETL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR ARETR
REVENUE WA
Sals toetemalcusomers HELIBER 3w 319 159 S 61350 B 1189 Bl W - 104
Intersegmentsls AERE 661568 W8 20305 141 10124 145505 I - B4 (177000) -
Total revenue g 37461 3500415 1008204 51563 10474 719317 SUNR0 BISH 1251299 (1770022) 10444722
Seqment resul A%k 841763 541515 811 12844 201316 188245 12739 3987 JIENLY) - 2214559
Reconglton: HE
Ineretincome kA 18711
Unalocatedotherincomeandgans~ RATEAAA
Rb& 180019
Unglocated expenses net AOURY 5E (13808%)
Fiance costs i 10139
Prfit beforetx AR 631074
Income taxexpense FEHRER (10592
Proftforthe year FEREA 51148
Othersegmentinformation: ~~~ EfA5ER
Ga ondisposa poperty plantand. HEHTE i
equipment Note) et
(Bfite) pc)]
Depreciaionofpoperty plntand. 9%+ R
equipment Note ) REAE
(3t7) 13066
hmortiationofmangbleasses  EFEERE
Mot (Hit7) 49
Deprectionfightcfuseassels ~ (EEARNE
le?) (Hit7) 318
Amorisafon ofcod minngrights (SRR RS
Iote ) () 1597
Capte expendiue’ ETER 581339
|
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, right- * BXARETBEABRE WX BERR
of-use assets and intangible assets including assets acquired from the acquisition - FRBEERBIEE BIEXRANK
of subsidiaries. BB ARNBEWEEE -
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. &K&5H&ER (&)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION @& R
The Group mainly operates in Mainland China. REEEZ2HEFBEAHLE
Revenue from external customers: REINFEF WA -
Group
REE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
China: Central Region R AR AR 6,105,595 3,701,923
East Region R R 15 7,300,317 4,417,526
Western Region Pl 1,921,888 1,339,901
North-east Region FAb IR 931,773 738,827
Overseas RN 555,748 246,545
16,815,321 10,444,722
]

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based on the
locations of the customers.

INFORMATION ABOUT A MAJOR CUSTOMER

The Group had no customers from whom the revenue derived individually
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue in year 2021
and year 2020, including sales to a group of entities which are known to be
under common control with that customer.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold, after deduction of relevant taxes and allowances for
returns and trade discounts.
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA - H A R s ()

5B HY A~ B At A Ko M s o AT an

Group
AEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBFT
Revenue 'ON
Type of goods or service EnRRBER
Sales of goods* HESm* 16,815,321 10,444,722
I
Timing of revenue recognition U A TR
Ata pointin time AR (RS R 2h 16,815,321 10,444,722
* Please refer to Note 5 for disaggregation of revenue. BN AB DY - 5F2BMEES ©
CONTRACT BALANCES
Group
A%E
2021 2020
=T=—F —
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETFT
Trade receivables (Note 23) B S A (e 23) 341,551 204,032
Contract liabilities (Note 28) & #EE (it 28) 1,079,227 818,149
I

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group's obligation to transfer
goods to customers for which the Group has received advances from
customers. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as the Group
performs under the contract.

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

ENAEBTERAEERAEEDRIE
FEMFBENEFEBEEmNRTERM -
BHRERAREREANENRER R
YA

ARSI B AT mERR WA SRR

Amount included in contract liabilities at the STAFHIENEaEZHIE

beginning of the year

Group
REE
2021 2020
—E--F —ER-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
805,464 558,998
]
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;E\ZI- Z% iﬁﬂzﬁ BﬁH For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #,

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(CONTINUED)

F_FC

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised

below:

SALE OF INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the industrial
products and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required.
Some contracts provide customers with a right of return and volume

rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to constraint.

—F A=t —HUIHEFE

6. WA - HBRAR W ()

AREBROEETNHERBURIAT -

HET¥EESR

BHAOBENRIEERR

RSN - AR

FORE AN 30 E 00 KA IS AT -

HEFEP AL ATBLNK - &6

DAEMAE

FPREERERLMED - EmE A&
BHRE(BEXRH) -

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS HAbU A R Wi
Group
rEE
2021 2020
=F=-F e
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt AR¥ TR ARETFT
Bank interest income ERITH SUA 21,859 18,711
Net profit from sales of by-products, water,  $HEEIEMR K ~ B
electricity and steam FARIAEF 89,987 74,809
Rental income HEWA 4,550 2,190
Amortisation of deferred grants PR 7 BL 5 29 10,152 12,670
Subsidy income HERWA 25,343 33,282
Compensation income mEWzS 2,481 7016
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME - HE R
equipment Bl - 27,280
Gain on other investments HA1% & W 204 2,706
Gain/(loss) on derivative financial instruments $TAE £ @ T A
Wz, (&#H) 550 (2.194)
Exchange gains B 5 I s 235 15,691
Others Hity 14,007 6,569
169,368 198,730
T
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7.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBEADRF

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBABRTLATSEFI TR (A -
Group
rEE
2020
—TCTF
Not;\s RMB'000
FtEE AREFT
Cost of inventories sold HETFERA 12,426,464 8,230,163
Depreciation of property, plant and E R 14
equipment KT E 1,013,436 723,266
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EEH 16 7,824 7,409
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETNE 15 43,759 53618
Amortisation of coal mining rights AR R A 5E 18 3,486 1,537
Minimum lease payments under operating A& FA 4T TR HRIK 15
leases: HaE:
Factories 5B 5,627 8678
Buildings BF 93 225
Land - 83 114
5,803 9,017
Auditor's remuneration ZE A< 4,188 4,138
Employee benefit expenses (including BB REAIFX
directors’ remuneration): (BREESEFH)
Salaries and bonuses e MIEAT 959,925 706,921
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B
(defined contribution scheme) (REHE-AREED 119,461 85,674
Benefits in kind EWHa 88,516 74,253
Share-based payment expense VAR 7 32 1+ B0 R A A 37
H 11,419 -
1,179,321 866,848
Impairment losses on financial assets TRVEERERE 23 14,570 5,640
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BE M 14
equipment* EAERIE 5,856 113,109
Impairment of inventories* FERE* 21 10,650 1,727
Unrealised exchange losses/(gains), net* REBEH 18/
(%zm) - FER~ 750 (5,941)
Realised exchange gains, net* B B3R I 5 g
R (985) (9,750)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BE K
equipment R EE 46,610 -
Loss on fair value change of SRTAENRTE
finandial instruments through BE)EHIE - FEE
profit and loss, net* 2,988 4,811
Donations 50 11,867 5,586
]
* Included in “Other expenses” disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or * BiETHEEEaREMEEKERPHRE
loss and other comprehensive income. B [EAbRSZ | o
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8. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

8. BABERA
BITERRADHTEAT

Group
rEH
2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETFT
Interest on bank loans, other loans and bonds RITER - HEF K
BEHHHE 581,439 394,261
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGENTIE 1,931 7,107
Interest on government loans BREFHFE = 11
583,370 401,379
]
9.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEME
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed AEFEEESERTBETHRAENME - BB

pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong

ERBIEE - BB R EHEHIZE383(1)@) »

Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of (0)* @ ROIERRRIGHIZE 28 S (K&
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: BHRESENOER) BEWT
Group
rEE
2021 2020
—R——F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBFT
Fees ue 1,050 1,050
Other employments: ,ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁﬂ/i\ :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind EBLNREYNIR 2,517 2,523
Performance related bonuses* %Z TEAL* 29,508 13,651
Pension scheme contributions RS FT IR 133 128
32,158 16,302
33,208 17,352
T

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonuses which are
determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the Group.
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 9. EEME (E)
(A)  INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (A  BYFHITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were ~ FRN FEYIFMITEFT 2SO ¢
as follows:

Group

rEH
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETFT
Ong Kian Guan TER 300 300
Li Shengxiao FTER 250 250
Ong Wei Jin TR 250 250
Li Hongxing TR 250 250
1,050 1,050

N

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non- AR EEN TE I IEBTTE F 19 E (B
executive directors during the year (2020: Nil). B(ZT_TF |)-

-
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9.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 9. EEME (&)
(B)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (B) HITESBRITHAER
Salaries,
allowances and Pension scheme
benefits in kind Performance- contributions Total
Fees & - 2BK  related bonuses BKE  remuneration
Year ended 31 December 2021 ok BN ZERA HEDGES HEe
BE-_E——-& RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TZA=t—HLEE ARETR ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Executive directors: HOTEE:
Liu Xingxu ) - 867 12,700 33 13,600
Yan Yunhua BaE - 684 6,336 36 7,056
Zhang Qingjin RES - 684 9,972 36 10,692
- 2,235 29,008 105 31,348
|
Chief Executive director: 1T EE,
Ma Tongsheng SRt = 282 500 28 810
|
Salaries, allowances
and benefits in Pension scheme
kind%r& - 28k Performance- contributions
Fees % related bonuses RIKE Total remuneration
Year ended 31 December 2020 e EMla EEEA SRR B
Hz-Z2-%F% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TZA=+—-BILLEE AREFT AREFT AREFT AEETT AEETT
Executive directors: HITES
Liu Xingxu 2 & - 867 5281 33 6,181
Yan Yunhua Baz - 687 3300 33 4020
Zhang Qingjin RES - 687 4620 33 5,340
- 2,241 13,201 99 15,541
|
Chief Executive director: 1T, -
Ma Tongsheng SEE - 282 450 29 761

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to ~ F A M E RN E KRB WEE(AT B HY
waive any remuneration during the year (2020: Nil). ZH(ZE-ZF : §)

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directorsas ~ F A * NEBEWBAEEZ NS - 1EA

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for  ANABKH DIAZN &= B R &) 2ERh 3k 1E /3 B sk
loss of office. BIF(E o
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAY EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2020:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 9 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2020: two) non-director,
highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

10. HERERSHFMES

AEBEARFENIERSHHREERE=
2(ZTTF: ZR)EF - EMEwF

BHR SO0 - ABEMME (B
B W) FEFRSHEMESOHE
BRI

Group

rEE
2021 2020
—E-—f —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBREDMHE 667
Performance-related bonuses Ex vzl 1,300
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHE 72 65
2,169 2,032

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

BT IBEZANFESH
EMEBWT

= # e

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000001 T2

AER#E 1,500,000 7T

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

REERA -
BEXNME - ERMARRINAKREE
Ry ) SE B S B S BER AV AR (E -

R B I B B R B Ak e B Y
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is incorporated in Singapore and is subject to income tax at
the rate of 17% (2020: 17%) for the year.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to income tax
at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%). During the year, eleven (2020: nine) of the
subsidiaries were given the New/High Tech Enterprise Award as recognition
of their innovation and use of state-of-the-art equipment. This award
brought these subsidiaries a tax concession of a lower income tax rate (i.e.
15%) for three years since the subsidiaries awarded the New High-Tech
Enterprise Award.

The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 are:

11. FBFHMAx

AR TRIF IR MA L - WA AR
179% (=B =B 17%) BT BB E M
4BHIE -

WA E A3 75 FEER B M 0 B IR IR AN SR B 4K
ERERNBZRKRITORERGE -

ARBHMEB AN B A ERFSH
FHE25% (ZE T F 1 25%) BUMNTRIE -
REAFE  EF+—R(ZEZZEF: 1L
R)MBAREESFRMEERE - U
BT EBHR AR R R R o
ZBRBEFZENB AT B ESHESIIT
MEHEBEER=—FANZEREMESHRE
K (BN15%) FIFSER °

B2 - 4K -_ZT-_ZFTF+_-H
Tt BUHVREFEMSHAS 2 EES
DT

Group

rEH
2021 2020
et —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT

Current - PRC BNER - AR EY
Charge for the year FEMXZ 412,853 133,510
Over provision in respect of prior years B FEREERE (22,905) (9,146)
Deferred charge/(credit) (Note 34) EIEER, 7 (BEA) (BiEE34) 16,284 (17,438)
Total tax charge for the year REERIBF T 85 406,232 106,926
]
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries

11. Fﬁ- ﬁrﬁﬁi(nﬁ)

AP BERERBBRRARRLREME R
Tﬁﬁﬁl%ﬂ’]%mfﬂﬂ—u BRI A

are domiciled to the tax charge for the financial year at the effective tax rate BB IE R 2 ER BRI R B R IB R 2
is as follows: HERWT -
Group
rER
2021 2020
—B_—F ZEIEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Profit before tax R A A 2,175,602 631,074
]
Tax at statutory tax rates BEEREFENHIE 543,901 157,769
Effect of a tax concession BxEEnTE (163,402) (69,586)
Withholding tax TEHIRIIE 37,570 24,008
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEEE 6,858 4,493
Expenses not deductible for tax Ik 8,794 3,107
Over provision in respect of prior years BT FERERE (22,905) (9,146)
Effect of other concession EmERHTE (3,165) (2,706)
Others Hity (1,419) (1,013)
Tax charge at the effective rate of 18.7% ?Tzf‘gilzﬁ?fﬁ¥ 18.7%
(2020: 16.9%) “TTF 1 169%) FTEN
BIAF X 406,232 106,926
T
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
Group
rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Final dividend paid-RMB8 cents SRR B - LR
(2020: RMBS cents) per ordinary share AR¥SH (_ = _EE :
AR¥8S) 116,204 93,730
T
Proposed final dividend-RMB19 cents BEARHRE -GKRE = @Hﬁ
(2020: RMB10 cents) per ordinary share ARB19 (ZE-TF
AR®E105) 222,608 117,162
T

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REAZZHRAREAFARABRERER
BT RITHRFBEE RS LI - 167 1E

= o
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Notes to Financial Statements
MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. BAREEREZEEAEMN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BRER

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares (inclusive
of mandatorily convertible instruments issued) of 1,171,621,000 (2020:
1,171,621,000), as adjusted to reflect the convertible bonds issued in 2011.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the

EREAREERFCEIREF AR
BRESEEABRLFERGN @ MEHAE
R =T ——FE BT RRESH
AR HNRE 35 E01,171,621,000 % (BFEE
BITHR BT R T R) (T T4 :
1,171,621,000 %) 5t EBH ©

BREANBERFSENATEEAE

following data: S
Group
rER
2021 2020
—B-—F T FF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders AR ESRERREERT
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted MEARIEEREEFEA
earnings per share calculation (5 F 1,294,139 347,662
]
Group
rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZERCEF
Number of shares Number of shares
g 4= IR 8B
Shares ;8
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT EERERRIERF
(inclusive of mandatorily convertible i & A AL NAE T 5 2R
instruments issued) for the purpose of (BIEE B TR BT
calculating basic and diluted earnings AR T A)
per share 1,171,621,000 1,171,621,000
T
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BERRXRE

31 December 2021 —E-—-%+Z-H=+—H

Office
Otherfixtures equipment
and structures Plantand  and furniture Construction

Buildings EftEE  machinery HAZ  Motorvehicles  inprogress Total

B7 MEUREE RERER RERGR nE ERIR #
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O

ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR  ARMTR

Cost B
At January 2021 RZB-—%5-A-H 1,797,407 2,296,388 9,526,562 427,320 164,940 5,008,660 19,221,217
Additions AE 5507 28,236 63,812 18,536 34,042 3,778,334 3,928,467
Transfers 2 644,610 1,122,816 3,716,745 104,661 810 (5,675,784) (86,142)
Transferfrom right-of-use assets (Note 19) NEREEEER (s) = = 44712 - - = 44712
Transfer from other assets fERMEEER - - 185,625 - - - 185,625
Disposals i (14,894) (20,677) (239,261) (4,251) (11,342) - (290,425)
Transfer to construction in progress BRERRTR (38,545) (56788) (573453 (6,202) = 674,988 =
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—E+ZF=1-H 2,394,085 3369975 13,104,742 540,064 188,450 3786198 23383514
Accumulated depreciation Zithg:
At 1 January 2021 NZE--F-f-A 326,495 409,610 2,986,457 271,242 100,562 - 4,094,366
Depreciation during the year (Note 7) ERiE (fiE7) 81,911 116,463 745,465 49313 20,284 = 1,013,436
Transferfiom right-of-use assets (Note 19) NEREEEER (i) - = 209,536 = = S 209,536
Transfer fiom other assets fEAMEEER - - 93,708 - - - 93,708
Disposals HE (6,440) (8,986) (153,892) (3,954) (9,860) - (183,132)
Transfer to construction in progress BRERRIR (16,174) (22488)  (362,230) (5817) = 406,709 -
At31 December 2071 RoB-—F+-f=1-A 385792 494599 3519044 310,784 110986 406709 5227914
Impairment; Wi
At1 January 2021 NZE--F-F-A 11,448 6,075 96,957 125 - 11,841 126,446
Additions e - - 5,847 9 - - 5,856
Disposals & (3421) (3978) (25.279) (35) - - (32713)
131 December 2021 WZEZ-F+Zf=1-H 8027 2097 71,525 9 - 11841 99,589
Canying amount; B
At31 December 2021 R-B_—4+-f=1-A 2000266 2873219 9508173 229181 77464 3367648 18056011

-

hELCED —Z-—FFH% 149



150

Notes to Financial Statements

MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 B8E = E = —#+=H=1+—HIFHHFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

In 2018, a subsidiary of the Group sold plant and machinery with net carrying
value of RMB431,118,000 to a third party and entered into an arrangement
with the third party to lease back the assets for RMB300,000,000 over a
period of three years. The sales and lease back arrangement is to secure a
bank borrowing of RMB300,000,000 granted to the Group. The difference
between the net carrying value of the assets and lease consideration of
RMB131,118,000 is deferred and amortised over the lease term as other
assets. As at 31 December 2021, the sales and lease back arrangement
have been expired, resulting the related fixed assets and other assets are
transferred to the plant and machinery which amounts to RMB307,100,000.

The Group has plant and machinery with a carrying value RMB925,867,000
(2020: RMB985,424,000) is mortgaged to secure the Group's bank loans (Note
30).
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14. Y% - BENKE (&)

—E-N\F AEEN—ZXMBA
ﬁ% FHERE RS - %ﬁ@@ﬁ
ANR#4311180007T * WELFZE =T
ZHE - WZ=ZFHOHEEE  REABARE
300,000,000 7T © $HE & B0 & HE 5§ £ iR
MRS B % IR 1T 5 & A R ¥ 300,000,000
JT ° é?%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
AR# 131118000 L E 1K szﬂﬁ%m
&E@é?%% W—_ZE-_—%+—-A
=+—8" %E&EEKHEU% RS
BEEERHEMEEEREZME RS
S A AR 307,100,000 7T °

AEBIEIRERMEE AR 925867,000 70( =
T-TF: AE%%mmmwmmﬁ%
NS AAREBRIRITE IR HER (M
£T30) ©
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 14. Y% BERZME (E)
31 December 2020 —ZE-EF+-A=+—H
Office
Other fixtures equipment and
and structures Plant and fumiture Construction in
Buldings HEMEE  machinery HAZE  Motorvehicles progress Total
BF MEWREE FRREE  RERGE B RRIE a5t
RMBOOD RMBOOOD RMBO0) RMBOOO RMB OO0 RMBO0D RMBOQD
Group el AEBTR  ARETT  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETT  ARETR  AR%TR
Cost AR
At1 January 2020 RZZ-55-A-A 1528867 1874034 7,663,044 335004 141589 2615203 14157741
Additions TE 1783 449 90508 430 941 530815 5478488
Transfers EE 369573 589794 1897141 7575 8 (97634 #7.201)
Reclassifcation EFipLs (9356) 91% - 160 - - -
Acquisition of subsiciaries WEEMB AT 32007 10197 109,179 1,364 1931 41649 196327
Disposals & (125467) (191,331) (237669) (6,199) (8424) - (569082)
Acquisition of business WeexH - - 4355 108 541 - 5004
At31 Decernber 2020 RZZZFFT-A=1-H 1797407 296383 9526562 47130 164940 5008660 19221277
Accumulated depreciation BiHE:
A1 January 200 R-Z5-F%-A-R 2966 379078 2566415 138378 90,203 - 3570740
Depreciation during the year (Note 7) ERFE(T) 6203 73412 533958 3749 16171 - 73266
Reclassfication ENNE (122 - - 12 - - -
Acquisition of subsiciaries WEENB AT 3569 82 3853% 563 1253 - U753
Disposals it (35851) @371 (152450 (5313) (7069) - (244399)
At31 Decernber 2020 RZZZFFT-A=1-H 306495 409610 2986457 MM 100562 - 4094366
Impairment; i
At T January 2020 RZE-EE-A-H 40407 30660 29410 40 - 1370 11249
Additions hE 10365 5984 %639 ] - - 113,109
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENB AR - - - - - a a
Disposals Wit (39324 (30569 (29092) (399 - - (99383)
At 31 December 2020 WZE-FET-A=T-R 11448 6075 9,057 125 - 11841 126446
Camying amount: HEE:
At 31 December 2020 RZZZFFT-A=1-H 1459464 1,880,703 6443148 155953 64378 4996819 15000465

—FFR
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MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

15. LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, plant and machinery
used in its operations. Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease
terms with three years, while land generally have lease terms between 2
and 50 years. The Group's obligations under its leases are secured by the
lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets and some contracts require the
Group to maintain certain financial ratios.

The Group also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12
months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Group
applies the 'short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition
exemptions for these leases.

(A)  CARRYING AMOUNTS OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised
and the movements during the period:

15. HE

AEBEELZEEERY  SERKLERH
REANSELM  BENERER © K
FHR=HENHERBER3IF ML
HENHEMBER2ENF - AEEE
HEPAAENEBHEEAHBEEEE
MFTERER - —RME - AEETEE
ENBHEEEE  MADANERALE
BMERAS E M REE R o

AEETEETHREE  HE B‘yﬁ/‘% 2 &
AT - THEREBENHARE - K
SEHRSHERMA [HHMHEE ] M EE
BEEME ] AR -

(A)  EAREENREE

TREHINZ PR EREAREENR
HERNLHEED

Land Machinery Total
T it RS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR®F T ARETR
Group REE
As at 1 January 2021 R-BE=_—H—HF—H 904,074 234,660 1,140,330
Additions NE 18,014 4,021 22,035
Transfer from construction IR TRERE (I 14)
in progress (Note 14) 86,142 - 86,142
Depreciation expense (Note 7) TEER (M) (23,606) (20,153) (43,759)
Disposal e (2,719) = (2,719)
Lease modification HE (6,807) - (6,807)
Transfer to property, plant and EEEYE - KE
equipment (Note 14) N8 (FfiE 14) - (215,176) (215,176)
As at 31 December 2021 N-—E—-_—5+=-H=+—H 975,098 4,948 980,046

As at 1 January 2020 R-E-ZEF—H—H 815,933 263,875 1,079,808
Additions NE 100,148 1,596 101,744
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE R B A7) 12,921 - 12,921
Depreciation expense (Note 7) reEER (MEE7) (24,403) (29,215) (53,618)
Revision of a lease term arising from FAE A HsEHARK 2 BB EE

achangein the non-cancellable  HYFEHAIERT

period of a lease (525) - (525)
As at 31 December 2020 R=ZB-BF+=-HA=+—H 904,074 234,660 1,140,330
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. #HE (&)
(B)  LEASE LIABILITIES (B) HEET

=

5
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under ~ FEREIIRZHABMEEEE(BREFEE
interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the REEF)NEAeEREEE)
period:

Group
rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
As at 1 January R—A—8H 72,541 170,400
Additions NE 4,021 6,671
Accretion of interest BB 1,931 7,107
Payments IE (48,672) (111,112)
Lease modification HeE# (6,563) (525)
As at 31 December W+=-—B=+—H 23,258 72,541
T
Current BNER 2,541 45,343
Non-current JERNHER 20,717 27,198
]
() AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS O REGEINSHE
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: AT RRIB=ERN S
Group
rEH
2020
—B-—F —ECTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets TREEENEER (M7)

(Note 7) 43,759 53618
Interest expense on leases liabilities (Note 8) HEBEMNBMAXZ (HiEs) 1,931 7107
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KEEEEHERBEER

(included in administrative expenses) (Note 7) BT ATTEEI ) (FF3E7) 5,803 9,017
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERERNEEE 51,493 69,742

REOED —B FEH
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MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. HE (&)
(D) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW (D) BE&RHEzE

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of RMB54,475,000 in 2021 (2020: AREBR T -—FWHERSRHERE
RMB120,129,000). BARES4475000L( ZEZFF : AR
#120,129,0007T) °

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BEE
Patents Software Total
=5 24 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AR%TR AR¥ TR
31 December 2021 —E-_—%+=-H=+—H
Group REH
Cost: B
At 1 January 2021 WZZE=——%F—H—H 38,528 47,309 85,837
Additions NE 8,475 1,929 10,404
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZHA=+—H 47,003 49,238 96,241
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHTE -
At 1 January 2021 RZZZ—F—H—H 12,175 10,277 22,452
Depreciation during the year FRITE 4,510 3,314 7,824
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=Z—F+=-A=+—H 16,685 13,591 30,276
Carrying amount: IRMEE
At 31 December 2021 WZE-——F+-A=+—H 30,318 35,647 65,965
|
31 December 2020 —E-EF+=-A=+—H
Group REH
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2021 R—E-——F—H—H 25,721 32453 58,174
Additions NE 12,807 198 13,005
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BB A A) 14,658 14,658
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=HA=+—H 38,528 47,309 85,837
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHTE -
At 1 January 2020 RZE=ZFEF—H—H 9,495 1,796 11,291
Depreciation during the year FRIE 2,680 7,748 10,428
Acquisition of subsidiaries Shgi)=YNG] - 733 733
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZF+-RA=+—AH 12,175 10,277 22,452
Carrying amount; IRMME -
At 31 December 2020 RZBE_EF+-_A=+—H 26,353 37,032 63,385
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17. GOODWILL

2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Group REE ARETT ARETT
At 1 January »n—H—H 63,022 29,001
Acquisition of subsidiaries hé-1ih=pNa)! - 34,021
At 31 December ®R+-—A=+—8 63,022 63,022
R
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL B RE R

Goodwill acquired through business acquisitions have been allocated to
following cash generating units (“CGU") for impairment testing:

Coal mining cash-generating unit;

Medical intermediate products cash-generating unit;
Furfural products cash-generating unit, and

Humic acid products cash-generating unit

COAL MINING CASH-GENERATING UNIT

The recoverable amount of the coal mining CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a 29.5-year period approved by management.
The pre-tax discounted rate applied to the cash flow projections is 11.1%
(2020: 13.0%).

MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT, FURFURAL
PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT AND HUMIC ACID PRODUCTS
CASH-GENERATING UNIT

The recoverable amounts of the medical intermediate products CGU,
furfural products CGU and humic acid products CGU have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering continuity periods approved by management.
The pre-tax discounted rates applied to the cash flow projections are 17.4%,
17.9%, and 17.4% respectively (2020: 17.4%, 17.7%, and 19.4% respectively).

Based on the annual impairment testing, no impairment charge was
recognised during the year.

BREHAFRBNEHEED @EIMTEE
CELBM(BReEASM]) - LUETR
BRI -

BRIRF SRR S E A BN
BEAHERERRSELSM
BEERREELEN &
BERERREELEM

RIEFR PR S EE B

HEARERSEEEUNIREERED
REREBEFAEAEEE T  MEMAEE
ERAKEEREMENTHBRE RE%E -
HE 295 FHIRMIR S RETERGTE - 7
AR EREBAFEA IR (ZZE_ZTF :

13.0%) BOHTIR 43R o
BHhEEERRESCELEN BEER

AeELEUMBEREMRCEL SN

EEmthREERRSELSEN BEER
ReELSENURRERERRSELS
R kEl £ BEERFEREEFEARE
BT mERBENFAEEEEIED
PEEEARAE  REEEHRMNRESR
STERETE - AR S R E 7889 R A
174% ~ 17.9% 2 174% I RIFI[(—Z
—ZF  HRIERE174% © 17.7%519.4%) °

RBFRRERR  RAFEAL EER
TR E R o

RELED —T= —FFR
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B RRIEE  For the financiar year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F+_-A=+—HIHKFZE

17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating
units is as follows:

Medical intermediate products
BEREEED

Coalmining

REFR

17. & (E)

EEF B ()
PERESEsELEVANEEREEN
—|T :

Furfural products

BRER

Hurnic acid products Total

REEER #;

2021 200 2021 200 2021 200 2021 200 2021 200

ZEC-F el CRT-F Wb ST -F Wil - - WEEba —f--F e

RMB000 [EEETVOM RVMB000 [EETEVON RMB000 JEERTEOVM RVB000 [EEV{VGN RMB000 [N

ARET PNSSpl ARYTr INSESyl \RETT PNSw ARYTL PNl ARETI PN

Carrying amount of goodiel HERER 25361 25361 3400 3401 1528 1528 2112 21 630 63022
T | D paaaaas  aaaaaas  paaaaa

ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE VALUE-IN-USE CALCULATION

The following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake the impairment testing of coal
mining CGU, medical intermediate products CGU, furfural products CGU
and humic acid products CGU:

(1) BUDGETED SALES AND OPERATING COSTS

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted sales
and operating costs are compared to the historical data and adjusted for
management’s expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

(1 GROWTH RATES

The forecasted growth rates are compared to the historical data and do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industries relevant to the
medical intermediate products CGU.

() COMMODITY PRICE

The basis used to determine the value assigned to commodity price is the
expectation of future changes in the market.

(V) PRE-TAX DISCOUNT RATE

The pre-tax discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant unit.
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17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

With regards to the assessment of value in use for coal mining CGU, medical
intermediate products CGU, furfural products CGU andhumic acid products
CGU, management believes that no reasonably possible changes in any
of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the coal
mining CGU, medical intermediate products CGU, furfural products CGU
andhumic acid products CGU to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

18. COAL MINING RIGHTS

31 December 2021

—2--%+-A=+—H

17. & (#)

M EERFIReEASEMN - BEFPHE
REQRSEASEN BEERBSE
EBRBERERRSEEEMANER
Eﬁﬁﬁg ! EEEJEHU% T£{TJ:L§EK{EX
%Zﬁ@T%QE%K éﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁ
PELEM  BHEPHBERRSELSR
fﬁ *E%Euui@%?i 11&WTEW§DD
?i?iiumﬁﬁ@tﬂﬁTW@i
H o

18. HIEREHE

Total
4t

RMB’000
AR®F T

Group rEE
Cost: PR
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—4F—H—H 109,570
Additions NE 155,804
At 31 December 2021 R_ZB_—F+_F=+—H 265,374
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE -
At 1 January 2021 RZZE—_—F—H—H 24,927
Depreciation during the year FAFE 3,486
At 31 December 2021 R_E-_—F+_-_A=+—H 28,413
Carrying amount: AREE :
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-_H=+—H 236,961
]
Total
ey
RMB'000
AREBFT
31 December 2020 —E-EF+ZA=+—H
Group rEE
Cost: PR
At 1 January 2020/31 December 2020 W-_Z-_TF—F—R/
3777$¢+ RA=+—H 109,570
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE -
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZTF—HA—H 23,390
Depreciation during the year ilﬁﬁ% 1,537
At 31 December 2020 R-TB-_TF+—HF=+—H 24927
Carrying amount: AREE -
At 31 December 2020 R_E_TF+_A=1+—H 84,643
]
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

18. COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF COAL MINING RIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group performed
impairment assessment on the coal mining CGU as disclosed in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, which include the above coal mining
rights of RMB236,961,000 (2020: RMB84,643,000), goodwill of RMB25,361,000
(2020: RMB25,361,000) (Note 17) and property, plant and equipment of RMB
757,736,000 (2020: RMB725,353,000). The key assumptions are included in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Based on the annual impairment testing, no impairment charge was
recognised during the year.

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

18. HIRFAHRE (&)
JR R SR AR Y IRUERI

HE-_Z-_—FRrR-_ZE-_FTF+=A
=+—HRIFE  AEEHEERERS
EABEMETREN G (WNGEEBERE
BEsE 17 i) - B rp e 3R bl R B R
ARHE 236,961,000 L (ZE=ZF : ARK
84,643,0007T ) M EE A R #25,361,0007T (=
T-TF ARBE25361,0007T) (HF5E17)
K% - BB k& AR 757,736,000 7T
(ZZE-Z4F : AR¥72535300070) ° =
EREAF A M BmERMEE7 -

RIBFRBERR - RAFERL EER
R o

19. EAVEFABERRERE

PROFIT OR LOSS
Group
rEER
2021 2020
=F=-F i
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Non-current FERED
Unquoted equity investment, at fair value: LETREIRE - RATHE
PRC ik 6,708 6,708
]
Current TE
Listed equity investments, at fair value: FTRIERE - IBATE
Singapore N 2,127 2271
Hong Kong BB 10,949 13,821
13,076 16,092
T
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19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

19. EAFEFABSNRERE

PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED) (%)
Company
RAFE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREETIT
Current B

Listed equity investments, at fair value: FTRIERE - IBATE
Singapore i 2,127 2,271
Hong Kong BB 10,949 13,821
13,076 16,092

T
LISTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS EHRERE

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the listed equity investments are
classified as current assets because the directors of the Company have
intention to dispose of these investments in the forthcoming year.

UNQUOTED EQUITY INVESTMENT

The Group's investment in unquoted equity investment represent equity
investment in Manas Biyuan Water Supply Company Limited (“Biyuan”).
The Group has no control nor significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of Biyuan. The Group does not intend to dispose of them
in the near future.

The investment is carried at FVPL and the fair value as at 31 December 2021
is RMB6,708,000 (2020: RMB6,708,000).

R FR-_ZF-_FTF+_A=+—
B tHRERERSEARHEE  F
ARRBNESEEEAKR—FRALEEZ

FRE -
FLmERE

REBZIF EMBHERE RN B AT
ERFKRKBEREERR(EIR]) B ME
RE - AEBESERAR/EANUEFEER
FE - AEEEENABRKLEEER
;é{o

WERNFEFABRYE R ——
F+ A=+t BHNAFEAARE
6,708,000 L (ZE —ZF : AR¥ 6,708,000
JC) ©

RELED —T= —FFR

-
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FEMFIE G RS RHAMEWRK
RECEIVABLES b= |
Group
rEH
2021 2020
—B—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREETIT
Non-current IERE
Prepayments for purchases of property, EEWE - WEMEE
plant and equipment ORI NE 81,892 120,060
T
Current E
Prepayments: TERFRIR ¢
Advanced deposits to suppliers AN ER RS 1,000,236 491,662
Others Hity 27,501 22,519
1,027,737 514,181
Deposits and other receivables: He RHEM IR
Deposits b7 a 6,184 3,193
VAT recoverable FEYCEET 405,278 353,925
Others Hi 61,202 152,870
472,664
Total prepayments, deposits and TENFRIA - 1me REAM
other receivables -current FEW RTE4E%E - D 1,500,401 1,024,169
T
21. INVENTORIES 21. FE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEFF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Raw materials at cost RSB BRI FRA AL 749,081 431,402
Parts and spares at cost BT BRI KBRS 213,641 167,678
Work-in-progress at cost BT BR M 7E B R 32,262 16,432
Finished goods at lower of cost and LA B AT B R ER R
net realisable value FFEMNEK D 624,427 379,753
Allowance for inventory obsolescence FERAEE (12,026) (3,116)
1,607,385 992,149
T
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

22, T44£mIA

SINE 2 5

Foreign currency swaps

Derivative financial instruments are denominated in RMB and are secured
by time deposits of RMB1,943,000 (2020: Nil) (Note 25).

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Group
rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFTT
28 -
]

PTESRTAENUAREE - WAFHE
AAREN1043,0000 (ZE-ZFF : 8)E
AR (FzE25) ©

23. BEZREWFEREKRER

Group

rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Trade receivables H 5 EYGRIE 362,890 220,498
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B TREEEEERE (21,339) (16,460)
Total trade receivables (Note 6) B S EWFIERE (MiiEe) 341,551 204,032
Bills receivable LS 669,449 543,224
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B TEEMEE R (6,422) (3,864)
Total bills receivable e 4 RE 663,027 539,360
1,004,578 743,392

T

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts
which represent their fair values on initial recognition. The Group’s bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of
90 to 180 days. Trade and bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly payment in
advance or on credit for certain customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

B RWFEAEB R —MIN30290HA
BE  ZERWERTANERIAEEZ S5
R ZECERREEVRERRHAF
B AEBEMEWEE AR B R0
Z180HANEE - EZERFIEREWRE
BUAARKEEHE -

AEBHRETEFNRZIFARERRAMNK
B ATEPXRADNSFEER - 85FPA
EEHLER - NEBESKERFHE KD
HIR) R W R ) BB - PURMEE B
% BHEREHSREEETHEN -
N EXAt - MAKENE 5 RIKKIR
DHRARESHNEF  MABEXREE
ShEE - NEEY ERZFEHRT AT
AR EMEERE

REOED —B FEH
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
RECEIVABLES THAT ARE PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as
follows:

23. EZRWHREREBURRERE (&)
EEHERRE < B RRIR

REEE 5 RWGIAN R E BRI RE D
i (RIEHZE A RINREE) 0

Group

rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Within 1 month T A AR 155,707 119,892
110 3 months TE3EA 106,227 31,829
3to 6 months 3ZE61EA 39,066 37,092
6to 12 months 6= 1218 A 40,551 9314
Over 12 months 1218 A A E - 5,905
341,551 204,032

T

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer based on
customer type and rating.  The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one
year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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EEMERBENEKIARS TEAS
EFERIFFEETHNBIEFPEHE - R
FEELR  ARREERR/BANLTE
EMEHERERE  REEERAYEEX
HE) MRS ERDPR S 28D -

RHEEEE

NERE B RABEREETRED
i UETEEMEEER - BEXTDHER
BEFERIMFENZEARTPETYEMmE
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movement in allowance for expected credit losses of trade and other

receivables computed based on ECL are as follows:

23. EZRWHREREBURRERE (&)

REFHEEBEAENE S R EMRK
RENEREEEHEREEBNT -

TRADE RECEIVABLES B 5% B
Group
rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETT
At the beginning of year NG 16,466 13,847
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR = 1,704
Written off 6| (394) (868)
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) WIEEE - PR (M) 5,267 1,783
At end of year FR 21,339 16,466
T
OTHER RECEIVABLES HAbREWFIE
Group
rEE
2021 2020
—B_—F ZEIEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
At the beginning of year REH] 26,598 26,770
Written off i (11,032) (162)
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) WEEE - FEE (M 7) 2,870 (10)
Atend of year RER 18,436 26,598
T
DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/SUBSIDIARIES FEWRBEE AR MIE A RFIE
Group
rEE
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREETIT
At the beginning of year REFEA] 23
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) REEIE - TR (HEE7) 1 3
Atend of year RER 37 26
T
REOED T —FFR
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. BEZEUWRERERER (&)
BILLS RECEIVABLE EWEE
Group
rEH
2021 2020
—E=-—fF ZECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETFT
At the beginning of year RET) 3,864 2,402
Written off Hifi g5 (3,864) (2402)
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) WIEETE - PR (MEE7) 6,422 3,864
Atend of year RER 6,422 3,864
]
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the  TXEHFIERAEEE FEUGIE - Hih

Group's trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related

FEW IR - {3 AR AR R A B B E A )

companies/subsidiaries and bills receivable using a provision matrix: /B ARFEREREENEERRE
#

ECL FOR TRADE RECEIVABLES

B2 RURENEHEEEE

Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
Ik D% 125 254
2021 —E--E
Gross carrying amount (RMB000)  HBEAE(ARMFTT) 159,163 190,331 3,559 9,837 362,890
Expected creditlosses (RMBO00)  BEREEER(ARET L) 3,456 4,487 3,559 9,837 21,339
|
2020 ZEIEE
Gross carrying amount (RMB000)  #EBEEE (AR FIT) 123,285 81,087 6,162 9964 20498
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BEHEEEE(ARETT) 3393 2852 257 9964 16466

ECL FOR OTHER RECEIVABLES

Hit BUCRBENEHEEERE

Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
B DR 12F 24
2021 —E--E&
Gross carrying amount (RMB000)  HBBEEE(ARYTTT) 28,400 6,714 31,883 18,826 85,823
Expected credit losses (RMBO00) BHEEER(ARETL) 416 90 856 17,074 18,436
|
2020 ZEIEf
Gross carrying amount (RMB000)  #BEEE(ARMFTT) 133908 14669 9,360 24724 182,661
Expected credit losses (RMB000) EHEEEE(ARETT) 411 122 1358 23608 2659

China XLX 2021 Annual Report



23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23. BESRWFEREKREE (&)

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED) FEHEERE (F&)
FCL FOR AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/SUBSIDIARIES EEE N,/ WEBARRENTESREE
E1E
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to 2 years Over 2 years
Ik HSR-F 12F 254
2021 8%
Gross carryingamount (RMB000)  #REE(ARET L) 6,902 1,460 313 252 8,927
Expected credit losses (RMBI000) BHEEBE(ARETT) 1 8 11 17 37
|
2020 St 23
Gross carrying amount RMB000)  HBRAEE (ARMFT) 858 516 411 4 1830
Expected credit losses (RMBO00) BEHEEEE(ARETL) 3 10 12 1 2%
|
ECL FOR BILLS RECEIVABLE EREENEREEER
Past due
k]
Current Less than 1 year 1to 2 years Over 2 years
Ik HSR-F 12F 254
2021 —E8--f%
Gross carrying amount RMB00D)  BEREE(ARETTT) 669,449 - - - 669,449
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEBE(ARETT) 6,422 - - - 6,422
|
2020 St 23
Gross carrying amount RMB000)  HBRAEE (ARMT L) 543224 - - - 543204
Expected credit losses (RMBO00) BHEEER(ARETL) 3864 - - - 3864

o
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed bills receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Bills") with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB1,545,551,000 (2020: RMB690,951,000) with maturity ranging
from one to six months at the end of the reporting period, to certain of its
suppliers for settlement of the trade payables due to these suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in
the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse against
the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the
opinion of the directors, all risks and rewards relating to the Endorsed Bills
have been substantially transferred upon the Endorsement. Accordingly,
the Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure arising
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Endorsed Bills is equal to
their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills are not significant.

During the financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
has not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the Endorsed
Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement,
both during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made
evenly throughout the year.
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23. BZRUWREREBUREREE (&)
FEW R

R-ZT-—F+-_A=+—H KEEP
MEETHERSEEFEHANMIRITE
I BREEBARE A AR 1,545551,000 7T
(ZZE-FF : AR¥690,951,0007T) HYfE
WER(TEEEE])  WEERMNZEH
EEMEZENFIE(EE]  BRNT
BEBR—ZANEAR - REFEEEA]
EEEIEAAE  MPBERITEAENR
EERBENBAAGERAAEBBRANK
(IHEL2HE])  -EEZRE BEEZEEH
B A D B MBI REIELEEZED
EwEE o Hlt - NEEDRIEBEREEE
BEMEENE S ENFENZHEERE -
AEBREFELEBEZBEMARNRA
R MBEZESERBENRITARER
2 HHESENREEREAE EFRAE A%
ERFELESEZENATFELTERK
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24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the balances with related companies and subsidiaries, in
which certain shareholders, executive directors of the Company are also

direct/indirect shareholders and directors are as follows:

24. EBRAERTEHE DR

Due from related companies

e BB Y R RKIE

Current:

BNE

Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment

%ﬁ%ﬁﬁf&\@*&/bﬂzlﬁ&ﬁ

CO, LTD. RAA] 7,520 1,494
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation #4844 1B 68 22 2
Co, Ltd. BRAA] 1177 -
HenanLingtongXinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. A fa B3/ L BE R
BRAH 99 264
Anhui Xinlianxin Heavy Sealing CO, LTD. LHE N ERFTE
BRAH 72 44
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd.  JAIFg B E T
SERNBRARA] 20 -
Henan XLX JingmiFengtou CO, LTD. TR OO F 58
BRAA 2 2
8,890 1,804
T
Due to related companies/related parties FE{MRIE AT BAESH
M
Current: BPER
JiujiangPengcheng Port Co, Ltd. JUIZHBEDBRAT] (52,536) -
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment T LB M TRk
co, TD. R A (24,197) (6,065)
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation #7458 48 M [ 68 22 4
Co, LTD. BRATA] (3,626) (5,760)
Henan LingtongXinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. A B8/ E L BER
BRAA (428) (53)
Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Group CO, LTD. A FaDE ML TEE
BRAA] (261) (261)
Qingjin,Zhang RES (60) (60)
Yunhua,Yan EkEs (25) (25)
Anhui Xinlianxin Heavy Sealing CO, LTD. LB E R SR
BRAA] (18) -
Henan XLX JingmiFengtou CO, LTD. A Eg OB OB B 58
BRAA (14) (14)
Xinjiang AntaiShenzhouFengtou CO, LTD.  ¥Ts@ &t £ 58
BRAAE (M (1)
(81,166) (12,239)
T

REOED T —FFR
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24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/

24. ERERQRHEDQBBER

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) (&)
Group
rEH
2021 2020
—EC--F —TTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
R AR® T AREETIT
Due to related companies EFABREAIRRE
Non-current: FERNAR -
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation 48 44| B J& 22 &
CO, LTD. BRAF] = (114)
]
Company
RATF]
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MR AR® T AREETIT
Due from subsidiaries FEWHEB A RRIE
Current: BNAS
Henan Hydrogenpower Energy CO, LTD. AR IERERAR (iv) 12,399 97,873
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd.  JAIFOMELMEE T 2 (iv)
SEROHERAR 6,437 -
Henan Heli Energy CO, LTD. AR N BEIRAR 17
BR2A) - 41,525
18,836 139,398
]
Due to a subsidiary PEt — R E D RFRIE
Current: BNER
Henan Xinzhilian Enterprise Management 3] /O B B (b 35 18
CO, LTD. BRAF] (1,886) -
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd. AR OELMp BT 2
SERNER AT - (16,850)
(1,886) (16,850)
]
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24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Balances represent the other payables for the capital contribution
for the associate, JiujiangPengcheng Port Co., Ltd. from
JiujiangXinlianxin.

(ii) Balances represent the other payable for equipment and spare parts
purchases from Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO,, LTD.
Further details are set out in Note 40(a)(ii).

(iii) Balances represent the other payable for maintenance fees and anti-
corrosion expenses charged by Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion
Installation CO,, LTD. Further details are set out in Note 40(a)(ii).

(iv) Balances represent the investment receivables from Henan
Hydrogenpower Energy CO,, LTD.and Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals
Group Co,, Ltd. as ended 31 December 2021.

The balances are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free and
the carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values.

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

24. ERERQRHEDQBRNER

(%)

(i) REAENLLELRBERTIL
EHAOBRABLENHEMBER
IR ©

(iN) BT OE M TREBRA A
PRES %A M TR0 EAth FE 1 FR0AE S
B o HE—20RFIB TER M RE40@)i) ©

(i) FEFBTrEMEELEER AR
IR HEE BTN BB ) H A E T
THHFE  E— LB HENME
40(a)(ii) ©

vy RZEZ—F+ZA=1T—HEWYK
RS NEERER A T KA L E
MEBTEEEROBRAGIRE
HIBREE o

EHRAEER  REXENREEEZE

Eer 7 REMEBEE QA FEES -

25. ReRREEEYURBIER

TIME DEPOSITS EREX
Group
REE
2020
—T_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MR AR®T T AREETIT
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTHES 893,116 682,041
Pledged time deposits EEREHER
Current ENHA 743,845 706,035
Non-current JERNER 9,700 1,400
1,646,661 1,389,476
]
Less: Pledged time deposits: B BERREEE
Pledged time deposits for bills payable BER IR T 27
H3E HATF 3K (538,418) (601,501)
Pledged time deposits for PIERAFE RHEM
L/C and others [ wi:0)
TFHIFES (213,184) (105,934)
Pledged time deposits for derivatives MOTETE 22
[mEg iy
TEBATF R (1,943) -
Cash and cash equivalents Re kESEED 893,116 682,041
]

REOED —B FEH
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
TIME DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

25. ReRREEEFYUREIER

R RIRTTHERR - RS
MIREEEY

Cash and bank balances, representing the cash
and cash equivalents

At 31 December 2021, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB893,116,000 (2020: RMB682,041,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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EHREFER (&)
Company
SN

2021 2020

—B-—F —ECTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

7,634 18,976

|

RZZE-_—F+_A=+—H '  UAE
BAENAEBERe MBEITEKREDA
R#89311600 L (Z T =FF : AR®
682,041,0007T) e ARBIW A EHEEBE
HaE - Rm - BEPBRABAOINES
FEPI R ETE - SERMEERRE © &N
S BB B EITINE E ISR IRTT
BAREEIBAHME -

RITEFIZ BB RITEARN R F B F =X
RIAE - EHEMFERNF—HE={HE
Az R 28 - B FAEEARHE
EHRMIE - WIZE B HREHERFHRA
KEREAE - RITHEBR R ERFRIE
MR R SRR BT R AL SRV ERTT -



26. TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

26. EBFZEMNNIA

B 5 AR B E HIRAORE 2T (R
BRERERH)MOT

Group

rEE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Within 1 month TE A AR 498,667 169,569
110 3 months 12 3@ A 179,668 109,120
3to 6 months 3E6MEA 48,715 65,384
610 12 months 621218 A 19,789 121,958
Over 12 months 1218 B 27,584 42947
774,423 508,978

T

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. Trade payables are denominated in RMB.

27. BILLS PAYABLE

The Group’s bills payable have an average maturity period of 180 days and
are non-interest-bearing. Bills payable are denominated in RMB and are
secured by time deposits of RMB538,418,000 (2020: RMB601,501,000) (Note

25).

BHRNFRIBR/RER—RN30E0EA
BB - EZENTIENAARKEE -

27. EAEHE

REBE K R EER TR 180 H AR H -
BA%E - BRZEIAREEHE B
EHTERARKS38418000L(—E-F
F: AR¥601,501,00070) A (HFFE25) -

RELED —T= —FFR

-
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28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. EETEARHEMENE

Group
rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
Current: BNER :
Accruals fEETE
Accrued expenses FERTRAS 334,981 246,808
Accruals for construction costs and purchases BREBANEEDE  BE
of property, plant and equipment RN ERTEA 1,182,296 1,311,053
1,517,277 1,557,861
T
Other payables HAb ERTRIE
VAT and other operating tax payables BEN S H A T AR 17,088 11,064
Tender deposits wiEiL e 124,015 105,460
Others EAh, 156,904 172,903
298,007 289,427
Total accruals and other payables (current) FEET B A R H e 508
BEE (GREh) 1,815,284 1,847,288
T
Contract liabilities (Note 6) aH8E(Hite) 1,079,227 818,149
T
Non-current: FEENER -
Other payables related to the construction of R - B MR
property, plant and equipment 2 Hib e Faa 549,896 89,117
T
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28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

28. EFTEAKEAMENTEGE)

Company
AT
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Current: EN&R :
Accruals fEETE
Accrued expenses FEET 15,589 16,462
]

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of six

months.

29. DEFERRED GRANTS

HibENHBELSRE - FHFHSNE

H o

29. IEFEFHRL

Group
rEER
2021 2020
—E--F —R-FF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Cost: BN
At 1 January R—H—H 145,822 118,959
Received during the year FAUER 230 26,863
At 31 December W+—-—A=+—H 146,052 145,822
Accumulated amortisation: REHEE
At 1 January ®n—H—H 54,400 41,730
Amortisation during the year FEEE 10,152 12,670
At 31 Decemnber W+—A=+—H 64,552 54,400
Net carrying amount: RESE -
Current bk 9,619 9317
Non-current IEmED 71,881 82,105
81,500 91,422
T

-
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MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 B8E = E = —#+=H=1+—HIFHHFE

29. DEFERRED GRANTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, deferred grants related
to government grants were given to the Group for the construction of
production plants and installation and building of machinery to implement
energy-saving production methods and to reduce production cost. They are
amortised over the useful lives of the related items of property, plant and
equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
these grants. During the year, aggregate government grants of RMB230,000
(2020: RMB26,863,000) were received by the Group.

30. LOANS FROM A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

29. EFERRL ()

RZEZ—F+_A=1+—HEZZE=-ZF
F+—A=+—H AEEERERF
AL EBEREERRL - ABRREERE A
Dz eE NGERHES - B AEITENRR
FEFRRBIEEERS - WIREE@ED
¥ BEAKZBEBENA(EHAFEREN -

REBEN MERZ S BRI REITIRM
HHAEE - RFER - BFCRAAEER
FEHEARBE23000T(ZEZFF : A
R 26,863,000 7T ) I AL °

30. FEREZEN

Group
rEE
2021 2020
—B-—fF —EBFHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBFT
Loans from a non-controlling interest IR B 47,800 24,870
Less: N
Current portion BNHEAER 2> - (24,870)
Non-current portion FERNERER 7> 47,800 -
]

In 2021 and 2020, the loans from a non-controlling interest are unsecured,
with no interest bearing for current and non-current portion. As at 31
December 2020, according to the payment terms of the loan agreement
between the parties, RMB24,870,000 was expected to be repaid within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period and considered as
current liability. The loan was fully paid during the year.
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RZEBE-—FR-F-ZF - A#IHH K&
FERNVERER D M FEIE IR i i B R K IR K
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FFERITREMER
BORROWINGS
200
ZZI%E
Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity RMB'000 interest rate Maturity RMB000
Group 1£E AHRIE AR ARETT RHRIE 5I%A ARETT
Current ik
Bank loans BIER
- secured () -EERb) 3%-4% 2022 389,365 4 01 W14
“E-CE I —d
- unsecured (3 =iy 3.00%6.52% 02 5,444,639 352652 01 357013
“B-CE Bk
Loans from leasing company/ ~ BERFIEF/ExH 465% 202 568,209 475% 01 7433
finance ease payables (¢ HERE( Sk :3 “3-f
6,402213 4137660
Non-current i)
Bank loans BITER
-secured () -EERD 5.23%6% 2023t02027 543,500 ) 02102077 540000
“E-CEZ i S
ZECtE I
- unsecured 3 S vl 270%6.20% 2023t02027 3,948,243 388%6.20% 02102026 4115925
BB i 3
S -3 “ER
Loansfrom leasing company/ ~~ BELFEF/ExH 4,65% 202302024 474819 475% 2021 102023 554134
finance lease payables () HERE( BIER S 5?1
3 ZRICE
4,966,562 5210099
11,368,775 9347719
I I
RELEDL —T - —FFHR
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

31. FTRBITREAMMER (&)

Group
rEE
2021 2020
—B—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: AEBRITER
Within one year or on demand —FARIREREER 5,834,004 3,810,227
In the second year FF 2,080,704 2,101,962
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EFRF
(& 2,241,039 2,298,963
Beyond five years hFE 170,000 255,000
10,325,747 8,466,152
Loans from leasing company/finance lease ERHEERRER
payables BERE
Within one year or on demand —FARIRERKER 568,209 327433
In the second year F_F 332,883 385,306
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EFERF
(2) 141,936 168,828
1,043,028 881,567
11,368,775 9,347,719
]
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FTERTREMESR(E&)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: FfaE -

(@) The Group’s bank facilities amounting to RMB9,996,000,000 (2020: (@) ANEE AR %09996,00000L(ZF=F
RMB11,534,288,000), of which RMB7,605,553,000 (2020: RMB6,322,332,000) had 0 AR 11,534,288000 7T ) B IRITRLE
been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are unsecured. o HR AR 7605553000 (ZFE=F

F: AR¥6322,3320007T) REREHRE
EEA - EEA -

(b) The Group's bank loans of RMB932,865,000 (2020: RMB823,214,000) are secured (b) REBEBRTERA KR 9328650007T
loans. Among of which, the current bank loans amounting to RMB36,000,000 (ZZ T F: AR¥8232140007T) A&
and the non-current bank loans amounting to RMB54,000,000 are guaranteed BEBER H - BIHRITERAR
by a related company and two third parties, Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals # 36,000,000 7T & FERNER IR T E XA R
Equipment CO,, LTD., Henan Shenzhou Precision Manufacturing Co. Ltd, and 54,000,000 ;T — BB AR EMEE =T
Henan Shenleng New Energy Development CO.LTD. The current bank loans (B b E M TRERR AT - 1
amounting to RMB283,365,000 are secured by the pledge of certain of the MBI RERGBERA R RTERL
Group's bill receivable amounting to RMB283,365,000. Besides, the current bank FeeRABE AR AR REER o ANHIER
loan amounting to RMB60,000,000 and non-current bank loan amounting TER AR 283365000 T AR EEE T
to RMB489,500,000 are guaranteed by property, plant and equipment of FE U 4R A R ¥ 283,365,000 TTIEHE R © Ut
RMB925,867,000. The rest of loans with the amount of RMB10,000,000 are secured i - BVERSRTT B A K %5 60,000,000 7T &
by juridical persons of one of the subsidies of the Group. SEBNHAE A R # 489,500,000 7L A R #&

925,867,000 TV - RE Mk e 2
R HEAE R AR 10,000,000 7T B 48 &
EE AR —RIB QAR E SRR o

© The loans from leasing company of RMB1,043,028,000 (2020: RMB881,567,000) (© HERRERAR 1043028000 (=F

are secured by certain of the Group's items of property, plant and equipment. ZEF : AR¥881,567,0007T) HAEK E
ETWE - BEREEEB EER -

(d) As at 31 December 2021, all the bank loans was denominated in RMB (2020: (d R —F+-_A=+—H AR
amounted to RMB137,450,000 was denominated in United States dollars ("USD"). TEFUARBHE(ZZ-_ZF : AR
All remaining borrowings are denominated in RMB). 137,450,000 TV E SR AZE T ([T ) 51

B) - FTE# TERIUARBEHE -
2020
S 223

Contractual Contractual

interest rate Maturity RMB'000 interest rate Maturity RMB’ 000
Company KRH AHFIE E) o] = ARETR CEOGIES HE A AREFT
Current piok|
Bank loans BITER

- unsecured - R = = - LIBOR +1.40% 2021 137450
|
(@)  No bank loans (2020: RMB137,450,000) are denominated in United (@)  BIERITER(ZZ_ZTF : AR

States dollars ("USD") as at the end of the reporting period.

#5137,450,000 7T ) FA R 45 BR oK A 35
Jo([ET)EHE -

RELED —T= —FFR
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MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FFERITREMERE)

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
MERPELZAE(MEREERE)Z

A reconciliation of liabilities (excluding lease liabilities) arising from

financing activities is as follows: HERWT -
Non cash changes
FREEH
Acquisition of Foreign
subsidiaries exchange
2020 Cash flows 8%  movement Other 2021
Group piN-1c) —Z-FF ReRE HEAH R EE il —E--F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT BUNELERM
Loans from a non-controlling IERRRER B
interest
—current o) 24870 (24,870) - - - -
- non-current -ERE - 47800 - - - 47,800
Interest-bearing bank and HRRITREMER
other borrowings
- current o) 4,137,660 681,504 - (460) 1,583,509 6,402,213
- non-current -JRE 5,210,059 1283871 - - (1527368) 4,966,562
Bonds payable ERREER
- current - & - - - - 198,222 198,222
~ non-current -3ERE 489,892 - - - (193410) 296,482
Total act 9,862,481 1,988,305 - (460) 60953 11,911,279
]
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FFESRITREMER(E)

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Non cash changes

FREE
Acquisition of Foreign
subsidiaries exchange
2019 Cashflows B movement Other 2020
Group KEE “E-NF BeRE  WBAW  ENE YUk L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Loans fromanon-controlling ~ 3EIERRIEZ &N
interest
- current )] 25,000 (25,000) - - 24870 24870
—non-current B i) 23670 1,200 - - (24870) -
Interest-bearing bank and SRR REMER
other borrowings
—current it 2,774,169 (136,781) 35,000 (32924) 1,498,196 4,137,660
- non-current & it 3,739,087 2,902,712 20173 - (1451913) 5210059
Bonds payable [ENBEESH
—current ) 500,000 (500,000) - - - -
- non-current -JRE 388,697 97,000 - - 495 489,892
Total Hst 7450623 2,339,131 55173 (32.924) 50478 9,862,481

The ‘other’ column relates to reclassification of non-current portion of loans
and borrowings including obligations under finance leases due to passage
of time, interest accretion on bonds payable and reclassification of finance
lease payables to lease liabilities.

[Ht ] — S| ERFEHER SR RER N
ER(BEREMEANE) 2ERBE 5 E
NEFOFEENEREHERNKIAE
DRAHEREEM -

hELED =

T——FER
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MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

32. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION

32. WERE

Group
TEE
2021 2020
—E—F —T_EHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREFTT
At the beginning of year REH] 24,723 24276
Additions NE 619 447
At the end of year RER 25,342 24,723
]

A provision for rehabilitation is mainly recognised for the present value of
estimated costs to be incurred in complying with the Group’s obligations
for the closure and environmental restoration and clean-up on completion
of the Group’s mining activities. These costs are expected to be incurred
on mine closure, based on the estimated rehabilitation expenditures at the
mine when the mining licence expires, and are discounted at a discount
rate of 4.65% (2020: 4.90%) for the year ended 31 December 2021. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates. Over time, the
discounted provision is increased for the change in the present value
based on the discount rate that reflects current market assessments and
risks specific to the provision. The periodic unwinding of the discount is
recognised in profit or loss as part of interest expenses.

33. BONDS PAYABLE

MERETERBAEENR TR A SEH
BEEREITANKIRBIRENEENE
B EERGFRARIRERR o RIEK
TEaT A B R AR L M AETIRIE ST I - 3%
EXATERT S ERR LB R EA - WIRE
E-E-—F+_A=+—HLEFENFT
WEASH( ZF ZFF 1 490%) FrI] »
BREMEH AR ST EEERY
2o BEESEMNER  THEBERERENKR
B E AT 5 LA M2 B E S TR A TR
EKHREZEHMIZ N - TEHEFITRNIE
mPERAN SR —HD o

33. EfFESH

Group

rEE
2021 2020
—E2--F —TCFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT

Analysed into amount repayable: DT RENEE
Within one year —FR 198,222 -
In the second year MEZEF 296,482 196,202
In the third year RE=F = 293,690
Current BVER 198,222 -
Non-Current JEBNHA 296,482 489,892
494,704 489,892
T
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33. BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

33.

The bonds of RMB200,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 issued in 2018 and n=

2020 have a maturity term of within five years and three years respectively,
bear fixed interest rates of 6.98% and 5.70% per annum. In May 2020, the
Group issued a bond of RMB100,000,000 with a maturity term of within 3

years and a fixed interest rate of 5.20%.

34. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Group
EE

B ES (&)

—NER T -_TFET
2oo,ooo,ooo 7T K A B85 200,000,000 7T B (&
HFRRRAFR=FRNEE - ZETEFF
K 698% N 570%FT B e R=ZF =

TIAREK

TFh

A KEEZ7T AR 100,000,000 TTHI &
% BIERFEHIA=F - REFEFEFZR520%

o
ﬁ+ /%\ °

34,

T

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries

Wi Bt
ATEER
AFERE

(Note a)
GETY)

RMB’000

AR¥ TR

EEBH
AERREEREAREMNEESR

Withholding tax
FENBE

(Note b)
(Mi=Eb)
RMB’000
ARBTR

A

Total
et

RMB’000
ARMT T

At 1 January 2020 ANZE-TF—H—H 24,707 28,008 52,715
Deferred tax credited to profitor ~ FRIEBZRFTAREETLIE

loss during the year (Note 11) (fFzET1) (3,404) (7,991) (11,395)
Acquisition of subsidiaries B AR 8823 - 8823
At 31 December 2020 and m= 7_§¢+_ﬂ_+ =

1 January 2021 ERZFE_—F—H—H 30,126 20,017 50,143
Deferred tax(credited)/charged FAEBRE GIA) /B

to profit or loss during the year EIERIE (B 11)

(Note 11) (2,605) 20,982 18,377
At 31 December 2021 W_ZT_—F+_HF=+—H 27,521 40,999 68,520

RELED —T= —FFR
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B RRIEE  For the financiar year ended 31 December 2021 #{E = F = —F+ = =+—HIHKFE

34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 35. EERIE(E)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS FEERIEEE

Loss available for
offsetting against
future taxable

profits
HEHARR Deductible
A RBRF 2 temporary
KEA differences Total
HIEEE FNRERES et
(Note c)
YY)
Group RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
rEE AR¥T T AR¥T T AR®T T
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=TF—H—H 33,656 60,204 93,860
Deferred tax charged to profitor  FIRTEB i BRI AYIRETEH
loss during the year (Note 11) (fsE11) 5,109 934 6,043
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB AR - 527 527
At 31 December 2020 and F_g_%i‘f“*ﬂ_‘f‘*ﬁ
1 January 2021 MRZET=Z—F—H—H 38,765 61,665 100,430
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to  FENTEBzER (5T A) /FIBHY
profit or loss during the year EIERIE (BFaE11)
(Note 11) (4,414) 6,507 2,093
At 31 December 2021 R-_Z_—F+_A=+—H 34,351 68,172 102,523
|
Notes: FifsE
@) Deferred tax liabilities arising from fair value adjustments upon acquisitions of @ WM B AR EEN R T ERAEMEEDN

subsidiaries represent the deferred tax liabilities on the fair value uplift of the
net tangible assets owned by the subsidiaries, arising in 2011,2015, 2018 2020
and 2021. The deferred tax liabilities are amortised to the profit or loss over the
estimated useful lives of related assets.

(b) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied (b)
on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China for earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group made provision for
deferred tax liabilities on withholding tax at 5% of the forecasted dividend pay-
out of the earnings of all its PRC subsidiaries because the directors believe that
the PRC subsidiaries would pay out all their earnings as dividends.
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34.

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(0

35.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax losses
amounted to RMB65,325,000 (2020: RMB40,207,000) as in the opinion of the
directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Unrecognised temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries

A deferred tax liability of RMB640,044,000 (2020: RMB177,104,000) that could
arise upon the distribution of profit at certain subsidiaries has not been provided

for as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the distributable profits is controlled and

there is currently no intention for the profits to be remitted to Singapore.

SHARE CAPITAL

Number of ordinary shares

EEREE

Issued and fully paid

BT MR 1,171,621,000

*

Equivalent to Singapore dollars ("SGD") 253,224,000 in 2021 and SGD 242,261,000
in 2020.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when
declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share
without restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value.

35.

Bt

(0)

35.

1,171,621,000
I

*

EERE ()

(&)

RERMBEENECHBEEAESBEAA
R#65325000t( B -FF: ARK
40,207,00070) + ER IR THEE R KD
It 2 B ARSI A RN EE B A ESIE -

BRRH B R RIREN ARG ERE

BRI IREFZ G B B ATEE S
FEAF NG SR B —ER_T—
TE+-A=+—HAARBRETHER
RN REFIREEEZRECHBAERBA
R#640044000T( B - FE : AR
177,104,000 7T ) E L & -

R

Amount

=8

2021 2020
—EC-—F —ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETFT

1,194,686* 1,194,686*

— T = — F ¥ F 7 253,224,000 % 10
TEFEMET]) —E_FFERERN
242,261,000 FT AN TT ©

EEBEFEANEEZEAARAEIRMK
B AT BB RREE - EERE

g e

RELED —T= —FFR
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36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

SPECIAL RESERVE

The special reserve refers to the safety fund accrued but not yet used for
high-risk production.

STATUTORY RESERVE FUND

In accordance with the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law applicable
to the subsidiaries in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to make
appropriations to the Statutory Reserve Fund (the “SRF"). At least 10% of
the after-tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable PRC
accounting standards and regulations must be allocated to the SRF until
the cumulative total of the SRF reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may
be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital
of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.

OTHER RESERVE

In 2021, other reserve mainly consist of acquisition of non-controlling
interest shares of subsidiaries amounting to RMB40,116,000, capital
contribution from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries amounting
to RMB12,794,000, employee benefits reserve with share-based payment
expense amounting to RMB11,419,000, and waiver of the interests
generated from loan from non-controlling interests amounting to
RMB1,085,000.

Further details of the employee benefits reserve are included in Note 37 to
these financial statements.

In 2020, other reserve mainly arises from capital contribution from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries amounting to RMB41,260,000.
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AREBRAFEMBEFENFHSRL
BRAZBHCNREEREHRAZS -

15 Bl

i 5l fs te = U AR EE P RETHE R R (2
MREES

EEMEE

RBERNTEMNBLARNINEEERE
% REMBRARABRRELERFER
(DEERES D - REBEEANDPEGE
A RO RE MBR B 1208 R RO ZE 2 10%
VEASREEERBE BEEEERES
MR BBEEERZEFNBAREMER
H)50% ° AZHERA BB HLER - SRE R
B A AR HE A R B RSB INZE
fERARNEMER - EZEREES TR A
KA R B IK ©

Hitof#

R-ZT-—F  HEtEEEZeEKEN
B~ B FETE AR M = AR D A R %6 40,116,000
T MBARFEERBREATEARE
12,794,000 7T ~ VARZ 19 2 1+ A0 B A ) S
B & B & F R B A R ¥ 11,419,000 7T & 4
IR ESERTEENFEARKE
1,085,000 7T, °

BERNFEROE - TFBER AR
RMFFE37

R-_E_EF HFEEEEREWBEA
B IR A R A E A R 41,260,000 7T ©



37. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS RESERVE

This reserve represents share-based payment provided by the subsidiary,
Henan Shenleng Energy CO., LTD to the employees of the Group. The
reserve is contributed by the Restricted Stock Units (RSU)plan.

The following table summarises the share-based payment expense
recognised in the Company's Statement of comprehensive income for the
financial year:

37. EEGEAFEE

ZREE BB R RO B RZ LR
MAERDBMANEEE TIREN UKD
SR ERRAE o ZFEB AR IR E B
(RSU) ETEIRH -

TNREEAFRFREARRZEBAKRF
FRE AR AT O BB ASHE

Group
rEE

RMB’000
ARBT T

At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—4F—HF—H

Share-based payment expense during the year

TAZNEE R LARR D ST OB A A R s (BIYRE 7)

(Note 7) 11,419
At 31 December 2021: R-E-——+-H=+—H 11,419
]

The RSUs is generally vest over two years and the employees must remain
in service for a period of two years from the date of grant.

The following tables summarises the number (No.) and weighted average
grant-date fair value of and movements in, restricted stock units during the

financial year:

MOVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR

BE%H’I‘EH&?E‘%ELLL%?E’\EHEW B ER
VRBRT AHIREERISRF -

NERARKE AN R A TR R B M A R AL A B
nEELEE

ERNMEFHETEHNA

At 1 January RZEZ—%F -

Granted during the year FRET 10,000,000

Outstanding at 31 December WMARTZA=1+—B%&7%5 10,000,000
|
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37. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS RESERVE (CONTINUED) 37. EERFHE (&)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE GRANT-DATE FAIR VALUE: IEFEEIRFHIN A REE -

At 1 January m—H—H =
Granted during the year FRRF 2.25
Outstanding at 31 December HMART—A=+—H&S 2.25
|
38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 38. XEBEH
38 (A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 38 (A) REFE A RIRE
The Group's investments in associates are summarised below: AEEREEARIREBMIT -
Group
rEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT

JiujiangPengcheng Port CO, LTD. ("Pengcheng’)  NULEHAO AR AT

(&) 91,094 89,656
Henan LingtongXinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. R EROEDEIRBR AR
("Lingtong”) (lEm]) 4,549 4,755
95,643 94411
T
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38.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

38 (A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Place of
registration

Nominal value of

38. ¥EKEHt(E])

38 (A) MEHE A RIRE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
=L AR R AR B AfEAREE FRERERERDL FTEXK
2021 2020
—®-—F “E-EF
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B L3 B Rl

JivjiangPengcheng PRC/Mainland RMB300,000,000 = 30% - 30% cargo handling,

Port Co, LTD China  AR® 300,000,000 storage

(‘Pengcheng’)* FEL R E A YRR
NUIZHED

BRAR([ZH])
Henan Lingtong PRC/Mainland RMB15,000,000 = 35% - 35% Gas operation, and

Xinlianxin Energy China  AK# 15000000 ol retail

CO, LTD. ("Lingtong’) R, R E i MRLERAH
TRERLELR &

BARAR(1HE])

Aggregate information about the Group's investments in associates that are
not individually material are as follows:

BRAEENES A TRE GEHERNER)
MRERERIT ¢

Total comprehensive income net of tax EHENEBRERTE

Group

rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EoTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETT
1,232 582

The summarised financial information in respect of Lingtong and
Pengcheng, based on its IFRS financial statements and a reconciliation
with the carrying amount of the investments in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

)
AR 95 EL B R 705 3 5 AR RV O B S SR DA %

HEEPBHRRTPTRERAENYER A
RERLZHROMBERREZLT

RELED —T= —FFR
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. XBEHF(E)
38 (A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) A) REFENT)IRE (8)

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BIEAR R R E

2021

-5

RMB’000

Lingtong EE AR%TT
Inventories FE 277
Trade receivables B 5 EWGIR 207
Other receivables HAb EYGRIR 26
Other current assets Himeh&eE 121
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ R MR 12,944
Trade payables g SRR (497)
Accruals and other payables fEETE A L H A EA FE (81)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFEN B FEELER 12,997
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBGEEEANLL X 35%
Group's share of net assets REEEGFEE 4,549

2021

—E-—f

RMB’'000

Pengcheng E45] AR¥T T
Other receivables HAb ENGRIE 32,282
Other current assets HimeEh&eE 201,723
Property, plant and equipment ME - WME MG 475,621
Accruals and other payables e B A M H A EA A (30,945)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERIT REMERK (375,034)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEEN SR BEERE 303,647
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBHEE AL X 30%
Group's share of net assets AEEELEFEE 91,094

|
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 38. XBEHF(E)

38 (B) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 38 (B) EAIEIERIER

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling ~ ANEE#HAEXNFEEREROME A A
== =6 .
BENT -

interests are set out below:

2021 2020
—E——F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETTT
Percentage of equity interest held by eI IS B HARRELL 1]
non-controlling interests:
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd ARELEMEET RSB RG
BRAF] 76.31% 7631%
]
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to DT IEERR SR
non-controlling interests: FrmAl (EE) -
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd AR OB M T 2 E B,
BIRAT] 68,274 65,759
Capital contribution from non-controlling M A RPEER IR A EE
shareholders of subsidiaries 42,206 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of W BB PR B N Rl 80 FEIE AR 2
subsidiaries (56,217) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests A T IEERE R BV AR S (39,367) (16,882)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling s B HR IR R A
interests at the reporting date: RETEREE
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd ARLEMEET 2EER S
ARAA) 298,650 283,754
]

RELED —T= —FFR
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

8 (B) MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the
above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

eliminations:

38. ¥EKEHt(E

TRIVRT Lt g R
o WERNESBINETT
T

)
B) EAFERER ()

T H) [E BB 75 &
NGk )

2021 2020
—EC--F —T_EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Summarised statement of profit or loss: BRRPE ARBT T ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers REEPE DA 15,316,723 9,560,706
Cost of sales SHE AR (10,699,524) (7,182,847)
Gross profit il 4,617,199 2,377,859
Profit before tax BREL AT R 2,001,759 567,733
Income tax PS5t (378,326) (78,733)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 134 4% % = 4 10 & B %5 F 1,623,433 489,000
Total comprehensive income 2HEKNEAEE 1,623,433 489,000
Attributable to non-controlling interests RSN e RS PR 68,274 65,759
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests AT T IR A AR 172,489 417,838
T
2021 2020
—E-—F b a2
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Summarised statement of financial position: ~ Bf #&ARRREEE - AE®¥ Tt ARETIT
Inventories and cash and bank balances (Current) 178 - 384 MiR1T456 (R®)) 3,037,116 2,194,360
Property, plant and equipment and other W - BB KRR R EA
non-current assets JEMENEE 21,107,444 17,602,536
Trade and other payables FERTRR TR R EL M FE TR (4,403,172) (4,095,722)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowing and TERITREMBR R
deferred tax liabilities SHasE (12,475,275) (9,816,250)
Total equity R 7,266,113 5,884,924
Attributable to: LA AT FE(S -
Equity holders of parent BARE=REEA 6,967,464 5,601,170
Non-controlling interests E i 298,649 283,754
T
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39. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital and other commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

39. R

REBRHREMREEG AT EAR R A5

Group
rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFIT
Capital commitments B AEIE
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT4BARBE -
Buildings Bg¥F 351,694 1,083,528
Plant and machinery R Mo e e 1,085,455 2,536,334
Coal mines BT 165,610 12,727
1,602,759 3,632,589
]
Other commitments EAthsdE
Purchases of raw materials BB RV E 550,618 833,238
]

REOED —B FEH
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

40. FAEFRZ

@ RTEEFHBHRREME DS
MR HIN » NEBERFEREREET
EITNIIRS

2021 2020
=B-—F —T_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MiE ARBTT AREFIT
Sales of electricity, water and steam to: * FATREEEKEREA
- Henan LingtongXinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. - BB LEDER
BRARF 45 49
~ Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. ¥ ) /UL/MKIRX
BRA 9 350
- Henan XinlianxinJingmiFengtou CO, LTD. * - /Tﬁ/upu %Ii 9B
BREA 0) - 562
54 961
T
Sales of goods and raw material to: R TARIEERRR
JRARE
- Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. * -FHBTmLEMETRE
BRAR 162 4,005
~ Henan LingtongXinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. AREALELER
BRAR 125 1332
~ Henan XinlianxinJingmiFengtou CO, LTD. * /TF':J/L\L/L\ %:i %
ARR - 12
287 5349
T
Purchases of equipment and service fee expenses from: FATAREER
RERBEZE (i
~ Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. - T L EME TRRHE
BROF 30,778 79367
— Henan LingtongXinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. —AMERLELEER
BRAT 14,360 -
- Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation CO, LTD.* - ##Bmi @ MBr R &5
BROA* 7453 12,440
52,591 91,807
]
Purchase of goods or raw materials from: FATRREEEERRL
JRATEL - (il
— Henan LingtongXinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. —AmEBLELER
BEAT 1,713 7,645
- Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. ¥ - ¥hsm /UL/MEI W]
BRD 61 4216
1,774 11,861
]
Operating lease income from: REUTATE WM%EEMU\ :
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. - %ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ/h\L/L\{bI
BRA - 56
~ Henan XinlianxinJingmiFengtou CO, LTD * - ‘}EJ@IL\@/U %:i %
BRAR] - 21
- 77
T
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 40. BEIXRZ (1E)
2021 2020
—B-—F —_E_FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MtE ARETT AREFT
Operating lease income from: REATRREELHERA
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment - T L EMEIRE
Co, Ltd* BRAA 210 -
]
Service income from: REATRAIRIBRTS
WA - (iv)
— Anhui XinlianxinFengtou CO, LTD * - RRLEDETEBRAR 34 -
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment -FATmOEMETRE
Co,LTD.* BRAA 19 9
~ Henan XinlianxinJingmiFengtou Co Ltd * - ;‘ﬂ@i/\u@wﬁ:iﬁﬁ
BRAR 19 9
- Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Group CO,, LTD. * —uELhENMEIER
BRRAF 19 9
91 27
]
Loan guarantee from: REUTRRINETRIER
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment —HETOEME TR E
co, LTD.* ARRF 10,000 10,000
]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

These companies are subsidiaries of Henan Chemicals Equipment CO., LTD,,
which has common shareholders with the Company. The Company’s executive
directors and executive officers have certain equity interests in Henan Chemicals
Equipment CO,, LTD.

The amounts represent gross sales of by-products.

The sales of electricity were made according to the unit cost of electricity
announced by the Henan Province Development and Reform Committee (7] F5
BERIMNFEZEZ B D). The sales of water and steam were made according to
mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between the parties.

The purchases of property, plant and equipment were charged based on the
mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between the parties.
The service fee expenses were the maintenance costs, which were charged by
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO,, LTD. and Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-
corrosion Installation CO,, LTD. respectively.

The purchases of goods and raw materials were charged by Henan
LingtongXinlianxin Energy CO., LTD. andXinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals
Equipment CO,, LTD. from which the group purchased fuel oil, spare parts and
gas respectively.

The service income represents brandroyalty paid by related parties.

*

=
BY

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

ZEQAT AL TREERA RSN E
DA TR TR R R EA R BRI AR AR
Fl > RARIMHMITES MITRABRARE
ETREERARERE TIHE -

ZETHERREIERMHERE

WEEBNDRBETEAEERNAERZES
R ENBRIKAIE  $HERKRE
ATIRIRHE S KA N T R E 2 1R
HAEH -

BEDE  BERREHRIEHSADE
Tﬁﬁﬁmtfﬁmw%ﬂ&ﬂx R E XM
BEEER  DRBFIBTLEMEIR
EERAR KB EINTEREGRA
ARER

AR @AM R R BB E LR
BRARRFMBHOEMETEREBRA
BIURER - AREEMEEE KRR - THE

Rz e

PRI AIERIE T RIS ERE -

REOED —B FEH
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;E\ZI' ﬁ'% iﬁ% Fﬁﬁ}. For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #,

F_FC

—F A=t —HUIHEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

All the related party transactions above constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Compensation of directors and key management personnel of the

40. BEIXRZ ()
EXHFRERESTRZEREEHARS
FIERARRES EMRRETHAZHR

by AEEEFRETEZEEABNF

Group: B -

Group

rEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Directors'fees Yok 1,050 1,050
Salaries and bonuses e RitaL 32,025 16,174
Contributions to defined contribution plans TE BB FGETEI M E HRE D 133 128
33,208 17,352

]

Further details of the directors remuneration are included in Note 9 to these

financial statements.
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41.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

41. BROBEIRHNEHMIE
RBEHR SEcRITAMNEERAEW

IFRS 9 measurement category

AR S RIS 9 ST BRR

—E-_-F
Fair value
through other
comprehensive
Fair value through income
profit or loss Amortised cost BAYEFA Total
RAVER ABE BERA Hitr2EU & @t
Group Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
pis-1. | (o= ARBTR N ARBTR ARETR
Equity investmentts at fair value BATEFABRE
through profit o loss RERE 19 19,784 = = 19,784
Trade and bills receivables BHRMGER
eSS 23 663,027 341,551 - 1,004,578
Financial assets included in deposits 5T Ad& & & E At fE U
and other receivables FEMEREE 20 = 67,386 = 67,386
Due from related companies VNG % - 8,890 - 8,890
Pledged time deposits EERTHER 25 - 753,545 - 753,545
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBR2E5EY 25 = 893,116 = 893,116
682,811 2,064,488 - 2,747,299

D

— e

=

FEH

-
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. BROBEIRNEMITE (E)
(CONTINUED)

IFRS 9 measurement Category
BB T i 5 2E R %6 O SRSt 2 4R

2020
—TCEF
Fair value through
other comprehensive
Fair value through income
profit or loss Amortised cost BATEEA Total
WAV ES A ER R Hin2Hl @5t
Group Notgs RMB’O@ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEE fitsx AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Equity investments at fair value BRATE ABRA
through profit or loss R E 19 22,800 - - 22,800
Trade and bills receivables B HRWFIER
R ZE 23 539360 204,032 - 743,392
Financial assets included in deposits 5T AR 4 & E At FEUR
and other receivables TENEREE 20 - 156,063 - 156,063
Due from related companies YN § 2% - 1804 - 1804
Pledged time deposits el 25 - 707435 - 707435
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 25 - 682,041 - 682,041
562,160 1,751,375 - 2,313,535
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
BRBERRIIRNSREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Group Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
TEE P AR¥T T AREETTT
Trade payables E S RN RIE 26 774,423 508,978
Bills payable FERRIE 27 850,474 1,110,814
Financial liabilities included in accrualsand ~ 5H AJEZTE A K E A
other payables ERFIENSRBE 28 2,348,092 1,925,341
Due to related companies FEfTRE A R T 24 81,166 12,239
Loans from a non-controlling interest IEIE R B 30 47,800 24,870
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t 8.8R17 & EAb &K 31 11,368,775 9,347,719
Bonds payable JERHES 33 494,704 489,892
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 23,258 72,541
15,988,692 13,492,394
]

196 China XLX 2021 Annual Report



41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL ASSETS

41, EDEIRHNEEITE (&)

TREE

IFRS 9 measurement category

AR & X R SE 9 SR AT B3R R

2021
—E_—F

Fair value

through profit or

loss
Amortised cost R AFETA Total
Company Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RATH tikz3 AR%T T AR®TT AR®TT
Equity investments xR g 19 - 13,076 13,076
Due from subsidiaries FEHHE A~ RIRKIE 24 18,836 - 18,836
Cash and cash equivalents B RESEEY 25 7,634 - 7,634
26,470 13,076 39,546

|
IFRS 9 measurement category
BB B 75 3R 52 RIS o SR aT 24 R
2020
—E_EHF

Fair value through

profit or loss
Amortised cost  IRAFEFTA Total
3D 1B ey
Company Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AT Liks3 ARBTFT ARETIT AREETIT
Equity investments MR & 19 - 16,092 16,092
Due from subsidiaries FEWPT B A RIFRIE 24 139,398 - 139,398
Cash and cash equivalents Re RASEEY 25 18976 - 18976
158,374 16,092 174,466

o
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

41, EDEIRHNEEITE (E)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

REBHEHEASENEMEE
2021 2020
=B=—F e
Company Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
KATH BteE AR¥ T AREFT
Financial liabilities included in accruals and ~ F AJESTE A R E M
other payables JERFIENSREE 28 15,589 16,462
Due to a subsidiary JEN—RMIB R R FIE 24 1,886 16,850
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5188817 & EAb & 31 - 137,450
17,475 170,762
T
42. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2. BEERABENLTE
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHIES NREER

The Group categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that is dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:

Level T -

Level2 -

Level3 -

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date,

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly, and

Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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42,
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

The following table shows an analysis of each class of assets and liabilities

measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period:

42. BEEREBENAVEGE

BAFEFENEERER

TREFINHFERARRRFEFTENER

BERBEDN

TEE
2021

—=—

—_——

—%

Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

RAUTERRBEHMANAFERNE

Quoted prices in
active markets
for identical
instruments

Significant
observable inputs
other than quoted

Significant
un-observable

(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HEITAERER WEUNEE (Level 3)
TENERE TERGABE EEFUEHERE Total
(%E—#%) (B=#R) ABE(E=R) EH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Assets measured at fairvalue I AFEEIENEE
Financial assets: THEE -
Equity investments i E 13,076 = 6,708 19,784
Derivative financial instruments T4 4RI T A - 28 - 28
Bills receivable FEMSRIE - 663,027 - 663,027
Financial assets as at 31 R=-—B-_—F+=A
December 2021 =t—HNEREE 13,076 663,055 6,708 682,839
|
Group
REE
2020
—E-THF
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using
KRN TESNREHRN A ETE
Quoted prices in
active markets Significant
foridentical ~ observable inputs Significant
instruments  other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
BRATARER  RENEE (Level 3
TEMBE TEESANE ESTAUEES Tota
(B—%) (BZfh) AR (E=R) wEt
RMB’OOO RMB'000 RMB’OOO RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT AREFT AREFTT
Assets measured at fairvalue RATEHENEE
Financial assets: PHEE -
Equity investments gt & 16,092 - 6,708 22,800
Bills receivable JEN R - 539,360 - 539,360
Financial assets as at 31 N-E-EE+_-A8
December 2020 =t+—HHEMEE 16,092 539,360 6,708 562,160

RELED —T= —FFR
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42. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 42, EEREEMNAFEE)
(CONTINUED)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) BAFEENEENRES (8)

Company
ZA NG|
2021
—E-—F
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using
RANTERNREBRNAFEFTE
Quoted prices in
active markets Significant

foridentical observable inputs Significant

instruments other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs

HETEAER HREUNEE (Level 3)

THENRE FTEEGBANE EETUEEH Total
(-4 (B ABE(E=R) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥TT AR¥®TT AR¥TT

Assets measured at fairvalue R AFZEENEE

Financial assets: 2HEE
Equity investments IR E 13,076 - - 13,076
Financial assets as at 31 RN=-—E=-——F+=A

December 2021 =t+—HNemEE 13,076 - - 13,076

Company
ZA/NS]|
2020
—EFF
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

REAATERRSRERROAFETE

Quoted prices in

active markets Significant
foridentical  observable inputs Significant
instruments  other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HETARER WEUINEE (Level 3)
TISHME ABEZGARE SETAHRE Total
(B5—#%) (=) ABRE=R) BEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREBFT ARBTIT AREBFT
Assets measured at fairvalue R AFEFENEE
Financial assets: PHEE
Equity investments fRiERE 16,092 - - 16,092
Financial assets as at 31 N=-EB=-FF+=H
December 2020 =t+—HHNEREE 16,092 - - 16,092
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42. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LEVEL 2 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following is a description of the valuation techniques and inputs used
in the fair value measurement for assets and liabilities that are categorised
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy:

BILLS RECEIVABLE

The fair value of bills receivable is estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows at market incremental lending rate at the end of the reporting
period.

DERIVATIVE

Foreign currency swap and future are valued using a valuation technique
with market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation
techniques include forward pricing and swap model, using present value
calculation. The model incorporates various inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
forward rate curve.

LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

0) INFORMATION ABOUT SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS USED
IN LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Unquoted equity investment

The fair value of the unquoted equity investment designated at fair
value through profit or loss has been estimated using a market-based
valuation technique based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and calculates an appropriate price multiple, such
as enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“"EV/EBITDA") multiple, price to earnings ("P/E") multiple and
price to net book value ("P/B") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of
the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is
then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discount for lack of marketability is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unquoted equity investment to
measure the fair value.

42. BEEREBENAVEGE

BEoRDFETFE
AT RAFEREMRERGERMTMEA

BB - RIED R A FERBRE =
FHEENEE
eSS

NI 92 T BB RS AT
88 BRI TR TR R TR
it -

PTAETE

SMNEEREIN R ERAE NS A BREHA
BRI A ERMETHE - KERNMGE
R B4R AIREF E 80 iE 5 E B i 1
EE - ZBRIVMAT R ARIE - BEX
SZHFNERLE  INERE - ZRHIEXR
KR HATE R AR 4R

BE=RNVETE

)  FB=RRXFEAERAEREED
AERE ABIEREEER

FE LR E

BERAFEFABINIELTRAES
MAFEDERT EENBRMER X
S EHNBREREAMISHES AGHT o HE
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MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

42. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

0) INFORMATION ABOUT SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS USED
IN LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Unquoted equity investment (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 December 2021:

42. BEEREBENXVEGE

B=RAVEE (E)

)  F=RRFEAERAEREEDT
AR ASIERERER (8)

JEETIREIRE ()
TR = E-—F+-_A=+—H&m

TARBRENEATNBRERARBREE
[FlA] FE E VGURE DT -

Significant
Valuation unobservable input
technique EARFAEHE Range  Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fRERM WABE = AFEHHARIBNHRE
Unquoted equity investment at Valuation multiples  Average P/B multiple 2021:1.2 5% (2020: 5%) increase in multiple
fair value through profit or loss) HERE of peers (2020:1.25)  would result in increase in fair value by
. s q 4mse e EisL:oRR=! ZEZ—F 112 RMB306,000 (2020: RMB306,000)
SR AT ABRIK LT IRIELR g B306, ,
MEREREE (2224 1 125) EEUEINS% (T T4 : 5%) -

PR E

BB A A hn A RS 306,000 7T
(ZZZFF : ARM306,0007T)

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ B IEIERBLER

—

=

(ZZ=TF : 20%)

2021:20% 5% (2020: 5%) increase in discount
(2020: 20%)  would result in decrease in fair value by
—4F 1 20% RMB76,000 (2020: RMB76,000)

BLIRIEIE AN 50 (T T4 : 5%)
BEH AT ER D ARE 76,000 7T
(ZZE=ZF : AR¥760007T)

(I VALUATION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

It is the Group's policy to engage external valuation expert to perform
valuation of unquoted equity securities. The management is responsible
for selecting and engaging valuation experts that possess the relevant
credentials and knowledge on the subject of valuation, valuation
methodologies, and IFRS 13 fair value measurement guidance.

Management reviews the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted, and the reliability of the inputs used in the

valuations.

There has been no transfer from Level 1 and Level 2 to Level 3 for the
financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.
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42. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE AND WHOSE CARRYING AMOUNTS ARE REASONABLE
APPROXIMATION OF FAIR VALUE

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged time deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from/to related companies, trade and bills
payables, loans from a non-controlling interest and financial liabilities
included in accruals and other payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amounts at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities approximate to their fair values.
The fair value of the non-current portion of accruals and other payables,
loans from a non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for non-current accruals and other payables,
loans from a non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable as at 31 December 2021 was assessed to be
insignificant.
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42. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LIABILITY MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:

The Group had no financial liability measured at fair value as at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and
the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management
of these risks, which are executed by the chief financial officer and finance
manager.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposure
to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and
processes for the management of these risks.

(A)  CREDITRISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instruments should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables.
For other financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, available-for-sale investments, amounts due from related
companies, bills receivables and deposits and other receivables, the
Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising
losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
the majority of customers who wish to trade are required to pay cash on
delivery or in advance before collecting any goods. A minority of customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when
the counterparty fails to make contractual payments, within 90 days when
they fall due, which are derived based on the Group's historical information.

The Group considers “low risk” to be an investment grade credit rating with
at least one major rating agency for those investments with credit rating.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information which includes the following indicators:

- Internal credit rating

- External credit rating

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

- Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
the borrower

- Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of
the same borrower

- Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the borrower, including changes in the payment status of borrowers
in the group and changes in the operating results of the borrower.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if a debtor is more than 90 days past due in making contractual
payment.

The Group determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

- There is significant difficulty of the issuer or the borrower

- A breach of contract, such as default or past due event

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation

- There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulty
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group categorises a loan or receivable for potential write-off when a
debtor fails to make contractual payments more than 360 days past due.
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. Where loans and receivables have been written off, the Company
continues to engage enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivables due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group's debt instrument at fair value through profit or loss comprised
solely of bills receivable that are graded in the top investment category by
A and, therefore, are considered at low credit risk.

The Group provides for lifetime expected credit losses for all trade
and other receivables using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
determined based on the Group's historical observed default rates analysed
in accordance to days past due by grouping of customers based on
customer type. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information such as GDP growth and central bank base rates.

The information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade and

other receivables using provision matrix and the loss allowance movement
of trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 23.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)
EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets recognised in the statement of financial position.

CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION PROFILE

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by monitoring on an on-
going basis the aged analysis of its trade receivables. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group. At 31 December 2021, the
Group's trade receivables of RMB30,289,000 (2020: RMB42,184,000) were
due from its 10 largest customers.

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group'’s exposure to
liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial
assets and liabilities. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit
facilities.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. BiHEREEEEZERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) (B) REELEMRE(E)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of the ~ RIFEG AV FFRNK - XEEEHEE
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is as  RIEREFHROF LR -

follows:
Within 1 year or on
demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
1ERRERESR 123F 3E5E SENL st
Group RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
158 AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR
31 December 2021 ZEC-E+Zf=1-A

Trade payables 5k 174423 - - - 774423
Bils payable EREE 850474 - - - 850,474

Financial abilties included inaccrvalsand 31 AEETE R R e S 3UBA)
other payables RER 1,815,284 549,896 - - 2,365,180
Due to elated companes FEREEAANE 81,166 - - - 81,166
Loans from a non-controlling interest FARERER = 47,800 = = 47,800
Interest-bearing bankand other borrowings 3 &R REM B 6402213 2,413,587 2,382,975 170,000 11,368,775
Bonds payable EfifE5 28,748 302,713 = = 531,461
Lease iabilties HEER 387 3,883 8279 15,724 31,757
10,156,179 3317879 2,391,254 185,724 16,051,036

|
31 December 2020 e

Trade payables BHETE 508978 - - - 508978
Bils payable ENEE 110814 - - - 110814

Financialligbifies included inaccrualsand 1 AERHE Bl R HuE 2B
other payabes £REE 1847288 8117 - - 1,936,405
Due to elated companes EREEAANE 12353 - - - 12353
Loans from a non-controling interest FERERER U870 - - - 1870
Interest-bearing bankand other borrowings 3T EFTREMER: 4515565 2717454 2705803 M3 10231315
Bonds payable RS 30560 28748 300713 - 562021
Lease libltes HEER 48004 284 8851 29427 89214

8098522 3038161 3037367 301920 14475970
|
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. BiBEREEEEZERBE (E&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) (B) REELEMRE(E)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the ~ BREBEEXVEIFNRNR - AAFEHAE
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is as  RIEREFHROF LR -
follows:

Within 1 year or on
demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
1ERARERESR 133F 3F5E SEE st
Company RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
O AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR
31 December 2021 “E-E+ZAST-H
Financialiabiltes included inaccrualsand 3T APERT B RE MR ZEA)
other payables SHAR 15,589 - - - 15,589
|
31 Decernber 2020 “EEF{-A=1-H
Finandialiabiltes included inaccrualsand 5T AR B B RE MR ZEA)
other payables fia -\ 1646 - - - 16462
Interest-bearing bank and other borowings 3 & R4T REMER 138054 - - - 138054
154516 - - - 154516
|
(C)  INTEREST RATE RISK © F=EER

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the FExRBAASE SR T AN A FAEIK
Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market RIS A EATIHFI XS E M HIR K EH
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest BB o 7858 B BT ¥ 89 T 35 71 K 2 B[R e
rates relates primarily from its loans and borrowings subject to a floating ~ EZERBHFENFIEEFRRER °

interest rate.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR INTEREST RATE RISK FERBRBRE DT
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments ELLENAFHEFREST

The Group does not account for fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at ~ ARBETERTEEeMEERBEERRE
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the i AFEARR o Bt - FIEA R A H
reporting date would not affect profit or loss. RSB TR 2185 ©
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@ INTEREST RATE RISK (CONTINUED)
CASH FLOW SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS

For variable rate financial assets and liabilities, the Group has determined
the carrying amounts of cash and short-term deposits based on their
notional amounts, which reasonably approximate to their fair values
because these are mostly short-term in nature or are repriced frequently.
For interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, a change in interest rate at
the reporting date would (decrease)/increase profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant.

43. BIBEEEEZERBEE (#)

(O  F=mEE (&)
FERETANREREHREDT

WEEERMEERAGEMNS ARECDE
EREREHFERREESBFHOER
BEANHEREMMES  HEXEDE
ANE EBREHREEEHRE - Bst B
RITREAMERM ST - FIRREBHRE D
IR T XIS R D) ENE
@ o WA HRRAEEMAZERE - L
HEINEERRRFAE

2021 2020

Increase in basis —FE-—5F —E-FF

Group points RMB’000 RMB'000

rEE EREm ARBTR AREBFT
Interest expense FERZ

RMB AR 10 (237) (196)

usD ET 10 - Q)
Interest income FLEMA

RMB AR 10 14 13

]
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, BB EMEEEERBER (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(D)  FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (D) HMNEREFE

The Group holds cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank ~ AEBERAUIINEHENR e RREE
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies for working capital AT BRITERIELEEESRE - E@#&
purposes. At the end of the reporting period, these foreign currency net & EiR - ZEUIINELENFEE (A

assets/(liabilities) (mainly in SGD, USD, HKDand EUR) are as follows: B)(EEAFMFE T Ex BT EE
TTIIT
2021 2020
—E-—F ZECTF
Group RMB’000 RMB'000
rEE ARBTR AREBFT
SGD FNE T 172 173
usb ET 30,461 (96,739)
HKD BT 989 1,034
EUR BT 120 321
31,742 (95,211)
T

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible ~ T RBEREFTBEMAIZFRRRFILZ
change in the EUR, SGD, USD, and HKD exchange rates (against RMB), with T & EE | (2 HIBRTIA R gz ) ¥ BX
all other variables held constant, on the Group's profit, net of tax and equity. JC > Fn T - E KRBT (RARE)®

[ERH S IR A ge B BURE ©
2021 2020
—E-—-F —R-FF
Group RMB’000 RMB'000
rEE AR¥T T ARETFT
EUR - strengthened 5% (2020:5%) BT ~ B 50 (ZEZFF ¢ 5%) 6 16
— weakened 5% (2020: 5%) - 885550 (ZTZFF : 5%) (6) (16)
SGD - strengthened 5% (2020: 5%) ¥ ANETT - 8898 5% (ZF T4 : 5%) 9 9
— weakened 5% (2020: 5%) - 88555% (ZT2FF : 5%) 9 ©)
USD - strengthened 2% (2020:2%) 57T - 8858 20 (ZT T4 - 2%) 609 (1,935)
— weakened 2% (2020: 2%) - 85520 (ZEZFF 1 2%) (609) 1,935
HKD - strengthened 1% (2020:1%) /BT B 1% (ZE2FF 1 1%) 10 10
— weakened 1% (2020: 1%) —E55 1% (ZEFF 1 1%) (10) (10)

T

-
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44. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditionsand the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the financial years ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

As disclosed in Note 36, subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are required
by the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law of the PRC to contribute to
and maintain a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose utilisation is
subject to approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This externally imposed
capital requirement has been complied with by these subsidiaries for the
financial years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, short-term and long-term bonds payable, trade and bills
payables, amounts due to related companies, accruals and other payables
and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the parent less the
statutory reserve fund. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio below
90%.
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44, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

44, EXREE (E)

2021 2020

—EB-—F ZETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETIT

Trade payables =) ANEe 774,423 508,978
Bills payable ANE S 850,474 1110814
Contract liabilities BHEE 1,079,227 818,149
Accruals and other payables e B A R E MR 58 2,365,180 1,936,405
Other liabilities HipBiE 117,867 -
Due to related companies JESREE R RIFIR 81,166 12,353
Loans from a non-controlling interest IHERERE R 47,800 24,870
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERITREMIEK 11,368,775 9,347,719
Bonds payable JERHES 494,704 489,892
Lease liabilities HERE 23,258 72,541
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B B RReEEY (893,116) (682,041)
Pledged time deposits BT B K (753,545) (707,435)

Net debt BEFH 15,556,213 12,932,245
Equity attributable to owners of the parent M ARER AEL R 5,693,550 4,530,433
Less: Statutory reserve fund B OEERES (510,920) (200,307)
Adjusted capital EEES= N 5,182,630 4,330,126
Capital and net debt BERNEBEFE 20,738,843 17,262,371
Gearing ratio BERBELE 75.01% 74.92%
T
HELED —T=—FFf
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Notes to Financial Statements
MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

45. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

45. RHBARNRKRE

Investments in subsidiaries

RHERRNRE

Particulars of Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of registration Nominal value of

Company
PN

2021 2020

—E-—F ZETEE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T ARET T
1,717,275 1,672,275

|

ARFMBATGHEDT

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% TR AR it B HAMEREE AAREERER DL TEER
2021 2020
—g=-f .
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
E# iE: B ik
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals PRC/Mainland China RMB1,895,480,000 76.31% - 76.31% - Manufacture and trading of
Group Co, Ltd hE/ A ARE urea, compound fertiliser,
("Henan XLX") * 1,895,480,000 7T methanol, dimethy! ether
ARLEMEE and liquid ammonia
T¥KERH EEREERE
BRAA AR Bl -
CAEOEDL])* “HBRRER
Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB2,100,000,000 - 7631% - 7631%  Investment holding,
Chemical CO, LTD. HE /AR ARE manufacture and trading
("Xinjiang XLX") ©# 2,100,000,000 7T of urea and compound
FENEORERILT fertiliser, methanol and
BRAT melamine
([FTBEL ) e REER  £ER
HERE BRI
RER=Fa%
Akesu Xinlianxin Compound PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Fertiliser CO, LTD. FE,/ R E RN AR compound fertiliser
(‘Akesu XLX") ¥ 200,000,000 75 BBERHERRE
MR EOELER
ARAH
(TP &R0 ) o
Manas Tianli Coal CO, LTD. PRC/Mainland China RMB114,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Coal mining and sales of
(Tianli")@* FE,/ R E R AR coal
liPNIEES 114,000,000 7 RERRREREE
BREFAT
(TR#])es
Manas Tianxin Coal CO, LTD. PRC/Mainland China RMB680,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Coal mining and sales of
(Tianxin’) @ * FE/RE A AR coal
BRI RIMEE 680,000,000 75 FRERRRRREE
BREFAT
(TRfR])et

China XLX 2021 Annual Report



45. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45.

Place of registration

Nominal value of

RE B AR RE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% T REE R HEMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2021 2020
“B--f —TCZE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B ik B il

Jiujiang Xinlianxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB2,700,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Manufacture and trading
O, LTD. ("iujiang XLX") € FE/ R E R AR of urea and compound

JULOENMERR 2,700,000,0007C fertiliser, methanol,
BRAA dimethy! ether and liquid
([T ])es ammonia

HERHERER  BA
fE - FEE - —HEBE R
REER

Henan Nongxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB37,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
(0, LTD. ("Nongxin") ©* B/ R E R AR compound fertiliser and

ARRLPEERAT 37,000,000 7T related products
(TRU et SERHERAIERIAE

Em

Xinxiang Country Shoudian PRC/Mainland China RMB97,165400 - 7631% - 7631% Selling and distributing
(O, LTD. ("Shoudian’) & ¥ HRE /R A AR electricity

FRHLELEE 97,165,400 7T HERDHEES
BRARI(TEE]er

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Testing equipments
Testing CO, LTD. B/l ARE KRR
(Testing’) @ ¢ 1,000,000 7T

RO R A
BRAR(MAl)e

Henan Hydrogenpower PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000000  100.00% = 100.00% - Manufacture and trading of
Energy CO, LTD. FE/ R E RN ARE furfuryl alcohol
(Hydrogenpower) * ¢ 100,000,000 7T i R SRR

A NERAR
RAE/([EHReR])*

Henan Xinlianxin Blue PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental Protection FE/RE RN AR vehicles urea solution
Technology CO, LTD. 50,000,000 7 BERHES
('Henan Blue’) € * REBR

L@ ERRR
RHARAT
(IENESR]) e

Henan Xinlianxin Tailan PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 3892% - 3892% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental Protection HE/ R E A AR vehicles urea solution
Technology CO, LTD. 10,000,000 7T HEERREAR

("Henan Tailan") @ #
ARLEORERR
BB AF
([TBRE]) e

REOED —B FEH
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Notes to Financial Statements

;E\ZI' Z% iﬁﬂzﬁ BﬁH For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #,

45. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of registration

Nominal value of

F_FC

—F A=t —HUIHEFE

45. RKERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
£ A RS HMEREE ERRAEEREE DL TEEH
2021 2020
“B--f —TCZE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# EFE3 B it
Henan Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 5259% - 43.81% Manufacture and trading of
Technology CO, LTD. BB A K% humic acid
("Henan Black’) ©* 20,000,000 7 BE L HERER
ERE AR
BRAA
(EReEl)er
Xinjiang Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 5259% - 43.81% Investment holding
Technology CO, LTD. B/ FRERM NG RE R
("Xinjiang Black) @ 110,000,000 7T
MEEELERERD
AR
(THERE et
Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 44.02% - 41.14% Manufacture and trading of
Energy CO, LTD. (‘Shenleng B/l AR gas
Energy) @ 100,000,000 7C SUERIEEMR
LB R SR
R BRAF]
(DRREER])et
Xinjiang Shenleng Gas CO, LTD. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 44.02% - 41.14% Manufacture and trading of
(*Xinjiang Shenleng’) & B /B A ARE gas
MBALRERRAT] 20,000,000 7 BERHEMR
(TF@xRR et
Henan Shenleng Gas CO, PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 44.02% - 41.14%  Trading of gas
LTD. ('Henan Shenleng’) ©* AR HERT
BE)SEEE 1,0000007C
BB
(DR ])e!
Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Blue Environmental FE/RE A AR vehicles urea solution
Protection Technology 20,000,0007C HERHEERRRAR
(O, TD. ("iujiang Blue") @
NIDELEBRRRHR
BRR7
([NUIEE])e:
Henan Heli Energy CO, LTD. PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 51.25% - 51.25% - Manufacture and trading of
("Heli Energy’) * ¥ FE/ R E RN AR furaldehyde
AERNRERRH 78,000,000 7 HE RHERE
BRAT
(TRANEEIR]) **

China XLX 2021 Annual Report



45. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of registration

Nominal value of

45. RKERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
£ A RS HMEREE ERRAEEREE DL TEEH
2021 2020
“B--f —TCZE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# EFE3 B it

Xinxiang Huineng Yuyuan PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 51.25% - 5125% Selling and distributing
Power Generation CO, HE/ R A AR electricity
LTD. ("Huineng Yuyuan") ** 30,000,000 75 HERDHEN

MATERTRES
BRAA]

(TE&ETIR])**

Jiangxi Shenleng Gas CO, PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 44.02% - 41.14% Manufacture and trading of
TD. (“iangi Shenleng’) €# FE/ R E R AR gas

TERZREARLA 10,000,000 7 BERHEMR
(DIARz et

Jiujiang Pengcheng Power PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Selling and distributing
(O, LTD. ("Jijiang FE/ R E AL AR electricity
Power’)€* 35,000,0007C HERDHEN

NIZHENERAT
(THUIE A )et

Xinxiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Agricultural production
Agricultural FE,/ R E RN AR BEEE
Development CO, LTD. 1,000,000 7T
("Xinxiang
Agriculture”) @

Urumai Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 5259% - 43.81% Manufacture and trading of
Technology CO, LTD. HE/ B A AR humic acid
("Urumgqi Black’) @ 35,000,000 7 BLE T S RIER

SBRABEEEAERR
BRAR7
((RBAEEE])e

Henan Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% International business and
International Business HE /B A ARE trading
and Trade CO, LTD. 10,000,000 7C EREERES
("Guojimaoyi”) @*

RO B A
E5BRAT
(TERES et

Shanghai Yibo Water PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Technological development
Technique CO, LTD. FE/ RN ARE A
(Shanghai Yibo") @ * 200,000,000 7T

LBRBKERBAR
RE(TLEER et

REOED —B FEH
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Notes to Financial Statements

;E\ZI' Z% iﬁﬂzﬁ BﬁH For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 #,

45. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45.

Place of registration

Nominal value of

F_FC

—F A=t —HUIHEFE

RE B AR RE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% T REE R HEMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2021 2020
“B--f —TCZE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B ik B il

Jiujiang Yibo Water PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Technological development
Technique CO, LTD. hE/RE R ARHS RiHE
("Jiujiang Yibo") @ # 200,000,000 7T

NIsBKBRBAR
AR([FULEHK e

Henan Xinxing Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMB85,000,000 60.61% - 6061% - Manufacture and trading of
(O, LTD. ("Xinxing RE,/ B ARE chemical production
Chemical’) ** 85,000,000 7T FUEREELER

EELEIER
RAN([OEET])*

Henan Xinlianxin Intelligent PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Equipment Technology FE/ R E AL ARE intelligent equipment
CO, LTD. (‘Intelligent 100,000,000 7T Bl T g an s
Equipment”) @

MELELE B BRI
BRAR (88
KfEl)e

Harvest international HK/Hongkong HKD5,000,000 - 7631% - 76.31% International business and
Business Limited B/ BE 5,000,000 7T trading
("Harvest’) *# ER¥BLES

PRI BN BIR
AA)([PRmERTR: )+

Xinxiang Ruicheng PRC/Mainland China RMB62,500,000 - 51.00% - 51.00% Manufacture and trading of
Technology CO, LTD. FE/ R E RN ARE medical intermediate
(*Xinxiang Ruicheng’) ** 62,500,000 7 BUERIREREPREE

AR AR
RAE) ([ smas )

Xinxiang Ruinuo PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 - 26.01% - 2601% Manufacture and trading of
Pharmaceutical BB A AR® medical intermediate
(0, LTD. (*Xinxiang 60,000,000 7C BERIREREPREE
Ruinuo”) *#

Wbk SRR RAF
(T #imaa 1)

Xinjiang Xinlianxin Tailan PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 - 38.92% - 3892% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental Protection FE,/ R E R AR vehicles urea solution
Technology CO, LTD. 6,000,000 7C BERHEERRRAR

("Xinjiang Tailan") ¢

e LELRERRRHY
BRAR([#5E
RE|)er

China XLX 2021 Annual Report



45, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45. RHBATNIKRE (F)

Place of registration

Nominal value of

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
£ A RS HMEREE ERRAEEREE DL TEEH
2021 2020
“B--f —TCZE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# EFE3 B it
Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 7631% - 7631%  Agricultural development
Agricultural Science and HE/ R A AR RERR
Technology CO, LTD. 10,000,000 70
("Jiujiang Agricultural’) @
NIDELRERBAR
RAE([FUT
RE])er
Hangzhou Xinnuo Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Trading of gas
Co. Ltd. ('Hangzhou B/ BN AR% HEMR
Xinnuo") @ # 5,000,000 7T
MMLEE TARAR
Shandong Heli PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 51.25% - 51.25% Manufacture and trading of
Biotechnology CO, LTD. FE,/ TR B AR furaldehyde
(*Shandong Hel") @ 50,000,000 7C BUE RS ERRE
Note (b)
WRRNEDREER
RAEV(MWWRERA e
BT (b)
Henan xinzhilian Enterprise PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100.00% - 100.00% - Consulting
Management CO, LTD. RE/ B AR 2
("Henan xinzhilian”) @* 5,000,000 7T
Note (0)
AEOEHERER
BRR7
(AR LR ) e
Fit3E ()

RELED —T= —FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2021 &2 —F = —4#+=H =+—HIFHHKF/E

45. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45. PHEXRNRE (&)
Place of registration Nominal value of Percentage of equity interest
Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% A RS HMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2021 2020
it St 2 Sk
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# ik B it
Guangdong xinmenglan PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 7631% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental RE/ R E R AR vehicles urea solution
Protection Technology 20,000,000 7T BERHEER
(0, LTD. ("Guangdong REARK

xinmenglan”) €
Note (d)

BEROEBERRRR
BRAT
([EROBE e
MIEE (d)

Xinjiang xinlianxin Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 7631%
Industry CO, LTD. B /B AR
(‘Zhundongxinfianxin') © ¢ 50,000,000 7T
Note (a)
FELEMLIERAH
([HERDEL et
Bt (a)

- 7631% Manufacture and trading of
compound fertiliser

REREEEAL

Gansu xinlianxin Modern PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 7631%
Agricultural Technology B/ R E A AR
CO, LTD. ("Gansu 30,000,000 7T
xinlianxin”) @ Note (e)

HRLELAREREME

- 7631% Agricultural production
BRAE

BRAA]
(THELEDN ) e
Pt (@)
* The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law. * Z B A R RARE R BE 2 A S /IS
EEERE -
e These subsidiaries are established in the PRC and registered under PRC law. e ZE M A TR R B S W AR BE R BA
FEf o
’ Not audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore or another member firm of the Ernst ’ W JEF Ernst & Young LLP, #T AN sk &2k &

& Young global network

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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45.

Notes:

46.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

7 September 2021, Henan XLX established a new subsidiary named Xinjiang
xinlianxin Chemical Industry CO,, LTD. with registered capital of RMB50,000,000
The main business of the subsidiary is manufacturing and trading of compound

fertiliser.

On 15 January 2021, Heli Energy established a new subsidiary named Shandong
Heli Biotechnology CO,, LTD. with a registered capital of RMB50,000,000. The main
business of the subsidiary is manufacturing and trading furaldehyde.

On 30 March 2021, China XLX established a new subsidiary named Henan
xinzhilian Enterprise Management CO., LTD. with a registered capital of
RMB5,000,000. The main business of the subsidiary is Consulting.

On 22 June 2021, Henan Blue established a new subsidiary named Guangdong
xinmenglan Environmental Protection Technology CO., LTD. with a registered
capital of RMB20,000,000. The main business of the manufacturing and trading of
vehicles urea solution.

On 24 November 2021, Xinjiang XLX established a new subsidiary named Gansu
xinlianxin Modern Agricultural Technology CO,, LTD. with a registered capital of
RMB30,000,000. The main business of the Agricultural production.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 25 March 2022.

46.

RE B AR RE (&)

R-ZE=—FAAEHB  FAELELHK
I-RMBARHELEMCIBERA
7]+ s E AR A AR 50,000,000 ¢ 3ZHY
BRAMNFEEHAREREEEEE -

NZZEZ—F—A+HH » ROERIFK
—RWBARIURRDEDRHEERA
A M EAR A AR S500000007T * #%
A BRI B AR RIHERE o

R-ZE-—F=ZA=+H  FELBLH
Y —RNBARDIE LS EXEEE
RAF - FMEARAARYS50000007T -
ZHB AR E B ARMAE AR o

RZZEZ—FARAZ+=ZH LELESR
R —RMBAREROEERRE
AR AR - M E KA AR 20000000
L ZNBRARINEZEE ARIENEE
BHARZAR °

RN_ZT-—F+—A-+ME - FHEdE
DS — R B R R HBOELNRR
BRERBBRAR  #MEABARE
30,0000007C * ZMBARINEZERE AR
FEHEE -

#EM B ERR
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TEMBERBE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

VAN 051 AN 5% [ 10 48 25 1 B TR 4F /2 VAR
ERENEERGEHRE  DREEACT
B RBERIBERE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
==t T -TF —E-NF 2 N\F ZE—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INELSA ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARKETT
Results E35
Revenue 'ON 16,815,321 10,444,722 8,928,255 9,194,676 7,561,547
Cost of sales SHE RS (12,426,464) (8,230,163) (6,987,218) (6,955,245) (5974,597)
Gross profit EF 4,388,857 2,214,559 1,941,037 2,239,431 1,586,950
Other income and gains HAYA Rz 169,368 198,730 160,349 112,716 87,594
Selling and distribution HE RO HFAX
expenses (762,708) (620,599) (515,827) (508,048) (482,909)
General and administrative —RRITHF X
expenses (934,618) (624,260) (661,442) (496,623) (415,467)
Other expenses HibFfx (88,589) (129,755) (16,712) (223,416) (5,600)
Impairment losses on financial & B4 & =
assets FEREE (14,570) (5640) (10,007) (22,241) -
Share of profits/(losses) of FE(GEEE A R]
associates swm Al (Es18) 1,232 (582) 2,298 657 -
Finance costs BTSSR AR (583,370) (401,379) (374,076) (325,329) (285,851)
Profit before tax RRBEAT R R 2,175,602 631,074 525,620 777,147 484,717
Income tax expense Frisiif sz (406,232) (106,926) (111,557) (121,833) (61,185)
Profit for the year REEHER 1,769,370 524,148 414,063 655,314 423,532
I
Attributable to: LA AL FEG -
Owners of the parent HARER A 1,294,139 347,662 316,495 624,932 397,778
Non-controlling interests FEFERR IR 475,231 176,486 97,568 30,382 25,754
1,769,370 524,148 414,063 655,314 423,532
I
Assets, liabilitiesand non- &7%& - 88K
controlling interests IR ER
Total assets WBEE 25,506,673 20,955,092 16,490,865 13,655,296 11,905,762
Total liabilities wEE (17,545,291)  (14530,718)  (10,769,185) (8,742,497) (8,255,808)
Non-controlling interests SRR S (2,267,832) (1,893,941) (1,486,439) (990,985) (283,279)
5,693,550 4,530,433 4,235,241 3,921,814 3,366,675
I
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Glossary
AR

In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the following
terms shall have the following meanings:

"AC" or "Audit Committee”

AGM”

“Board”

“Companies Act”

“Company”or“China XLX"

or "XLX"

“Constitution”

“Director(s)”

"EGM”

“FY2020"

“FY2021"

“Group”

"Henan XLX"

"HKD"

“Listing Rules”

Audit Committee of the Company

Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Board of Directors

The Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd.

Constitution of the Company
Director(s) of the Company

Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company

The financial year ended 31 December 2020

The financial year ended 31 December 2021

The Company and its subsidiaries altogether

Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd, a
wholly holding subsidiary of the Company

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the SEHK
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Glossary
AR R

“Model Code”

“NC"or “Nomination
Committee”

“PRC" or "China”

"RC"or "Remuneration
Committee”

“RMB"

/rS$u

“SEHK”

“SFO”

“SGX-ST"

“Shareholder(s)”

"XLX Chem”

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules

Nomination Committee of the Company

The People’s Republic of China

Remuneration Committee of the Company

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

Singapore dollars

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited
Shareholder(s) of the Company

Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Group Co,, Ltd.

China XLX 2021 Annual Report
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